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ASSEMBLYMAN C. RICHARD KAMIN (Vice-Chairman): Good 
morning, and thank you for coming. 

During the past two and a half months, this Committee 

has been attempting to take a long look, a hard look, at the 

bonding practices of our State government, State ag~ncies, and 

atithorities. After watching our State government become a 
focal point of Federal and State investigations into alleged 
illegal activities with regard to bond sales, we felt it was 

necessary for the Legislature to take an objective look at how 

the State handles its bond business and what reforms may be 
needed in the future. 

Today, this Committee wi 11 be focusing on the bond 

practices of the New Jersey Turnpike Authority. Our goal here 
today is not to just review and analyze the issuance of debt by 

the Authority, but to _delve into the rationale and 

decision-making process that led to the selection of 

underwriters, attorneys, financial adviser, and other 

professionals for the Authority's $2.9 billion bond issuance of 

1991. 

As you all know, many concerns were raised in 1991, 

when the Turnpike Authority and the administration worked hand 

in hand to craft the now infamous $400 million road sale to 
help to balance the budget. Many of us sitting here today 
questioned at the time the fiscal sanity of that proposal, but 

our objections fell on deaf ears. What is even more 
disturbing, however, is that the serious ethical and legal 
questions about the entire $2.9 billion bond deal have been 
raised by State and Federal officials. 

It is our hope that once these bond investigations are 

completed this unfortunate chapter in New Jersey's history will 

be closed, and we can begin to move forward. We want the 

people of New Jersey to feel confident that the State 

government is spending its tax dollars wisely and prudently. 

More importantly, we want to make certain that New Jersey's 
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State government, as well as its agencies and authorities are 

never aga1n the target of any investigations. 

It is my belief that State government, like any 

individual sitting in this room, can learn from its mistakes 

and do things better in the future. With the new 

administration poised to take over the reins of government in 

Trenton, we have the opportunity to wipe the slate clean and 

start anew. But if we cannot recognize the errors and mistakes 

of the past, this dark ethical cloud will hang over State 

government during the Florio administration. If we can't 

recognize the errors and mistakes that have· cast this stark 

ethical cloud over State government during the Florio 

administration, how can we possibly expect to avoid such 

practices in the future? We have an obligation to the people 

we represent to identify .the problems and to propose solutions. 

With that, I would like to introduce the Chairman of 

the New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Mr. David Goldberg, and the 

Executive Director, Mr. Donald Watson, who have agreed to 

testify before our .committee today. Gentlemen, thank you for 

being here, and welcome. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Yes, Mr. Watson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Chairman, I see we have 

information before us today that was requested October 7 and 

8. I know this is supposed to be a bipartisan hearing. Our 

side of the aisle, or our staff, as I am told, did not receive 

it. I haven't received it. I just want to ask a question of 

the Chair: Why did we not receive the information that is 

before us today? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: 

requested by our sta,ff, 

investigation. 

and 

This 

it 

is 

has 

material 

been part 

that was 

of our 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I'm not saying the Committee as a 

whole, but, Mr. Chairman, I am the Chairman on our side of the 
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aisle, and if the Chairman received his copy, I should have 

gotten mi~e, too. That is my--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Well, Mr. Watson, thank you. You 

have the material. We have been conducting this 

investigation .. When you choose to help and assist in the 

investigation, any material you have that you would like to 

share from your side to us, fine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Well, it is just that-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: First of all,. for Mt. David 

Goldberg, I have to go through a series of questions for you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Yes, Mr. Watson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I am sorry to in~errupt, but I 

have not finished. You know, we had requested the different 

people whom we would have liked to have had before this 

Committee. This is one of my reasons for protesting the way 

this was handled, because of the fact that this was supposed to 

have been bipartisan, and, of course, even the Speaker had 

granted us the right to have our people in. Of course, we 

didn't. We still have been denied that. I just wanted that to 

be part of the record this morning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Your objections are noted, Mr. 

Watson. Thank you. 

Mr. Goldberg, did you receive a subpoena from this 

Committee compelling your attendance at this hearing today? 

D A V I D J. G 0 L D B E R G: I don't believe so. Did I 

get a subpoena? (c.onsults with associate, whose response is 

indiscernible) No. We were not subpoenaed, nor did the 

Au~hority indicate that it would require a subpoena in order to 

appear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That is correct. Thank you. 

Have you received a copy of the Code of Fair Procedure 

here today--

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. That-~ 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: --before testifying before this 

Comrni t tee-? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Yes, we received that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The Code of Fair Procedure gives 

you certain -rights as a witness testifying under oath here 
today before this Committee. For example, you have the right 

to be accompanied by counsel, who may wish to advise you of 
your rights during the proceeding. Do you have counsel present 

here today? 
MR. GOLDBERG: I have Mr. Mirabelli in the room. It 

is not likely, but if for some reason consultation with him is 
necessary, I will either request that or during a break I will 

proceed with that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Mirabelli, would you spell 

that name, please, for the record? 

MAR I 0 v. M I RABE L 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: 
submit proposed questions to 

counsel have any questions for 

MR. MIRABELLI: No, I 

L I, ESQo: 

Thank you .. 

us on your 

us today? 

don't. 

M-I-R-A-B-E-L-L-I. 
Your counsel may 

behalf. Does your 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I may now ask you to raise your 

right hand: Do you solemnly swear that the testimony you shall 

give in the matters now pending before this Committee shall be 
the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help 
you God? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you understand that if the 

statements you make today are willfully false_, that you may be 

subject to penalties under the law, including monetary 

penalties and incarceration, if you fail to answer a pertinent 

question or commit perjury, which is the making of a false 

statement under the oath in an off ioal proceeding such as 

this? Do you understand this? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Is the testimony provided today of 

your own ±ree will? ( 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Have you been directed or ordered 

to appear here today? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well~ we have been requested to 

appear. We didn't request the opportunity to appear. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. Goldberg. 

And, Mr. Watson, for you: Did you receive a subpoena 

from this Committee compelling your attendance at this hearing 

today? 

D 0 HALD L. WATS 0 H: No, I didn't. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Have you received a copy of the 

Code of Fair Procedure here today before testifying before this 

Committee? 

MR. WATSON: Yes, I have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The Code of. Fair Procedure gives 

you certain rights as a witness testifying under oath here 

today before this Committee. For example, you have the right 

to be accompanied by counsel, who may advise you- of your rights 

during the proceeding. Do you have counsel present here today? 

MR. WATSON: Mr. Mirabelli is here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Your counsel may submit proposed 

questions to us on your behalf. 

questions for us today? 

Does the counsel have any 

MR. WATSON: No, he doesn't. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Under . the Code -- if you would 

raise your right hand do you solemnly swear that the 

testimony you shall give in the matters now pending before this 

Committee shall be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but 

the truth, so help you God? 

MR. WATSON: I do. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you understand that if the 

statements you make today are willfully false, you may be 
•.f.. . 
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subject to penalties under the law, including monetary 

penaltie~ and incarteration, if you fail to answer a pertinent 

question or commit perjury, which is the making of a false 

statement under oath in an official proceeding such as this? 

MR. WATSON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you understand this? 

MR. WATSON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Is the testimony provided here 

today of your own free will? 

MR. WATSON: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Have you been directed or ordered 

to appear here today? 

MR. WATSON: We have been requested. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you. 

With that, Mr. Goldberg and Mr. Watson, since you have 

prepared statements that have been distributed to the 

Committee, we welcome your opening remarks. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My prep a red 

remarks do not respond to some of the comments the Chair made 

at the outset, but I assume that during the questioning section 

we will have an opportunity , to address them. I think. the 

concerns you expressed are understandable concerns. Our view 

of our involvement, and the extent to which the Authority 

itself is involved in whatever investigations are going on, -are 

things that we should address further, but let me proceed with 

the statement that has been prepared. 

The Authority appreciates the opportunity to appear 

today before this Committee to respond to any questions you may 

have. 

During the last 10 years, the Authority refinanced its 

entire bonded indebtedness on two occasions. The first 

occurred between 1984 and '87; the most recent occurred in 

1991-'92. 
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The '84-' 87 refinancing took place primarily because 

the Auth~rity in 1985 borrowed $2 billion to finance a widening 

of the Turnpike in the north between Interchanges 11 and 18, 

including both the eastern and western spurs. The widening 

also included dualization of the portion between Interchanges 
BA and 9. 

At the time of its $2 billion borrowing, the 

Authority's program was conceptual. The Widening Program had 

not been designed, and essential State and Federal permits had 

not been obtained. 

In undertaking this refinancing, the Authority: 

1) Did not retain or use an independent financial 

adviser until 1987, at which time the program was substantially 

completed. 
2) Did not engage in any public solicitation of 

underwriters to carry out the program. 

3) Assigned the responsibility. to act as Authority 

financial adviser and lead underwriter to a single underwriter, 

Smith, Barney, Harris, Upham & Co., Inc. -- Smith Barney. 

4) Left the structuring of the underwriting 

essentially to Smith Barney. 

5) Did not undertake an effective cost control 

effort. As a result, the cost of the refinancing was 

approximately $67 million. Underwriting costs alone exceeded 

$57 million. Payments to Smith Barney for its services as 
financial adviser exceeded $4 million. Printing costs were 

more than $2.5 million. 
By contrast, the 1991-1992 refinancing cost $26 

million, $40 million less than the 1984-1987. The financial 
adviser received $2.275 million, and the underwriters $20 

mi 11-ion. Printing costs were held to less than $600, 000, and 

in the attached chart is a detailed comparison of the costs 

incurred by the Authority in these two financings. 
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Moreover, significant problems arose because the 

Authority- decided to borrow $2 billion before its program had 

progressed beyond the conceptual stage. The $2 billion 

borrowing was premised on the widening project being completed 

by the end 6f 1990. How~ver, the Authority was able to place 

under construction between January 1986 and April 1990 less 

than $250 million. In an effort to accelerate construction, 

the Authority spent approximately $70 million to plan and 

design the widening of the western spur before obtaining 

required State and Federal approvals. Because the required 

permits were not issued, the administration of Governor Kean, 

in 1989, abandoned this project. The $70 million expended on 

these plans h~ve been of no value to the Aut~ority. 

In addition, the borrowing of $2 billion also 

substantially distorted the Authority's financial decisions. 

In 1985, as part of the $2 billion borrowing, the Authority 

coinmi tted itself to increasing tolls by . 40 percent effective 

July 1, 1986~ and by an additional 40 percent January 1, 1990 

-- and, in fact, there was a commitment· to impose an additional 

20 percent increase in 1992 -- to pay for the increased costs 

that this borrowing would require. The 1985 borrowing predated 

more stringent tax limitations imposed by Federal law in 1986. 

The Authority, therefore, for a five-year period, was 

able legally to invest unexpended construction funds and to 

divert the arbitrage earnings from such investments to pay 

Turnpike expenses. Since the con~truction program did not 

proceed on schedule, most of the $2 billion borrowing remained 

avai.lable for investment and produced substantial short-term 

earnings. The Authority decided in lieu of raising tolls on 

schedule, to apply these investment earnings to the growing 

shortfall between toll revenues and Authority expenses. 

Between 1986 and 1990, the gap between revenues and 

expenses increased to $462 million. The shortfall was covered 

by arbitrage earnings. In 1990, however, under the tax laws, 
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ar9i trage earnings could no longer be used for this purpose. 

To clos~ the revenue gapi it was necessary for the newly 

appointed Commissioners -- and I would add inferentially that I 

became Chairman at the end of April 1990 to adopt a 

disproportionately large toll increase. The toll increase was 

approved in January 1991, effective in March 1991. It was the 
first increase that followed the borrowing that occurred in 
1985. 

In 1991, we again turned to the issue of r~financing. 

In February 1991, Governor Florie's administration proposed the 

sale to the Turnpike Authority of the portion of Interstate 95 

from the northern terminus of the Turnpike to the George 

Washington Bridge. The Turnpike Authority, during a series of 

hearings before the New Jersey Senate and General Assembly, 

supported this proposal provided: 

1) Legislation ·was enacted which directed the 

Turnpike Authori.ty to purchase the section of I-95 for $400 

million; and 

2) The Turnpike indebtedness was fully refunded. 

The refunding of the Turnpike debt was considered 

desirable in order to remove restrictive provisions within the 

existing bond· resolution, and essential to eliminate any 
questions concerning the use of Turnpike funds for such a 

purpose. 

~he State supported the sale of I-95 to the Authority 
to obtain $400 million to assist the funding of essential State 
servic·es for the fiscal period starting July 1, 1991. It was 

clearly stated that if legislation directing the Authority to 
purchase I-95 was adopted, the Authority not only would have to 
refinance its existing debt, but also would have to complete 

such refinancing quickly to have funds to pay for the 

acquisition of I-95. 

Although the legislation directing the Authority to 

purcha:s.e I-95 was not approved until June 30, 1991, the 
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administration and the Authority, in 

possible - approva 1, · started discuss ions 

refinancing in February and March 1991. 

anticipation of its 

concerning a possible 

Extensive discussions 

between the administration and the Authority continued through 

June. These .discussions concerned the details of the purchase 

agreement between the State and the Authority, the redrafting 

of the Authority's bond resolution, particularly the extent to 

which excess Authority funds could, or should, be .used for 

general State purposes, and the manner in which this extremely 

large refunding would be carried out. 

Because of these preparations, it was possibl~ for the 

Authority to adopt its Plan of Finance on July 2, 1991. The 

Authority's prompt action was key to the ultimate success of 

the program. 

The Turnpike Authority considered itself responsible 

for carrying out the refinancing that would be mandated by 

legislative action. It did not believe,. however, that it had 

sufficient expertise to undertake such a difficult assignment 

without the services of the well-qualified professional 

consultants and . the assistance of the -administration, 

particularly the Treasury Department. 

At the outset, the Authority reviewed the manner in 

which the 1984-' 87 refinancing had been carried out. It was 

our judgment that the procedures used during that refinancing 

could not, and should not, be utilized. 

The Authority concluded that it required the 

assistance of an indepen4ent financial adviser. It solicited 

requests for proposals from qualified firms, including Kidder 

Peabody & Co., Inc. -- Kidder Peabody -- the firm that had been 

providing such services to the Authority since 1987. The 

Authority provided that the firm selected as financial adviser 
/ 

would not be permitted to participate in any future financing 

in order to avoid a possible conflict of interest. This 

condition resulted in the resignation of Kidder Peabody and its 
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withdrawal 

think, has 

from consideration. 
been su.bmi tted here. 

Its letter of 

It indicates 
resignation, I 

that it would 
much rather prefer to participate as an underwriter. 

concerning the selection of Chase Securities 
Details 

and its 
resignation and replacement by Lazard Freres & Co. are set 
forth in prior Authority reports and are not repeated in this 

statement. I will come back to those materials shortly. 

Before retaining bond counsel and special tax counsel, 
the Authority also solicited requests for proposals from 

qualified firms. Moreover, the Authority decided not to 

concentrate the responsibility for implementing its refinanc~ng 

plan in the hands of a small, select group of underwriters. 

The newly designated financial adviser was directed to develop 

a proposed refinancing plan and to recommend how the 

refinancing should be implemented. The Authority directed the 

financial adviser to open the selection process to the entire 

financial community. The Authority .also insisted that 

underwriting firms based in New Jersey, and such firms that 

were owned by·women or minorities, be given a fair opportunity 

to be included in any proposed refinancing to the greatest 

extent possible consistent with a successful refinancing. 

The Authority established objectives to be achieved by 

the financial adviser. One objective was to reduce 

underwriting costs from the $57 million spent in 1984-'·87 to 

approximately $20 million. Remaining costs were to be held to 

about $6 mi Ilion. It was understood that the Authority would 
negotiate a fee substantially less than the $4.1 million spent 
for management and financial advisory services paid ·smith 
Barney ·in 1985-' 87. The actua 1 amount paid for such services 
would reflect the success of the financial adviser in achieving 

Authority objectives. 

RFPs were solicited from the entire underwriting 

community. A total of 49 proposals was received. The 11 firms 

that ":~equested to be assigned a role as senior manager were 
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interviewed. Based upon the recommendations submitted to the 

Authority- by its financial adviser, all 11 firms received a 

senior underwriting assignment. The Authority approved, 

without change, the financial adviser's recommendations for the 

refinancing and the underwriters' assignments at its public 
meeting on July 2, 1991. The Plan of Finance and the 
underwriter assignments were publicly set forth by the 

Authority and its financial adviser at that meeting. No 

expressed criticism or public disagreement with the Authority's 
actions concerning the_propo~ed underwriting were received. 

I will not burden the Committee members at this point 
with further details of the refinancing program. There are 
submitted with this statement for inclusion. in the public 

record of the Committee proceedings, the following documents -­

and there are four documents that I won't read from the 
statement. Copies have been given to ·all the members, and at 

an appropriate point we would request that Committee staff mark 

these for identification and place them into the record. 

In conclusion, the Authority undertook a mandated 

refinancing at a time not of its choosing, and at the direction 

of the State's highest policymakers -- the Governor and the 
Legislature. It is our belief that we handled this assignment 
resppnsibly and successfully. 

At the time that the Plan of Finance was adopted, the 
opinion of most knowledgeable observers was that the Authority 
would be fortunate if the refinancing did not increase debt 
service costs. In fact, the Authority reduced the debt service 
costs on its existing debt by more than $260 million. 

When the refinancing was undertaken, in view of the 

downgrading of the State's credit rating at the same time, it 

was believed likely that the Author~ty's favorable bond rating 

would also be downgraded. The Authority was successful in 

maintaining its rating, which translated into more favorable 

prices for its bond sales. 
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By comparison with the 1984-'87 refirtancing, the 

Authority reduced i~suance costs by $40 million. We believe we 

conducted a proper and a successful refinancing. 
I would be pleased at this time to answer any 

questions the Cammi ttee may have. I would also add that Mr. 
Watson is here with me this morning. Mr. Watson has 
familiarity with certain aspects of the refinancing that he can 

probably answer more appropriately than I. Mr. Watson does not 

have a separate s.t a tement to submit to the Commit tee, but we 

are both available for any questions the Committee may have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Goldberg, you indicated you came on in April of 

'90. 
MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Watson, when did you join the 

Turnpike Authority? 

financial 

over the 

MR. WATSON: May 1, 1990. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Your charge was to review the 

structure 

role of 

and suggest needed reforms, when taking 

Chairman. Mr. Goldberg, where did that 

direction come from specifically, the administration? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It did not come in a formal way, but 
the reality is that· I came about being requested to serve as 

Chairman because there was a clear difference of view between 

Governor Florio and the Authority and its Chairman at that 
time, Mr. Loveys. Mr. Loveys, if I remember correctly, 
resigned. There were public statements made by the Governor 
indicating that he had no confidence in the Authority's capital 
program._ There was a proposed toll increase. There was a 

series of questions that the Governor and the administration 

raised publicly at that time as to whether a toll increase was 

needed and, if so, the size of the toll increase. 

So, when I took over, it was clear, although it was 

not ~;pressed in any specific manner, that the Authority 
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expected -- that the Governor or the administration expected 

the Authority to review i1;s programs, its capital program in 

particular, to review the proposal for a toll increase, and to 

report back. We spent ~ost of 1990 dealing with those issues. 

The capital program was reviewed in detail. It was revised and 

structured into what we call a "Business Plan." 

In view of the problems that arose from not really 

priori ti zing their program and proceeding in an orderly 

fashion, we structured the program over a 10-year period. We 

separated it into two tiers; Tier 1 being those projects which 

were buildable, permitted, or that· we were confident could .be 

permitted and could be constructed within a five-year period. 

The second tier, or the Tier 2 programs for the remaining 

five-year period, were those projects that the Authority would 

review and consider for possible future construction. The only 

funds committed to those projects, however, would be funds for 

study and the work necessary to prepare those projects for 

approval. And that is the process we have followed through the 

past four years. 

Having restructured the program, we then proceeded to 

the issue of the need for a toll increase. The members of the 

Authority concluded, without any question, that something had 

to be done with regard to increasing tolls. I alluded to the 

problems that had already occurred because scheduled toll 

increases had not occurred as had originally been committed by 

the Authority. There was a growing gap between revenues and 

expenses. The debt service schedule was increasing in size. 

We went through that in considerable detail. We went through a 

series of public briefings before we went into actual public 

hearings, and that process culminated in the adoption of a 

revised toll schedule in January of 1991. 

So those were the activities we engaged in for the 

first nine months that I was Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: A very busy time. 
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MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

-ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You were asked to be Chairman of 

the Turnpike Authority by whom? 

MR. GOLDBERG: By Governor Florio. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: It came directly from the Governor? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Directly by the Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: In· communicating your developments 

as they took place in the Authority in refinancing, who was it 

in the administration that you worked with? 

MR. GOLDBERG: During 1990-- Well, first of all, the 

Governor's Office has had, for a number of years -- and stjll 

.has--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: No, specifically a name, Mr. 

Goldberg, is what I am looking for. My question is, then, 

maybe more specifically, did Treasurer Berman work with you on 

the refinancing? Was it his initiation of the refinancing? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, I am a little-- I am not sure 

what you-- Are you talking now about the refinancing, or are 

you talking about the activities during the--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The 1991 refinancing. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Okay. In the 1991 refinancing, that 

was. really a group effort. It was not a matter of reporting to 

any one individual. There was a series of meetings and 

conferences, some of which involved me, some of which involved 

staff and our consulting group. Those conferences included, in 

almost every instance, representatives of the Treasury 

Department, representatives of the Department of 

Transportation, representatives, on occasion, of the Governor's 

Office itself, larg~ly through Mr. Van Horn's office. He also 

included representatives of the Attorney General's Office~ 

The process was a continuing process. It was not 

necessary, on most occasions, to have individual conversations 

with anybody either in the Governor's Office or the Treasurer's 

·, . 
. •' 
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Office, but I would periodically talk with Treasurer Berman as 

the matt&rs proceeded. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Goldberg, did Treasurer Berman 

suggest the refinancing? 

MR .. GOLDBERG: No. The refinancing was something that 

the Authority insisted upon, I insisted upon, as we proceeded 
, ~ 

on the administration's proposal that the Authority use a 

portion of its resources to purchase a State asset at the 

outset. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You're saying that the idea of 

refinancing was not initiated by the administration? It was 

not suggested or directed by Treasurer Berman or anyone .else in 

the administration; that it was the Authority's--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, you're asking a series of 

questions. Let me try to separate them out. 

There were discussions from the time that the 

administration raised the possibility of the Authority 

purchasing 1~95 that focused on the refinancing. From the 

outset, my position was that if the Authority were going to 

. take a portion of ·its assets, that in order to be able to do 

this without any significant regal question, in my opinion we 

would have to refinance. That opinion~ although it was not 

initially shared by the Treasury Department, ultimately, I 

think, became commonly agreed upon between the administ·ration 

and the Authority. 

At the outset, there were--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So was the-- Excuse me. 

MR. GOi,DBERG: Let me just finish. At the outset, 

there were-- The Attorney General's Office initially was 

exploring whether our existing bond covenants and indentures 

could be interpreted to allow us to proceed without a 

refinancing. My position was that regardless of what the 

lawyers might conclude, that as a matter of policy if the 

Authority was going to be asked to use a portion of its 
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borrowed funds for something that had clearly not been 

contempla-ted at the time the funds were originally borrowed, 

that the proper way to proceed would be by way of financing, 

and I insisted on that. 

I further insisted and I made this point in my 

statement -- that if the Authority was going to use its funds 

for its purposes, that would not be a decision that, in my 

opinion, was appropriate for the Authority to make on its own; 

that it would be willing to do that, and that I could support 

such a proposal -- and I did support such a proposal publicly 

-- but that we should not proceed to use Turnpike funds in that 

manner unless directed by the State's highest policymakers --­

the Governor and the Legislature. That is why it was necessary 

to pass legislation which directed the Authority 'to acquire 

I-95 and to pay an agreed upon price for it -- $100 million. 

that is how the refinancing was wrapped into the I-95 

transaction. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The idea to use the funds came 

from the administration? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: From whom in the administration? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, I don't know. There was an initial 

press. At one point, I had a brief 

the Governor, who advised me that the 

statement in the 

conversation with 

administration was 

consider whether 

proposal, and I--

considering such a proposal. He asked me to 

the Authority could cooperate 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: He, the Governor? 

MR. GOLDBERG: The Governor. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Personally asked you? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. I advised him 

on 

information, 

such a 

in that 

and that conversation that we would require more 

when we had more information, we would indicate whether the 
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Authority could support such a proposal or not, and he said, 

"Fine." 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I understand from your testimony 

here today that the Authority, in order to participate and 

support it, worked with the refinancing and made the decision 

that that, would have to be part of the package. In order to 

use the funds and . to have the Authority be comfortable with 

that process, ,it was your view that the refinancing must take 

place? 

MR . GOLDBERG : Well, they were separated out. The 

first decision, in my mind, was whether, as a matter of policy, 

the Authority would be supportive of such a proposal. In 

reviewing that, considering it at the Authority, and in my own 

personal' judgment, I concluded that if the State, given the 

financial condition it was in, wished the A!-!thority to use a 

portion of its funds for such a purpose, the acquisition of 

I-95, in my mind, could be in the best inferest of the 

Authority, as well as the administration. Therefore, I 

supported it and, in fact, recommended it to the Authority 

generally. 

That st6od separate and apart from how you then carry 

oµt such a proposal. On implementing that proposal from rtearly 

the outset, even though there was a lot of lawyering going on 

as to whether it could be done without refinancing, I very 

early on concluded that I would not be comfortable in 

proceeding with this kind of complex transaction unless we were 

backed up by a clean refinancing where I would not have to 

worry about somebody's interpretation of existing bond 

ind~ntures as to whether. what we were doing was legally 

permissible or not. 

That view, which originated, I think probably, with me 

but I think it was a view that quickly became common --- was 

a view that was pursued by the administration, with the 

Legislature. We had hearings, and in those hearings when I 
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submitted statements to both the Senate and the Assembly, I 

think we- made it very clear that if the State wanted the 

Authority to use funds for the I-95 acquisition; considering 

that proposal, they would have to understand that we would 

undertake a refinancing of the entire debt; that it was, in 

essence, somethin9 that included that as well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Let me back up for a minute, if I 

may, to a little bit of the history of the Turnpike Authority, 

which some of the senior members of this Committee will 

remember -- some of the debt issuance in the '80s. 

There were some proceeds, as we understood it, of some 

$800 million that was still around toward the end of the Kean 

administration. One of the proposals that was floated through 

our. Transportation Cammi ttees and through the Appropriations 

Cammi ttees was to divert those funds and use them for things 

other than the Turnpike I think, the circle bf 

transportation. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Circle of mobility, I think. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mobility? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: There was a pool, as I understood 

it, of about $800 million. Is that correct? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. There was a lot of talk. The $800 

million figure-- I don't know what that represents. I know 

that when I came in as Chairman, some of the first things I 

wanted to know were: Where do we stand with regard to the $2 

billion borrowing? What happened to the money? How much do we 

still have? How much have we spent? 

We conducted a special audit. It was done by Coopers 

Lybrand. Copies of this were publicly distributed at the time 

it was completed. That study indicated that of the $2 billion, 

approximately $240-some million had actually been used for 

construction. There was another $150 million that had been 

expended for activities in connection with the widening, but 
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$70 million of tbat was preparing detailed plans -- which we 

have on a shelf back at the Authority -- for the widening of 

the western spur, which never proceeded because it was 

coricluded that the environmental p~rmits would never be 

issued. So a good deal of the money that the Authority had 

borrowed in 1985 had not been expended in connection with that 

program. 
~ 

There was a program when we came into office; there 

was a capital program. It consisted primarily of the widening 

f~om Interchange SA to 9, which was actively under construction 

and has since been completed. The funds which were not 

expended, but were reserved for the widening that we are now 

doing from Interchange 11 to 14 and the southern mixing bowl, 

that area ~- that also had not been permitted when Mr. Watson 

and I came into office. There was an issue at the outset as to 

whether that part of the widening could be built or not. It 

was my position that since we had borrowed all these funds for 

widening, we were going to do everything we could to widen that 

section. Despite a lot of skepticism,. we, in fact, were 

ultimat~ly able to get that .p6rtion of the widening permitted, 

again, around February of 1991. 

So as we went through 1990 to determine what money we 

had, we determined that of the funds allocated to the portion 

of the widening which we could still proceed with, and the 

funds that had already been expended one way or another, we had 

approximately $400 million that, in our opinion, we could not 

use during the initial five-year period. I am not saying we 

couldn't have used the $400 million for Turnpike activities at 

some point, but in terms of what we were going to be able to 

actually get approved and under construction, we had from the 

borrowing enough to cover the five-year program that we thought 

we could put out, and we had an additional $400 million 

available. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So you treated these two pots of 

money --- if I may characterize it this way -- the old money 

during the Kean administration a·s something that could not be 

applied to the purchase of the Turnpike section up to the 

bridge, but that you could, with the _refinancing, legally buy 

that section of road out of the new money in the refinancing. 

MR. GOLDBERG: It was my view that we would not use 

the borrowing money to buy I-95. I didn't want to have a lot 

of talk with the lawyers as to what I might do under one kind 

of interpretation or what I might not do. My view was we would 

not use the money if we were proceeding under the origi~al 

indentur~,: that if there were going to be a requirement that 

the Authority expend $400 million for I-95, we would want new 

covenants that were key to the use of Turnpike funds for that 

specific use, and we would be willing to proceed under those 

circumstances. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Just two more questions on this 

point, and we will move on to other questions. 

Were you aware of a proposal, as you took over the 

chairmanship in 1990, by the previous administration and 

previous Authority leadership to pay $6 million a year for the 

maintenance of that stretch of road from the end of the 

Turnpike up to the George Washington Bridge? 

MR. GOLDBERG: For the State to pay $6 million a year? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: For the Turnpike Authority to pay 

the State $6 million and maintain it. 

MR. GOLDBERG: For I-95? 

. ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Yes. 

MR. GOLDBERG: There was no such agreement when I came 

into office. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: There was a proposal. 

MR. GOLDBERG: No, I don't think there was. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Y0u are not aware--
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MR. GOLDBERG: It was not a proposal that I recall. I 

don't kn~w about before I got there whether there was 

discussion or not, but from the time I arrived at the Turnpike 

until we got into the actual acquisition of I-95 itself, there 
was no discussion and no agreement that Turnpike funds would be 
used for maintaining the portion of I-95 which was maintained 
by the Department of Transportation. 

There was a requirement under the bond indentures 
enacted -- or adopted in 1984 through '87, that $12 million of 
Turnpike funds be paid annua1ly to the State of New Jersey and, 

in fact, the Authority has been paying to the State of New 

Jersey for its use as general revenues the amount of $12 

million since at least 1985, and we are, in fact, continuing to 
make those payments annually currently. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The takeover of that section of 
the interstate highway makes us ineligible for Federal funds. 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is not correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That is not correct? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is not correct. We are eligible; 
so long_as we do not put tolls ori it, we are eligible, and the 
law that passed--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So it is your view that we have 
not lost any Federal funding as a result of the takeover of 
that section? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, no, we have not lost-- As a matter 
of fact, as part of the agreement that was negotiated, because 
there is-- The section of I-95 that we took over is critical 
to the functioning of the Turnpike. It is the feed to the 

Turnpike,. Regardless of whether we were using State funds or 

Federal funds, the level of maintenance that the State could 

allocate to that section was below the level of maintenance 

that the Authority expends on its road. As a result, there is, 

and there was, an accrued backlog of improvements required on 
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that stretch of I-95. Mr. Watson is probably better on the 

numbers than I, but it was estimated at something like $150 

million--

MR. WATSON: In deferred maintenance. 

MR. GOLQBERG: In deferred maintenance. We went 

through an extended negotiation with the State -- the Authority 

did -- as to terms and conditions of our takeover of 95. One 

of the agreements we reached that I pursued vigorously was an 

agreement that the State would continue to provide f ram its 

Federal funds to us, the sum of -- what? 

MR. WATSON: Six million. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Six million dollars a year for a period 

of--

MR. WATSON: Five years. 

MR. GOLDBERG: For a period of five years. So not 

only did we not lose we, the State -- any Federal money, but 

of the Federal funds that continue to flow to New Jersey, there 

is an agreement between the State and the Turnpike Authority 

that a portion of those funds will be made available to the 

Authority to help pay for the deferred maintenance that had 

occurred in that stretch. 

Having said that, I wi 11 tel 1 you that the Authority 

is putting in substantially more than that to bring I-95 up to 

what we consider Turnpike standards~ In fact, I think anyone 

who compares the condi ton of that roadway before we took it 

over, which was in July of '92, and its condition now, it is in 

a vastly improved condition. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Did we pay too much for the road, 

then? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Who's "we"? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Did the Turnpike Authority pay too 

much to the State? It wasn't worth $400 million? 

MR. GOLDBE_RG: No, I wouldn. t say that. I think the 

Authority paid fair value. It was an issue that was talked 
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about at some length. It was a number that ultimately was 

agreed upon between· the administration and the Authority. If 

anything, I think potentially it was an acquisition by the 

Authority that is of extremely good value. At the present 

time, of course, you cannot place any tolls on that stretch of 

road. So there is a policy decision, largely coming from the 

Legislature and the administration, that in raising funds to 

pay for .the use of its facilities, the Authority should not 

impose any charge for the use of that stretch of the road. 

That is a policy that is in the law. So long as it stays in 

the law, it is a policy that must be adhered to. 

But let me just point out to you that the Authority is 

carrying out a widening program from 11 to the southern mixing 

bowl. It is a distance somewhat equivalent to the stretch of 

I-95 that we bought for $400 ~illion. That widening will give 

the Turnpike additional capacity of a single lane in each 

direction. That one lane in each direction will cost over $450 

million. So, in _my judgment, the Turnpike, in acqu1r1ng a 

facility that was an eight- or ten-lane facility for $400 

million, albeit it needed deferred maintenance attended to and 

so forth, was not an unrealistic price. 

If you· want to get back into the question of why buy 

something when you can't put tolls on it, those issues can be 

addressed, I guess, at some length, but it is going to be a 

very long hearing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: No, I didn't want to get into that 

point. Who determined the value at $400 million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It was discussed at length between the 

st~ffs of the Authority and the administration, plus 

consultants. They went through a series of calculations to 

justify what would be an appropriate number. I think that 

after all the numbers were laid out, there was a consensus that 

while you could not state with precision the exact value of 

that property, $400 million was within the range of reason. As 
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I say, in my mind, very simplistically, if I am spending $4 50 

million fo get an additional lane in each direction, I wasn't 

overextending the Authority in acquiring a critical feeder road 

for $400 million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So the value of $400 mi Ilion-­

Was that figure established and then the figures developed to 

support it, or vice versa? 

MR . GOLDBERG : I think we started out the 
administration started out -- looking for something that had a 

value of at least $400 million. So the $400 million figure was 

a number that the administration, for its now purposes, you 

know, had fixed as an amount that it would seek from the 

Authority. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That was from Treasurer Berman? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It's hard to say. It was from the 

administration. I mean, there was a whole group there. I had 

no discussions at the outset with anyone who said, "We want 

$400 million. How do we work it out?" or anything like that. 

I don't know who fixed the number, whether it was Berman, 

whether it was someone on his staff, whether it was someone--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: But it was fixed by the 

administration? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It was fixed by the administration. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: All right. 

Mr. Lance, you had a point of order or a question? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Yes, a question relating to 

something you said, Mr. Goldberg. The $12 million that the 

Turnpike Authority contributes annually to the State Treasury, 

is that -related to the law enforcement responsibilities on the 

Turnpike? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No, no. Over the years, the State has 

made policy decisions as to what the Authority's obligation is 

to its parent. After all, the Authority is a creation of the 

State. It is controlled by the laws that· the Legislature 
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passes and by the administrati~n. During negotiations that 

predate ~e, going back at least into the '80s, a deci~ion was 

made that the Authority ought to be helpful to the State, at 

least to the tune of $12 mi 11 ion. That got codified in the 

trust indentures that were written back in '85. So it was now 
more than just, you know, a preference of the State. It became 
part of the cash flow obligations of the Authority. 

_.That requirement of a payment of $12 million a year 

is, again, now tecodified in the bond indentures of the 
Authority. So in our documents which dictate what happens to 
the revenues of the Authdrity, very early on in_the cash flow 

sequence, we are obligated to pay over to the State annually 

$12 million. The $12 million is a payment to the State. It 
has nothing to do with our expenses as far as the State Police 
are concerned. We expend annually something like $18 million 
for the cost of maintaining that, and periodically we get 
calculations from- the State that suggest that we should pay 

more. 

So we end up discussing that, and we tend to end up 

paying more. We have a new administration coming in and, you 
know, if the new administration would be content with less from 

the Authority, we could probably recalculate some of these 
amounts. My experience has been that no administration comes 
in and wants less from the Authority. Now this is a new w_orld, 

and one never knows. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I am not suggesting that. I just 

wanted to know whether the $12 mi 11 ion was related to State 
Police or law enforcement. I recognize that it wasn't beg~n in 

1990, Mr. Goldberg. It was begun sometime in the middle 1980s, 

or perhaps--

MR. GOLDBERG: It goes into the General Treasury. It 

is money that ultimately the Legislature, in its budget 

process, utilizes as part of its revenues. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I might add that the members of 

this Committee agreed with your analysis of why you c_ould not 
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use the money from the '84-'85 refinancing. You could not use 

those doflars because of the bond covenants on the $12 million 

payment to the State. To use those dollars would have been a 

violation of those bond covenants, and I agree with you that· 

the only way you could have done the $400 million was to 

refinance. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I never really concluded-- I didn't 

come to the lawyers' answer. My view was that this was not the 

kind of procedure that you want to do by a narrow 

interpretation that clearly would be, at the least, arguable. 

I mean, your view was. that it couldn't be done. I certainly 

didn't disagree with it, but my decision was not driven by a 

lawyer. review. My decision was driven by a policy view that 

that wasn't the right way to do it. the right way to do it 

was, if you want to use those moneys for a purpose totally 

different from what they were borrowed for, then the right way 

to do it was to refinance, and I didn't care what the lawyers 

said. I mean, if the lawyers had come back to me with ·an 

opinion that said, "You've got the right to do it," I still 

would have insisted on the refinancing. It was as simple as 

that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Lance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: To follow that up, Mr. Goldberg, 

under the existing covenants, the new covenants, would it be 

possible for there to be an additional purcha~e of a road, or 

does the ~ovenant apply exclusively to what occurred up at I-95? 

MR. GOLDBERG: The covenants have been restructured. 

I probably can't give you the definitive answer, but I can give 

you something that I hope is reasonably accurate. There is a 

cash flow $equencet and the funds go through a series of what 

sometimes are referred to as "pots." In other words, when 

money comes into the Authority, the first thing we have to use 

that money for is our operating costs. That comes ahead of 

everybody. Secondly, we have to pay debt service, and that 
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comes next. Third, we have to pay the State of New Jersey 12 

million bucks. You.'ve got a very high, you know, lien on our 

money for that. 
We then go into certain maintenance reserve 

maintenance accounts that ensure that ·the Authority has funds 
for those things that will maintain the integrity of the 
Authority itself. At some point you reach a point, if things 
are good, where you have dollars that are free. Those 
dollars-- As I recall the indentures generally, there is some 
flexibility as to what happens to them. At one point in the 
negotiations with the State, the State, in effect, wanted ~hat 

money to go, you know, pretty freely-- They wanted a pret.ty 

free hand with what happened to that money. 
My position was that I was not willing to support 

that. Where we ended up was with a situation where if you have 
surplus funds, those funds, in essence, can be diverted to 

either new projects or to other activities, but only with the 

active involvement of the Authority itself. Now, that isn't to 
say that it couldn't happen, but what it is to say is that the 
Authority at least is going to have some say in what happens to 
funds. 

I would also add that even though in theory funds in 
that category may be available for various uses, in the short 
run, certainly over the next, you know, short span of years, it 
is not likely that there will be any significant amount of 
money in there. Now what could come up is that if we had 
borrowed, as we did in '85, capital funds and, for some reason 
or another, we couldn't use them for the reasons we had 
contemplated, then those moneys would be freed up. But, unlike 
the '85 ·borrowing, where they borrowed at a point before they 

were really sure of what they could carry out or not, when we 

refinanced in '91-'92, we knew pretty well what we were going 

to be able to do. We have carried out the widening poject. We 
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will have completely contracted that project out, probably by 
-

March of this year. 

So the great bulk of the capital funds we have will, 

in fact, be spent for the purposes that we borrowed them for. 

We are not lfkely, therefore, to have big sum$ of money all of 

a sudden freed up because we will not be able to carry out the 

program. In fact, one of the major policy issues that is going 

to have to be dealt with at the Authority with the incoming 

administration over '94-'95, will be, you know, the decision as 

to whether the Authority proceeds with what I will call the 

"Tier 2 Project." We are studying, but we are not expending 

large amounts of money to design, projects that people have 

urged us to look at: Allied Junction, Route 92, the connection 

between the Turnpike Authority and the Expressway, being the 

three major ones. And there will be an issue early on as to 

whether those projects should be proceeded with and, if so, 

where are the· funds going to come from? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Funny how those projects follow a 

pot of money. 

Mr. Lance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Yes, through the Chair: Mr. 

Goldberg, I gather that no other portion of road has ever been 

sold to the Authority by the State before the I-95 situation. 

ls that accurate? 

MR. GOLDBERG_: I think that's accurate. The Highway 

Authority had a slightly different situation, and their history 

may have been a little different because when they were built, 

they were built-- The Highway Authortiy took over existing 

sections· of what was initially going to be a State highway 

project. But the Turnpike, I don't believe, ever purchased 

anything before.' 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Has any other portion of road been 

given to the Authority by the State? 
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MR. WATSON: No. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't think so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. ·Lance. 

Asse~blyman Watson, to be followed by Mr. Bagger . 
. ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you' Mr. Chairman. Mr. 

Chairman, I would like to address my q\,lestions to the Executive 
Director, Mr. Watson -~ and through you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Watson, at a previous hearing before this 

Committee, a Mr .. William Cobbs made some harsh statements about 
the Turnpike's refinancing, to which you have responded here 

today in a written presentation. I would just like to make 

sure that I understand all that you have presented here. 

Mr. Cobbs claimed that his firm is ranked as the 
largest . financial advisory firm, yet you claim he was not at 
the time of this refinancing. What was the firm's ranking at 

the time of your refinancing transaction? 

MR. -WATSON: Assemblyman Watson, we were looking at-­

The time frame when we were looking for financial advisers was 

early in the spring of 1991. When you look at a financial 

advisory•s history to get a track record, you normally look at 

the Securities Data inform~tion, which was available to us. 
That was in 1989 and 1990. At that time, Mr. Cobbs' firm was 
ranked eighth in the nation for financial advisory services in 
general. But what we were looking for was someone with 
expertise in transportation. Their strengths seemed to be in 
wastewater management -- in_ that area. They were not ranked in 
the top 10 at all in transportation financing, which was our 

emphasis. 

Ne also looked at 1990, because we did have that 

information available. Again, they were not ranked in 

transportation expertise at all in the top 10. I don't know 

what Mr. Cobbs' reference was. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Watson -- and through you, 

Mr. Chairman -- I just want to remind the Committee that this 

ranking is based solely on volume of business, and does not 

include any of the performance measures. Is that correct? 

MR. WATSON: That is my understanding on what 

Securities Data puts out, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Cobbs also claimed he was 

only given 24 hours notice to respond to your RFP at a meeting 

that he attended here, but you seem to be indicating that his 

watch must have stopped. Could you tell me about the time he 

said had elapsed before? 

MR. WATSON: The Authority began looki~g for a 

financial adviser in early March, and we developed a Request 

For Proposal and sent it to 12 firms, including Mr. Cobbs' 

Public Resources Advisory Group. We sent that out on March 7, 

1991. We gave each of the 12 firms one week to respond. I 

mean, that is normal. It may have been quick, but it is 

acceptable in the industry. 

We got a letter from Mr. Cobbs' firm on March 15 

saying that they would not propose. We got letters from others 

who said the same thing. We subsequently went through the 

process and selected another firm, Chase Securities. Chase 

Securities was selected as our financial adviser on March 28, 

and we were proceeding to go a long with Chase Securities· when 

they went through a reorganization. They notified us that they 

were getting out of the business, and the Authority had to 

again seek a new financial adviser. 

Since a little time had passed, we went back to the 

original· 12 proposers. We did not change the RFP at all; it 

was the same RFP. We asked if they were now interested in 

becoming a financial adviser, since Chase Securities had 

dropped out of the running. The Public Resources Advisory 

Group was one of the firms we went back to, along with Lazard 

Freres and Lamont Security Services, which is also a very top 
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firm. Each of them said they were interested. Now the 

response .to the RFP. is two months from the date it was issued. 

So Lazard Freres, a public resource advisory group in 

securities management, whom we interviewed on March 3, had the 

·RFP for two months. It only takes a very short time to prepare 

a RFP. 

The one day could _have been the fact that we called 

the three firms the day before to set up the interview. That 

may be Mr. Cobbs' reference, but he, along with all the 

proposers, had two months to prepare their RFPs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Through you, Mr. Chairman, in 

other words, this firm was treated equally as all the others 

were treated? 

MR. WATSON: Just like all the other firms, and 

handled the same way through the interview process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: The heart of the refinancing was 

the Authority's ability to save money. Lazard Freres received 

$2.27 million in fees. Mr. Cobbs claimed, before this 

Committee, that he could have done the work for $200, 000 and 

$300~000 -- or $300,000. 

In your opinion, could Mr. Cobbs' firm have done the 

same work as Lazard Freres did, for the smaller amount? 

MR. WATSON: In my opinion, no. Two or three hundred 

thousand dollars translates into about 15 cents per $1000 

bond. The average running rate for a $1000 per bond issue that 

we have been able to discover runs around $1.00, $1.25, $1.50. 

Two or three hundred thousand dollars translates into 15 

cents. The firm quickly would go broke. 

I think where the difference comes is in understanding 

the scope of what we were asking them to do. We were asking 

them to be a financial adviser, not run the underwriting. 

p%otess, which had not even been determined that we would do in 

March. Each of the firms were given a clear understanding that 

the amount of money the Authority was willing to pay for 
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routine financial advisory services which is primarily 
running c-omputer runs to make calculations on various scenarios 
as to what would be your financial condition if you did this or 

that-- You are buying basically computer time and expertise in 
that area, and also some advice on various scenarios of 
refinancing. Fifty thousand dollars was our cap, and all firms 
that we interviewed understood that. Mr. Cobbs' firm 
understood it. His proposal clearly indicated it. Where the 
$200,000 or $300,000 comes from, I don't know. Mr. Cobbs 
indicated he called someone at the Turnpike by telephone. We 
checked every record that we have at the Turnpike. No such 
call was ever received. If he had made the call, I can tell 
you this: We would not have accepted it. We do not accept 
proposals on the telephone. I don't know any reputable 
organization that does. We accept all proposals in writing. 
So if he made the call and said what he said, we never got it. 
It was meaningle•s. 

So the $200,000 or $300,000 we cannot put any 
credibility on. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: In my recollection, when Mr. 
Cobbs was here-- Of course, our good Assemblyman, Mr. Lance -­
ano I have high respect for Mr. Lance stated at that 
particular time that this company was one of the finest in the 
country and had a very high rating. I don• t recall, and I 
cannot quote verbatim, Mr. Lance, but I got out of the 
conversation that they were very high in their rating here in 
the country with regard to this refinancing situation. When 
Mr. Cobbs was making his statement, in the beginning he said, I 
think, that this could have been done for $300,000 or $400,000, 
and then later on he began to read further down, and said, "No, 

I must change that. Maybe we could have done it for $200,000 

or'$300,000." 

It seems as though he did not understand fully what he 
was giving as an answer to what we had proposed in your 

proposal. 
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MR. WATSON: It appears so; I am not sure. They are a 

good firi. I don't Mant to give you the impression that they 

are not a good firm. They are a good firm. We would not have 
sent them a proposal if they hadn't been a good firm. They 
were one of the top firms in the country at that time. Their 
ex.pertise was not in transportation. That is my point. That 
is what we were looking for. The RFP was very clear on what we 
were looking for. Our dollar value for financial advisory 
services was very clear. 

In fact, for the first year of Lazard's appointment as 
financial adviser -- since we selected them in May, they dnly 
worked part of a year -- it was $30, 000. That .is what we would 
have paid, basically, any financial adviser for the type of 

service we were asking them to do. Keeping in mind, as 
Chairman Goldberg said, the Authority didn't make a decision 
we're talking March '91-- The Authority didn't make a decision 
to go on with the financing until the Legislature required the 
I-95 purchase, and the Authority adopted a plan of finance in 
July of • 91. So there was nothing available on which anyone 
could have made an estimate of what it would cost to do a major 
restructuring and to manage it. It simply wasn't available. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Director Watson, Chase Securities 
was an expert in transportation? 

MR. WATSON: Yes. Chase Securities was a well-known 
firm, . and they had some transportation expertise, along with 
all of the other firms -- some of the other. firms we looked at. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Assemblyman Watson? . 
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Through you, Mr .. Chairman, the 

reason for my line of questioning is that I want to be fair 

also to Mr. Cobbs. I think now, and it is our understanding, 
that he didn't fully.understand what he was giving his figures 
on and, therefore, he was way out of line. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Kavanaugh, on a poin~ here? 
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MR. WATSON: I don't know what he understood. I can 

tell you 1:hat my response is basically what I have said. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Watson -- through you, Mr. 

Chairman -- regarding Cobbs and experience, looking at the RFP 

that you received, they state Turnpike experience; they state 

State experience. They worked the New Hampshire Turnpike 

system, the Oklahoma Turnpike Authority, the State of . 

Connecticut, Alabama, and also the New Jersey Highway Authority 

from '84 and '86 financing. 

I think maybe the numbers and the questions that are 

being asked, or were prepared to be asked either by Mr. Watson 

or other members, are somewhat· confusing. Now, this RFP which 

I have before me-- This is an RFP, is that correct? 

MR. WATSON: That is. correct. That is the one they 

submitted. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Now, they originally said no. 

MR. WATSON: They originally did, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Then after Chase pulled out as 

the financial adviser, you called and asked for a response 

within two days. Is that correct? 

MR. WATSON: Yes. We asked would they be interested 

in an interview, not only them, but two others. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Through you, Mr. Chairman, 

along with an RFP? 

MR. WATSON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: It seems to me, not being. an 

expert in this area, that it would be somewhat enlightening to 

the members of the Committee that you say this could be put 

together. in two days, when initially they said they weren't 

going to give an RFP, then coming and asking for it. Yet that 

challenge was given to them, and that challenge was met. Is 

that correct? 

MR. WATSON: The challenge was met by them and by two 

other~·f i rms; keeping in mind that the RFP had not changed. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: But they hadn't responded to 

the original, or prepared an RFP originally. 

Going back to the experience, when we were talking 

about the experience of these companies, I think in all 

fairness we have to look and have to read in here -- and I 

don't want to have to read all of this into the record-- I do 

want to say that this could be made a part of the record, the 

former proposal submitted to the Turnpike Authority on May 2, 

because they have the: State of Alabama, Connecticut, New 

Hampshire, Montana, New York, Oklahoma, Commonwealth of 

Virginia, along with the Alabama Highway Authority, the New 

Jersey Highway Authority, the New . Hampshire Turnpike System, 

and the Oklahoma System. So they certainly could say that they 

are experts in this area. 

· I think, just to make sure that the record is clear 

and that we are not going to be castigating individuals, we 

should look at the record and also the time schedule that is 

going about. I personally--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Chairman, I-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Watson--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Kavanaugh, I thought you had 

a point of order. I didn't think that you were going to have 

your own line of questioning now. I think it is my turn to 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I am not questioning. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Do you have a point of order? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Yes. My point of order is 

that the purpose here-- I think that the concern we have as 

taxpayers and as legislators is: What happened during this 

bond transaction? Where did all this come from? I mean, if we 

are not castigating the Chairman, the Director-- I think what 

we are looking for, and what the public wants to know, is: Did 

somebody get rich on this deal? That is what I am concerned 

about. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Back to you, Assemblyman Watson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Well, Mr. Chairman, I think the 

information that was given by the Executive Director was the 

kind of information that was given to him through Securities 

Data. It is not your~-

MR. WATSON: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: All right. I want to say that 

for the record. 

Through you, Mr. Chairman, Mr. Watson, this is not the 

Turnpike's first refinancing, is it? 

MR. WATSON: No, it is not. 

ASSEMBLYMAN.WATSON: When was the last refinancing? 

MR. WATSON: Mr. Goldberg's statement pointed out that 

it was in the '84-'87 period. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: What were the total fees paid out 

connected to that refinancing in '84-'87? 

MR. WATSON: If you will refe.r to the Chairman's 

statement, there is a chart following page 2 that lists the 

dollar values as part of the financing of '84-'87. Do you see 

that chart, Assemblyman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes. 

MR. WATSON: Well, in 1984-'87, the underwriting 

remarketing fees were $57 million. The fee paid to the 

financial adviser -- which was Smith Barney for ·managing 

that underwriting, and also as financial adviser, as we 

understood it, was $4.1 million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: All right. There was a $57 

million underwriting_ fee. 

M.~. WATSON: For underwriters. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: And the total was $66,897,000? 

MR. WATSON: That is what our records show. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: That is your total. Now, the one 

who got the management fees was Smith Barney. 
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MR. WATSON: At the time, Smith Barney was the 

Authority-. s. financial adviser and also managed the underwriting 

process. 
ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Tell me, in your most recent 

refinancing, what was the total cost of the refinancing? 
MR. WATSON: As the chart shows, the total cost was 

$26 million. As the Chairman indicated, that was one of the 
objectives of this refinancing that the Commissioners had; to 
keep the refinancing costs, based on the history of '84-' 87, 

somewhere in the $20 million to $26 million ballpark, and that 
is what we did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Can you give me some kind 
through you, Mr. Chairman -- of comparison? Why was one $66 
million and your most recent one $26 million? What was the 

difference there, or what made the difference? 
j MR. WATSON: Well, you see, the differences are in the 

underwriting and the financial advisory fees, and primarily in 
the printing fees. The process itself was a closed process. 

We examined it very carefully. It wasn't an open process. It 
was limited to very_few underwriters. I think, ·1ooking at the 

history of that, that is why the Commissioners came up with the 
objectives they developed for this recent financing; that it 

was going to be open; that it was going to include every 

und~rwriter who was qualified to perform as an underwriter. I 
think that is why we received 49 proposals and all 49 were in 
the-underwriting process. 

I think it was a combination of a closed process 
versus an open process and the limited participation of the 

underwriting community. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Through you, Mr. Chairman, didn't 

one firm make about $30 million overall in the '84-'87 

refinancing? 

MR. WATSON: Well, the $57 million was divided up 

among a very few firms. I can't say for certain that one did 
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that, but there were very few firms which divided up the $57 

million. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Didn't Smith Barney make about 

$30 million altogether on this? 

MR. .WATSON: I don't rec a 11 the exact number, but it 

is somewhere in that ballpark. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Excuse me. Mr. Watson, in your 

opinion, the market had nothing to do with the margins? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, no. These costs ·are not 

market-driven costs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Is that right? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That's right. Let me put it this way: 

We did not undertake to do an investigation of the '84-' 87 

costs. What we undertook was to examine what occurred and 

understand the costs. To determine the reason for the amount 

that the Authority paid back in '84-'87 would have required a 

great deal of time and energy that we did not corruni t to this. 

Beyond this, it was my judgment, shared in by the discussions I 

had with the Treasurer's Office, that the Authority, when it 

did the '84-' 87 financing, vastly overpaid for the activities 

that occurred. 

The question then was, you know, what would be an 

appropriate level of expense, and judgmentally, after 

discussions particularly within Treasury with the people they 

had who worked with the markets on a regular basis -- and the 

Authority does not work with the markets on a regular basis -­

it was decided that the financing that was done in '84-' 87 

could have been done for far less. So our endeavor, once we 

understood that we were likely to have to replicate the 

process, in broad terms, was to make sure that we reduced those 

costs as best we could. 

In doing that · -- and I do not hold myself out as an 

expert there is always a concern, because if all the 

interest is in making sure that these costs are low, 
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sophisticated underwriters have ways of making money in other 

ways. F~r example, the pricing of the bonds can be adjusted in 

a way where they can more than make up whatever they give away 

in these costs. So the objective was, on one hand, to hold th~ 

real costs of issuance down, at the same time not ending up 

f ind.ing that those costs were being shifted into an increased 

price that, in effect, just gave the same kind of payoff to the 

underwriting group, but in a different fashion. 

In pursuing this objective, the only mechanism that we 

came up with-- You know, maybe someone can come up with a 

better mechanism. I don't think I am going to have to . go 

through another one of these ref inancings, but someone else 

someday undoubtedly wi 11 have to. The only mechanism that we 

came up with that seemed to be likely to be effective was to 

utilize our financial adviser, and insist that the financial 

adviser extend every effort to produce an end result that 

combined to reduce financing costs, with a sale of the product 

-- and we had five sales, I guess -- at prices that in the 1 

market were real market prices. That was, in very simplistic 

terms~ the charge that we qave to Lazard~ Lazard understood at 

the outset that there was no way in which we were going to 

accept costs anything near what the Authority had incurred in 

the earlier financing. 

My directions, repeatedly to Lazard, were that their 

fee would ride on, you know, the end product. If we had a 

successful underwriting, we would deal _with them fairly. We 

would compensate them in recognition of the results achieved. 

But if we didn • t have a successful financing in terms of the 

market price of the bonds and in terms of the underwriting, 

they should not expect their compensation to be, you know, 

anything beyond a certain level. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I think we will get right into 

that. 

Mr. Bagger? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I have not finished yet . 

.ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Watson, respectfully, would 

you mi.nd suspending questions at this point for Mr. Bagger? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Fine. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Then I will come right back to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you. 

Mr. Bagger? 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: May I ask what the basis is for 

stopping the questioning by Assemblyman Watson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: It is a respectful request from 

the Chairman because the one particular member has a ti~e 

constraint and would like to ask a few questions prior to his 

departure. Then I will come right back to Assemblyman Watson. 

I appreciate the courtesy. Thank you, Assemblyman 

Watson. 

Mr. Bagger? 

ASSEMBLYMAN BAGGER: I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman, 

but since I have to leave, Assemblyman Lance will ask my 

questions. I am happy to yield to the Minority Budget Officer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Is Assemblyman Lance similarly 

under a scheduling conflict? (no response) Then allow 

Assemblyman Watson to finish his questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: He clearly stated, Mr. Smith, 

that he is yielding to the Minority Budget Officer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I have just been deputized, since 

Richard has to leave, Bob. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Very good. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Go ahead, Assemblyman Watson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. 

Mr. Watson, I just want to say that it is my feeling 

that even if the market was, at that particular time, a part of 

what we are dealing with here today as far as the questions are 
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concerned, I don't feel -- I don't feel -- that it would have 

meant an _over 100 percent increase· in the tot a 1 of this dea 1 

that was made in '84-'87. 

MR. WATSON: As the Chairman said, Assemblyman Watson, 

we did not go into that thorough an investigation. These are 

the numbers as they occurred. It appeared to us that it was 

excessive. The Commissioners did not want to have that 

experience with the '91-'92 bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Through you, Mr. Chairman-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Chairman, just one point, 

and I hate to keep interrupting my dear fJ;iend, Assemblyman 

Watson. But I think it is clear, Mr. Watson-- We'll have to 

have number one and number two -- Assemblyman Watson and Mr. 

Watson. 

the 

Mr. Executive Director, in 

resetting of interest rates 

1985, isn • t it true that 

until these bonds were 

converted to fixed rate bonds took a lot.of energy, time, and 

effort? I mean, you weren't there, but it was continuous 

remarketing work occurring during that entire period. Also, 

the bond market was significantly changed from that period to 

now. There is such competition, as you mentioned, with the 

numbers that are out there. So testimony in prior hearings! 

that we have had from individuals that support your position-­

They have all said that ·the comparison spreads are not 

appropriate. The analogy that somebody got a lot more then 

than now is not something that holds water. 

here. 

Goldberg? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Back to you, Assemblyman Watson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: . I think they may wish to respond 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Would you care to respond, Mr. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I find _it difficult to believe that 

anyone would seriously try to defend the level of expenditures 

that the ·Authority incurred in '84-' 87. I am not about to 
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argue what would have been the proper level, because that would 

take more time and energy than has been devoted to this issue, 

certainly, by me. 

But in my discussions with people who are familiar 

with that financing, I think there was a general recognition in 

the street that this was a very generous underwriting, where 

everyone who engaged in it did extremely well. Anyone who 

wants to argue that the Authority was getting a reasonable 

value at a $67 million price, of course, is free to do so. But 

I will tell you, as Chairman, that when I looked at those 

numbers, regardless of how you want to argue market conditions, 

complexity of · the deal, or whatever, there was no way that 

costs at that l•vel were going to be acceptable to me. This is 

where we proceeded from. 

Now, obviously, since we are sitting here talking 

about how much we spent, people can argue whether a much lesser 

amount -- $26 million -- was more than it would have to be. I 

don't know. I don't know how anyone can effectively, you know, 

determine what the bottom-line price is in an area which 

essentially is· a subjective area. There aren't, to my 

knowledge, precise pricing guidelines which give you absolute 

certainty. I do know that in discussing it~ particularly 

within the administration, that we tried to make a judgment as 

to what would be a realistic level of costs, and we struck, you 

know, what we thought were attainable objectives. We measured 

them against what we knew we had spent in '84-' 87, and we 

looked for very substantial reductions from those amounts. We 

ended up pretty well achieving those objectives. 

I took a great deal of satisfaction out of the fact 

that we could do essentially the same transaction, certainly in 

order of magnitude, and certainly in order of complexity, for 

$40 million less. It was our belief that we had this 

underwriting come in at a realistic level. What was also 

import."1t to us is what I alluded to before; that is, when the 
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bonds were marketed and they were priced, we were able to sell 

our issue at a price that was as good or better than any 

comparable issues that were being marketed at the same time. 

So we looked at, and we were satisfied that we achieved not 

only a substantial reduction in the financing costs, but that 

we achieved a pricing resu1t which was a true market price. 

Therefore, in our view, we had carried out the refinancing in 

an effective manner. 

In addition to that, even though there was great 

skepticism whether this refinancing could actually reduce debt 

service costs, we managed to reduce the cost on the existing 

debt _by about $260 million. Coupled together, we_ considered 

that an excellent result. If somebody wants to say, "Well, 

they could have done better," hopefully those people will have 

an opportunity someday to show it. But we did the best we 

could, and we thought we did an effective job. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You have cha~acterized -- I think 

Mr. Smith wanted to hop in on that softball that was ser~ed up 

characteriz~d the '84-'87 issue as very generous, and 

somehow the current issue as being other than very generous. 

One thing is different, however; that is, that the current one 

is the one that is under investigation. 

Mr. Smith? 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Just two quick questions in 

here. It would appear that these are comparably sized bond 

issues, yet--

MR. GOLDBERG: They are. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R 0 SMITH: --the one in • 84-. 87 cost the 

State of_ New Jersey taxpayers, through the Turnpike Authority, 

$40 mi Ilion more -- $26 mi 11 ion versus $67 mi I lion. I don• t 

think you can necessarily say there is a cause and effect 

relationship, but when we have reviewed the reports of the 

Election Law Enforcement Commission, from 1984 through 1989, 

the Republican State Committee received $1,448,057.26 from bond 
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underwriters and bond counsel. Now, I don't think that you c~n 

deal with whether there is a cause and effect- relationship, but 

if you are a member of the public, don't you have to view the 

. transaction with suspicion because at a time you were paying_ 

very pricey costs for these professional services, these 
campaign contributions of such enormity were coming into the 

party-in-control's coffers. 

I mean, doesn't that look bad? Isn't that really--
How can we solve that problem? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, look, I think the State is always 

going to be confronted with some question so long as people who 

are rendering services to public entities are also actively 

involved in the political process. I think that question is 

always going to be there. So there are proposals around on the 
Federal level, perhaps on the State level, which would either 

limit or prohibit the extent to which members of the 

underwr-iting community get involved in the.political process. 

There are important judgments to be made on those 

issues, but what I would like to emphasize is that we at the 

Authority who were, in effect, directed as part of our public 

responsibilities to carry out a refinancing, were not in a 

position to, you know, restructure the rules of political 

involvement. We had to carry out our financing regardless of 

what was permissible or considered acceptable in terms of 

political involvement. I guess that was certainly true back in 
'84-'87. 

i don't have any information that would indicate that 
in '84-' 87 decisions were made on the basis of the politic a 1 
activity of the underwriting community. I don't have any 
information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Right. 

MR . GOLDBERG : That isn't to say it didn't happen; 

that isn't to say it did happen. It was not an issue that I 

focusep. on. By the same token, I don't have any information 
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that would indicate that any of the decisions that were made in 

the •91-•g2 refin~ncing were affected by virtue of the 

political activity of any members of the underwriting 

community, or any of the underwriters who worked with the 

Authority or performed services for the Authority. I can tell 

this Committee that the judgments that the Authority made were 

made without regard to those issues. 

·Having said that, you know, the reality is that the 

underwriting community traditionally in New Jersey has been 

extremely active. It is there. I think there is a public 

reaction that questions the desirability of that practice .. I 

think that is something that the appropriate bodies, including 

the Legislature, could well address. From the standpoint of 

somebody who had the kind of responsibility I had as Chairman, 

life would ~robably be simpler if the issue of political 

activity of the people you are doing business with were 

eliminated. If it weren't there, it would be something less 

that you would have to worry about or deal with, or at least be 

concerned about in terms of misimpressions anyone would have. 

But we were not given th~t option. Our optiori was to 

carry out a refinancing at a time when it was considered, I 

guess, permissible for underwriters to do whatever they do. We 

did not get involved in that process. I personally did not do 

any campaign fund-raising from anybody who did business with 

the Turnpike during the period of time that we were dealing 

with the financing. As a matter of policy, I have tended to 

minimize any campaign activities that I have when I hold a 

position like that, because I don't know any way in which you 

can really avoid the misimpressions that can inevitably happen 

if you are heavily involved in campaign fund-raising. So I 

don't do it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Mulcahy, at 

the last hearing-- We asked him his opinion on that issue. It 

was his opinion that in light of the fact that the Legislature 
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already regulates and- prohibits campaign contributions from 

utilitie~ banks, insurance companies, and the casino industry, 

that if we so chose to put the same ~rohibition on underwriters 

and bond counsels, we would probably be doing a very good 

service to the State of New Jersey; that in effect, the 

decisions of these independent authorities to select bond 

counsels or underwriters would then not be challengable, at 

least in the minds of the public, because there is no quid pro 

quo. You are selecting the person who in your judgment is best 

able to provide those professional services to the Authority. 

Do you generally concur with Mr. Mulcahy's impression 

on that issue? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes, I would generally concur. Look, I 

think the members of this Committee, since you all run for 

office, understand this problem probably better than I, but the 

reality is that political contributions are a symptom of what 

you might characterize as a much bigger µisease. The disease 

is that in order to run for office in this day and age, it 

requires a lot of money, and that money has to be raised from 

somebody. We have not yet figured out an effective way to deal 

with the issue of: How do you finance campaigns? 

To the extent that you start to eli~inate areas where 

you can solicit funds, that is beneficial, particularly in 

terms of avoiding misimpressions about undue influence and the 

like. But it isn't- going to cure the dilemma of how in the 

world people who run for office are going to have sufficient 

funds ·to properly present themselves. 

I consider these highly sophisticated questions that I 

do not have quick, easy answers for. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I can give you a very easy answer 

to that question. The only thing that counts in the game of 

disclosure is disclosure. If the public understands where the 

fees where the conributions are coming from in full 

disclosure, the public then can make the judgments. The 
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problem is the process which we are investigating today. It is 

the process that has not been disclosed. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, I am not sure what you mean, that 

the "process has not been disclosed." I can tell you that, in 

contrast to what happened in '84-' 87, everything we did was 
public. There was disclosure at the time we did it. There was 
a full awareness as to who was receiving assignments. There 
was full disclosure as to how much p,eople were receiving for 

whatever services they performed. So in terms of the Authority 
disclosing what it was doing, I think we disclosed fully. 

In terms of disclosure of political contributions, the 
laws now require disclosure, and the skepticism and the 
distrust of the system, if anything, is growing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: It is rampant. 

MR. GOLDBERG: So I am not really the appropriate 
person to debate that issue of what is the right way to control 
political contributions. I don't hold myself out as an expert 
in that area. But as an observer I will tell you, I do not 
think the public feels that simply requiring public disclosure 

goes far enough. If you want to, you know, take issue with 
that, all right, but I don't think you are going to find that 
the public is satisfied simply with disclosing how much people 
pay, or contribute to political activitie. They are going to 
expect more. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Well, in looking at how the 
decisions were made, that is part of the process. 

Mr. Smith? 
ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Mr. Chairman, just so I 

understand the statement you made, was the statement you made a 

minute ago your personal opinion; that the only thing that is 

required with regard to the four hearings we have had here and 

the possible linkage of campaign contributions with the 
selection of bond counsel and underwriters is merely the 

disclosure of who makes contributions? 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: No, no. I was responding to Mr. 

Goldberg '.s rhetorical question about how do we find a way to 

finance campaigns. Where -is the money gbing to come from? And 

regardless of where the money comes from -- and I would hope it 

is not publicly financed through taxpayer dollars -- the most 

important thing is the disclosure aspect. 

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: As I understand it, this is the 

last hearing. Are we going to do anything about campaign 

contributions from bond counsels and bond underwriters? Are 

we, as a Committee, going to do anything? 

question. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That is a great rhetorica 1 

Mr. Watson, back to you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Well, most of that legislation is 

not in our Committee, so--

ASSEMBLYMAN R. SMITH: Well, it seems like we have had 

four hearings--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you have more questions, 

Assemblyman Watson, or is it--

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes, I do have just a few here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Okay. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: You know, Mr. Chairman, putting 

everyone's political job and speculation aside, so far what we 

can see and understand here today is that the last refinancing 

that was done, was done -at least by half of what it cost to 

refinance the '84-'87. That ·is a clear understanding -- less 

than half. So over the span of the refinancing that we just-­

What is the savings on that today over the life of the bonds? 

MR. WATSON: over the life of the bonds? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Yes. 

MR. WATSON: It is approximately $260 million in 

reduced debt service over the life of the bonds. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: What was the -~ if I may interrupt 

you, Assemblyman Watson amount of debt prior to the 

refinancing? 
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MR. GOLDBERG: Prior to the refinancing, it was $2. 5 

billion. _It is now ·approximately $2.9 billion. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So we went up $400 million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Approximately. 

ASSE~BLYMAN KAMIN: . Interesting. That is a great 
number -- the $400 million difference. 

Go ahead, Assemblyman Watso~. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Through you, Mr. Chairman, Mr.· 

Watson, do you think that Lazard Freres, or any other firm 

involved in this transaction, received excessive fees to which 

their work would not have entitled them? 

MR. WATSON: What Lazard Freres received was a 

negotiated fee that represented the accomplishment of the 

objectives that the Commissioners had laid out for them to 

accomplish, in which it was made very clear that their 

performance was going to be judged upon that accomplishment. 

They kept us at our .A bond rating, whi~h was something the 

Commissioners wanted to obtain; they saved $260 million over 

the life of the bonds, which is something we wanted to 

accomplish; and they kept the financing costs $40 million less 

than the previous financing, all major objectives that the 

Commissioners were very interested in achieving. The 

negotiated fee reflects that satisfactory performance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you. 

Through you, Mr. Chairman, do you have any regrets 

with regard to the last refinancing, from your perspective? 

MR. WATSON:. Not at all. We were given a major 

responsibility to accomplish a major task. We did it within a 

very short time frame. The time frame was dictated, in my 

judgment, by the sale of Interstate 95 and the requirement that 

it be done within -- before the end of the State fiscal year. 

That time constraint was met. It was a complicated refinancing 

and, in my judgment, it was done very well and in the public··s 
interest. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Thank you . 

.Mr. Chairman? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Yes? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: What we have so far gathered 

here, as far .as our information is concerrted, is that the last 

refinancing was less than $40 million from the financing of 

'84-'87. Just as a statement, Mr. Chairman, it seems as 

though, from my perspective, that we have probably chosen the 

wrong investigation here, as far as the refinancing is 

conce~ned. Maybe we should have taken a look at the '84-'87. 

We probably would have gotten more out of that than what we are 

getting out here today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Perhaps you may want to suggest 

that to Attorney General Janet Reno. 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Wel 1, you know' this here, Mr. 

Chairman and we don't want to get into a debate on this--

It seems as though the answers we have gotten today have been 

good, clear-cut answers to what they have done. We can see 

here, point blank, what has been saved and what has happened. 

I have yet to hear any discussion with regard to coming up with 

the kind of figures as was done in the i84-'87, which was more 

than 100 percent that we are dealing with here. You have done 

the same thing for $40 million less. It looks as though we 

have 6hosen the wrong refinancing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Assemblyman Watson, respectfully, 

I am not arguing over the fact that the marketplace responded 

to different conditions and, in fact, costs were reduced for 

this most current issue. We did not initiate the 

investigations. That was done by other interested groups, like 

the Securities and Exchange Commission; like the National 

Association of Securities Dealers; like the Municipal 

Securities Rule-Making Board. So we didn't set the ground 

rules for this, or the table. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: I am not pointing the blame, Mr. 

Chairman._ 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Let me now go, if I may-­

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Mr. Cha·i rman:, yes, but I am not 

pointing the blame. The thing that I am saying is that maybe 

if we are very serious about what we are doing here today, we 

would request, through the Chairman, to at least have a hearing 

on that to find out just where these excessive fees were 

charged. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Assemblywoman Smith? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Goldberg, Chairman, sir, the bonds that were 

issued in previous years, what lifetime did t~ey have? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't recall. They are probably 

30-year bonds, but I don't remember. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: The new bonds that were 

issued, what lifetime--

MR . GOLDBERG : I think they are also 30-year bonds. 

That is sort of the standard time period. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Well, I don't know, because I 

wasn't there and, I mean, we are not privy to that unless we 

really look into it, so I have just these few questions I would 

like to ask. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Sure. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: You refinanced-- You had 

approximately $400 million that you had reinvested and made 

money on because you didn't have the opportunity or a way to 

get it out t~ do the projects because of the denials of 

permitting and so forth and so on? 

MR. GOLDBERG: _No. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Isn't. that what you said 

before? 

MR . GOLDBERG : No, no. I may have misled you or 

confused you, but that isn't what I said. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: You said $200-and-some 

million was able to go out to contract, and the rest you 

couldn't expend in a timely fashion so it was there to reinvest. 

MR. GOLDBERG: What I said was that from the period --. 

from 1985 when the funds were borrowed until April of 1990 when 

we did the audit, of the $2 bi 11 ion that had been borrowed, 

less than $250 million was actually applied to construction 

contracts; and that, in fact, if we projected ahead five more 

years, from 1990 to 1995, and estimated as accurately as we 

could how ·much of that $2 billion we would be expending for 

construction and other project activities, that we would sti~l 

have from that original borrowing of $2 billion in 1985, 

approximately an additional $400 million that would not have 

been used through 1995. 

We, obviously, have expended from 1990 through 1995 

the bulk of the $2 billion borrowing, that remainder. That 

money has gone into a very.active construction program. So the 

$400 million ~igure that I mentioned earlier represented that 

amount of money that even after we ran a major construction 

effort for five years, we still would not get to the point 

where we would be using those funds for Turnpike capital 

projects. So we had $400 million in 1991 that we knew we would 

not be using. I mean, the fact that we had the money did not 

mean that we would have any effective way of applying that 

money to the proper capital projects. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Without saying it was a 

surplus, but, in effect, it was something you had in the back 

there as a cushion? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, what it really represented -­

what it meant is, the Authority, in 1985,. borrowed $2 bi 1 lion 

which, as a practical matter, it had no effective way of using 

over the next 10 years. You know, the decision to bor~ow $2 

billion, again, is a decision that is there historically. 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: But we are not talking about 

that now.- We are talking about--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, that is where the money comes 

from. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN j. SMITH: Okay, but we are talking 

about further down the road and how much was left, how much was 

made use of, how much was invested, and so forth and so on. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Forget-- The investment--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: I am looking at what was left 

there. You just told me yourself there was $150 million over a 

projection of so many years. 

MR. GOLDBERG: We had, from borrowed funds, more than 

$400 million in 1990. We had a great deal more than that. We 

had $1,300,000,000. Of that amount, we expected that we would 

utilize approximately $900 million, but that we would not 

expend the $1.3 billion. In short, the Authority had more 

money borrowed and available than we wer~ going to be able to 

use over a five-year period starting in 1990. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN· J. SMITH: Okay. Could you please 

refresh my memory: When was the decision to increase the 

tolls? When did that go into effect? 

MR. GOLDBERG: A toll increase occurred in March of 

1991. That was the first toll increase that the Authority 

approved since it borrowed the funds back in 1985, even -though 

when it borrowed the funds it had estimated that it would ha~e 

to increase tolls in '86, '90, and '92, but those things didn't 

happen. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Wel 1, my concern is that if 

they went out to increase the tolls before you increased and· 

redid the rebonding-- Well, actually you were looking at the 

rebondirig at the same time, according to what you sent out to 

us in '91. 
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MR. GOLDBERG: No. When we did the review of our 

capital program and· the review of our financial condition, the 

decision that a toll increase was essential was not at all 

related to the possibility of refinancing. It was driven by 

the fact that in 1985 the Authority had borrowed $2 billion 

that it had to pay back. It hadn't raised tolls since '85 to 
do anything about that increased cost, other than this .. For a 

short period of time -- five years -- it was possible to make 
money on borrowing. In short, you could borrow $2 billion. 
You could then take that cash and you could go and~ invest it 

and make-~ Since we sell tax-exempt securities, we could take 

that money, and in a decent market we could make a profit on it. 

So the Authority did precisely that. It took that 

money and it made a profit on it called "arbitrage." We then 
took that income profit and we used that income prof it to avoid 

raising tolls, except that what was happening was, our revenue 

base was staying low -- our real revenue .base -~ and our cost 

base was climbing, and there was a growing gap between the 

dollars that were coming in from our tolls and what we were 

obligated to pay. Those years of making money on money came to 

an end in 1990, because the Congress, in 1986, changed the 

Federal tax laws. They said, "We are not going to permit that 

anymore." As a matter of fact--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: It was the Bradley/Gephardt bill. 
MR. GOLDBERG: Whatever. And the law now prohibits 

public agencies from making money off of borrowed money. 

Therefore, even though we may have funds available for 
investment purposes, we literally make not a dollar on those 
funds. Even though in theory in the marketplace we could, we 

are not legally permitted to do that. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Okay. Bottom line--

MR. GOLDBERG: Bottom line? I don't know, what bottom 

line? 
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Did you approach the 

administr~tion to sell the road and give them the $400 million, 

or did they approach you? I just need a clarific~tion of 

that. I think you answered it already. 

MR. GOLDBERG: The answer is very simple. The 

proposal that Turnpike funds be used to purchase I-95 

originated with the administration. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Had you any idea that you 

were going to redo your bonding? If this initiative was not 

proposed to you, would the Turnpike have gone out to rebid and 

to reissue its bonds -- . the way you were without the $.400 

million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is a possibility, because there 

had been some very limited general discussion about the 

desirability of refinancing at some point, because the feeling 

was that the trust indentures in the '85- • 87 borrowing were 

unduly restrictive. They certainly limiteO the extent to which 

you could change projects . and the extent to which funds might 

flow to the State of New Jersey. 

So, in abstract, there was some general discussion 

about a possible refinancing. The difference, however, was 

that we-"."' If we were going to refinance for those kinds of 

reasons, we would ·not have come to the decision to refinance 

unless we had concluded at the outset that we were going to do 

it in a market where we were sure that it was going to be· 

profitable to the Authority. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: It was a tough market, right. 

MR. GOLDBERG: When the decision was made by the 

Legislature and the Governor to do the I-95 transaction, we · 

were required to do a refinancing whether in our judgment, or 

in the judgment of our financial advisers, this was a good time 

to do it or not. That decision, in essence, had been the 

option of-- You know, deciding when you do it or not do it, 

that option was eliminated. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: It was driven by the budget. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: It was driven by the budget. 

MR. GOLDBERG: It was driven by the budget. That is 

exactly right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Assemblywoman Smith? 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Okay. So the bottom line is 

that there was a possibility, but a slim possibility, that you 

might have gone and--

MR. GOLDBERG: There was no real serious-­

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: There was no real need for 

it, unless you were going to expand your indebtedness and add 

the $400 million to it. 

MR. ·GOLDBERG: No, I would not say there was no real 

need for it. 

got to the 

There were arguments in f aver of it. 

point where those arguments were the 

We never 

focus of 

possible action, because as events transpired, the proposal for 

I-95 came along, and that, in effect, yo~ know, eliminated the 

other abstract possibility. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: In view of the fact that the 

bonds were issued for "X" amount of years and you are going to 

reissue bonds, maybe even at a better rate, with any luck in 

the world-- The marketplace has been good and bad in the last 

few years, and people do take advantage of that on investment. 

I understand that. 

The bottom line is, when you reinvest and you 

reextend, you extend the longevity in turn. Okay? So even 

though you may save a percentage, the money you spent over the 

length of time sometimes breaks you even, or you don't save any 

money at all because you extended the lifetime of the 

indebtedness. Is that a fact? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That can occur. It can occur either 

way. Either you can save money or you might not save money, 

depending on how--. 

57 



ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Well, at the same time, the 

people who handle it, they make the money -- the millions of 

dollars that were spent -- regardless of who shared the pot for 

their investment and their concern and their care, whether they 

were the broker that went out, like a real estate man. I 

called on this R. Ferris, the real estate agent who went out 

and got the brokers, and he got his fee for bringirig them in. 

It is like a Realtor going out and getting a mortgage rate of 1 

percent when they bring in ~x" amount of ddllars and they get 

their fee. Okay? I am equating it to that world so that the 

general public out there can understand it. 

I can understand the bonding world, and I--

MR. GOLDBERG: At this point, I am not sure I 

understand, so you--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: The bottom line is, had you 

not been approached to give the State $400 million, the chances 

are slight that you would have gone to rebond, unless the 

market were more viable and more amiable to save the Turnpike 

more money, because you extended your indebtedness. You maybe 

broke even, but at the same time there were people out there 

who made a heck of a lot of money, which they would not have 

made as the agents and the brokers had those bonds not gone out 

to sale. Is that not a fact? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, the difficulty I have is that you 

are not really asking a single question. You have given me a 

series of--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: The bottom line is-­

MR. GOLDBERG: But, look--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: I can understand it, and I am 

just a layperson that works in a bank. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, all right. Let me do the best I 

can. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: I'm not a lawyer or a bond 

person. 
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MR. GOLDBERG: If it_ is a question, I will try to 

answer it. If it is a statement, then you don't need anything 

from me. I am not sure what I am dealing with. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: I said, is 'it not a fact -­

all you have to do is say yes or no--

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: --that people would not have 

made all these millions of dollars for handling, had you not 

gone out and reinvested the money? 

MR. GOLDBERG: - If we had not-- It is not 

"reinvested." If we had not refinanced, we would not h~ve 

incurred--

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Okay, so it is "refinanced," 

instead of "reinvested"? Correct me. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Let me try to respond to your 

question. If we had not refinanced, we would not have incurred 

financing costs. If that is your question, that is the answer. 

ASSEMBLyWOMAN J. SMITH: Thank you for the answer, sir. 

That's all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Assemblywoman Smith. 

ASSEMBLYWOMAN J. SMITH: Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You mentioned that there was $1. 3 

billion, roughly, left over from the previous issue. 

MR. GOLDBERG: As of April 1990, there was, from the 

original $2 billion, approximately $1.3 billion that 

essentially had not been committed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: And that of that $1.3 billion, an 

agressive plan over five years would have been about· $900 

million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That's what we ultimately concluded. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So we had a cushion of about $400 

million in the old issue? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 

59 



ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: We went, taking the whole debt, 

retiring -it, refinancing -- taking the old $2.5 billion and 

expanding it to $2.9 billion, which added another $400 million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That sounds like $800 million to 

me. I only know that $400 million went to buy the road. What 

happened to the other $400 million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I'm not sure--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: We had $400 million-- With the 

exception of the Turnpike's purchase, that was the only thing 

that was different in your plans from '90 before you 

refirianced and after ·you refinanced. You had $400 million 

extra before the refinancing. You expanded the needs of the 

Turnpike Authority by an extra $400 million, which, at the 

time, was justified because we were buying the Turnpike 

section. What happened to the unused $400 million that was in 

the pot before refinancing? 

MR~. GOLDBERG: Well, 

actually used to call bonds. 

call amount. 

the $400 million we had was 

So we retired bonds with that 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Four hundred million? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I am not sure I understand your 

question beyond that point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I' 11 try it again. Was that the 

cost of the penalty for retiring the bonds from-­

MR. GOLDBERG: No, no. 

ASSEMBLYMAN. KAMIN: Okay. My question was -- as you 

testified before the Committee this morning -- there was about 

$1. 36 billion -- I think that was the number you gave us 

left over from the issuance of the '84-'87 period. And on an 

aggressive building schedule for the Turnpike, you were 

estimating to spend $900 million -- an aggressive five-year 

plan leaving $400 million as, let's say, discretionary 

funds. The idea to refinance came from the administration. It 
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was the legal op1n1on of your counselors that you could not use 

that $400- million, perhaps, ,that was left over, because of the 

bond covenants on the old bonds. 

MR. GOLDBERG: No, it was not based on any formal 

legal opinion~ I think I have already said that several times. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: But it was your opinion that you 

couldn't do it under current-- Yo~ couldn't use your current 
money to buy the extension·of the--

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't know where the lawyers 

ultimately would have ended up. What I think I said was, my 

position on refinancing was not based on technical legal 

opinions as to what could or could not be done under the 

existing indenture. My position was that if the decision was 

made, through legislation, that Turnpike money should be 

utilized for a purpose that was not origin-ally contemplated at 

the time of the '85 b9rrowing, that it would not be 
appropriate, as a matter of policy, to do that without a 

refinancing. 

There were others who would argue -- and I think you 

indicated that this is your belief -- that we could not have 

done it legally. All I am saying is, I didn't--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Right, because of the bond 

covenants. 

MR. GOLDBERG: --bother to get to that point. I guess 

I might have had to get to that point, but I made my decision 
short of that point. My decision was driven by my view, as 

Chairman of the Authority, that even if I had the right to do 
it legally, I did not think the Authority should do that, and 

that therefore if the policy decision- was going to be made to 

use Turnpike funds for such a purpose, it should be made with 

the understanding that the Authority would then undertake a 

refinancing. In making the decision on whether to buy I-95 or 

not, I wanted the Legislature to understand that if they made 

that decision, we were going to refinance. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: All right. I will pursue further 

my assessment of the situation. We have a pool of $400 million 

that was not, at the time -- prior to refinancing obligated 

then over the next five years. 

MR. _GOLDBERG: But it was money that was going to be 

utilized by the Turripike for Turnpike activities in the 

subsequent five-year period. Therefore, it was money that if 

we were going to use it for I-95 would not be available for the 

activities that the Turnpike would engage in, not in the next 

five years, but in the subsequent Tier 2 period. So the 

question on the $400 million was really an issue of cash flow. 

What we were saying was, from a cash flow standpoint, we were 

going to have $400 million that was not going 'to be drawn down 

for Turnpike activities before 1995. We were not saying that 

the $400 million would not be required or applied to the 

Turnpike's business plan. What we were talking about was 

simply a cash flow issue. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So it would be unfair to say that 

we borrowed $400 mi Ilion too much, rather than reissuing $2. 5 

billion? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It would not be correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: My question still i:emains: What 

happened to the $400 million? 

Mr. Lance? 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I am going to ask a series of 

questions, Mr. Goldberg, related to the selection of the 

financial adviser. We have covered that to some extent this 

morning, and I apologize for jumping around. 

MR. GOLDBERG: That's all right. , 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: It is my understanding that only 

four firms responded to the RFP, and that was because -- as you 

have explained -- they could not be involved further in the 

underwriting. So there were fewer firms than might have 

otherwise been the case. 
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MR . GOLDBERG : Yes. The answer to that is yes, but 
let me ju£t take a moment, if I may. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Certainly. 

MR. GOLDBERG: In '84-'87, the Authority combined 

responsibilities and focused it in a single underwriter. 

Therefore, the advice they were getting as to what to do and 
how to do it was coming from the same underwriter who 
ultimately was the lead underwriter in the transaction itself. 

That happens. I mean, as far as I understand, in the business 

it is permissible. It is not barred by anything that I know 

of. - Therefore, it is done from time to time by various public 

entities. 

When we were confronted at the outset of contemplating 

a possible refinancing, we at the Authority decided, as a 
matter· of policy, that we did not want to do that; that we 

thought it was important to get the best, most objective 

counseling and advice from a financial adviser as we could, and 
that one way of trying to ensure that we were getting objective 

advice, was to say to our adviser, "You are going to advise us, 

but you are not going to have an opportunity to participate in 

whatever you advise us to_do. You are not going to be able to 

benefit from that. To the extent that you are going to get 

compensated, you are going to get paid only for serving us, 

because you are not going to make any money out of the 

refinancing." 
Now, when we did that, what we found out very quickly 

was that the bulk of the underwriting community was not 
interested in serving as financial adviser. They preferred to 
seek to have an opportunity to participate in a future 

underwriting, if one occurred. The best example of that, I 

guess, was Kidder Peabody, which is a very fine, reputable 

firm, and which had been doing services as financial adviser 

for the Authority after the '84-'87 financing. When we 

undertjpok to solicit proposals-, we told Kidder they would be 
~ :')'· 
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considered, along with anyone else who wanted to apply. Kidder 

very quieky said that their preference would be to have the 

possibility of participating in the financing, and they 

resigned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I guess if a balance has to be 

struck, if they were permitted to engage in underwriting, you 

probably would have gotten more proposals, but yet it may not 

be the best operating procedure to permit--

MR. GOLDBERG: It would have taken away from us the 

objective that we were seeking; that is, trying to get the most 

honest, objective advice we could from a sophis~ica.ted 

adviser. One of the techniques, you . know, was to just say, 

"You are not going to be on both sides of this transaction. 

You are going to advise us; you are going to be out of the 

underwriting." 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: When Chase withdrew because -- as 

you have explained to us -- there was a restructuring and they 

had decided not to go forward with this type of work--

MR. GOLDBERG: Chase just went out of business. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: They went out of business. When 

they withdrew, you were faced with the prospect of having to 

hire a new financial adviser. Was either the Governor's Office 

or the Treasurer's Office involved in determining the list, or 

in actually choosing Lazard? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, they weren't involved in the list 

per se, because basically -- and Mr. Watson has talked about 

this, and he really did most of this-- But basically what we 

did, since we were caught .short and since we were now back to 

square one, you know, two months later with an issue that had a 

real time frame in it, we went back to the group that we had 

started out with. So there really weren't any discussions. We 

just went back to the group that initially had been solicited 

and had given us some idea as to whether they would or would 

not participate. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Lazard was not one of the original 

firms the- first time around? 

MR. GOLDBERG: They were solicited initially. 

Initially they indicated that they were not going to submit a 

proposal. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: That is what I meant. 

MR. GOLDBERG: But they were on the list. So when we 

had to reopen the question of who would serve as financial 

adviser, we went back, not only to the three remaining 

companies that had submitted proposals, but we went back to the 

others that were on the list. From that group, in addition to 

the three that had been considered back in March, we had 

several other firms that had indicated a willingness to be 

considered, including Lazard. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: So Lazar_d was not. the only one 

other than the three that had submitted proposals? 

MR. WATSON: Maybe I can help you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Certainly, Mr. Watson. 

MR. WATSON: We sent out proposals to 12 firms, 

including Lazard, which was in the group. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: This is the second time around? 

MR. WATSON: No, I am starting with the first time-­

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Oh. 

MR. WATSON: --the first time, back on March 7. We 

went through-- Four of them proposed. Lazard did not pr~pose, 

neither did the Public Resourc~ Advisory Group, which we talked 

about earlier, but -four did. Chase was selected through that 

process. They withdrew. Now we had to get back and get 

someone else. 

We went to the original group of 12. Four of them we 

had interviewed previously when we selected Chase, so we had 

inforrnation on three of the four. We didn't have to go back 

and interview them. We still had their information on file-. 

So we considered those three which had previously interviewed, 
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and we went out and sbught some from the remaining list, which 

included ~azard, th~ Public Resource Advisory Group, and Lamont 

Securities, I believe. We brought them in to interview because 
we had not interviewed them before. 

So from the information available to us on six firms-­
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Six? 
MR. WATSON:, Three that we had previously interviewed 

when Chase was selected, and three that we called back in and 
they agreed to come back. Considering those_ six that were 

before us, Lazard was selected. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: And the three additional ones . to_ 

the three that had submitted proposals, was there any 
involvement from either the Governor's Office or the 
Treasurer's Office to go back to those additional -- those new 
three, Lazard, and you said the others, Lamont and the Public 
Resource Advisory Group? 

MR. GOLDBERG: During this entire process we were in, 
I think, regular communication particularly with Treasury, much 
less so with the Governor's Office. First of all, we were 
leaning heavily on the Treasury Department for whatever 
expertise they had. This was not an area where the Authority 
had, in-house, any real expertise. We didn't consider this 
refinancing an activity that we were really particularly 
well-equipped to carry out by ourselves, without considerable 
assistance. The primary assistance that we were going to look 
to was a financial adviser, but by the same token, we tried to 
pick the brains and get the advice and counsel of the Treasury 
Department, because they do have in-house, you know, much 
greater expertise and more knowledgeable people. 

So throughout the entire process, including the 

initial selection and the ultimate selection of Lazard, there 

was, I think, a complete awareness at Treasury as to what was 

happening. When we were surprised by the withdrawal of Chase, 

I am sure ·1 had some conversations with the Treasury Department 
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that would include Berman, but would not be limited to Berman 

-- it would include people like Bob Lurie -- expressing the 

Authority's concern. We were caught short, and we were 

concerned about how to best proceed to get a replacement for 

the Chase firm. 

So Treasury, you know, knew as much about what was 

going on as we knew, because we were, you know, really talking 

together about how to best handle.this situation. The process 

that we went thro~gh, Mr. Watson has explained. As I recall it 

-- and I think it is in the documents we have provided--

MR. WATSON: Yes. 

MR. GOLDBERG: --the Authority, of course, meets as a 

rule only monthly. When the Chase situation happened, it was 

clear that we were not going to be able to deal with a 

replacement at our Apri 1 meeting. It was also clear that we 

were going to want to take some action before the·May meeting, 

which would be at the end of May. Our meetings tend to be at 

the end of the month. So as I reall, in ~he April meeting we 

did something different f rotn what we did back in March. In 

March, we went through the process-- The Executive Director 

came in with a recommendation that was presented to all of the 

members, and ·the members, you know, made the final decision 

based on the recommendations of staff and the Chairman. 

In the Apri 1 meeting, we were not prepared to make a 

recommendation. We didn't know who could possibly be 

selected. So I think the Authority, because of the limitations 

of time, authorized the Executive Director, with the approval 

of the Chairman, to handle a replacement, you know, 

subsequently to be confirmed at the May meeting by the 

Authority. And that is the process we went through. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Mr. Watson, did anyone in the 

Governor's Office or the Treasurer's Office 1 request that Lazard 

be put on the list--
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MR. WATSON: No. 

-ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: --or be selected? 

MR. WATSON: No, that is not my recollection at all. 

When we put the list together-- When the list was put 

together, it .was based on reputation-of-the-firms information, 

and I think the Treasurer's staff probably did get some input 

on names from the Treasurer• s. Office. I don't remember whether 

Lazard was on it or not, but I think some of the names did come 

from Treasury that we should look at, given their experience 

with financial advisory firms. So sbme of them did, but I do 

not know exactly which ones. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: We can ask the appropriate 

officials, but your best recollection is that perhaps you were 

given some names by the Treasurer's Office? 

MR. WATSON: Yes, as part of the input to the process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Is it your testimony that it is 

fair to say that Lazard may have been one of those names they 

gave? 

MR. WATSON: It could have been. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Was your interaction, Mr. Watson, 

basically with the Treasurer's Office, or was it with the 

Treasurer's Office and the Governor's Office? 

MR. WATSON: No, it was with Bob Lurie. He is the 

only person I ever spoke to, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Bob Lurie-- I can't recall at 

that time whether-- Was Mr. Salema in the government at that 

time? 

MR. WATSON: 

ASSEMBLYMAN 

I don't know. 

LANCE: He 

involvement with Mr. Salema? 

MR. WATSON: No. 

wasn't yet? You had no 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: One of the concerns that has been 

raised regarding Lazard is that it was involved in bonding in 
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Florida, and apparently there was great controversy regarding 

that. 

MR. GOLDBERG: In '91? 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: My understanding is that Florida 

ended up paying three times as much for _an $860 million bond 

issue in 1989 in which Lazard had been the lead underwriter. 

There was controiersy about the amount of money in Florida. As 

I understand it, it was 1989. You may not have known anything 

about that, and maybe my date is wrong. Did you, Mr. Watson, 

or you, Chairman Goldberg, know a~ything about Lazard and 

Florida at the time you were putting together the list and then 

ultimately selecting Lazard? 

MR. WATSON: No, I didn't. 

MR. GOLDBERG:. No, I didn't either. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: You have explained how your 

recollection differs from Mr. Cobbs'. Mr. Cobbs was here and 

Mr. Watson pointed out that I had asked bim several questions, 

and he said he telephoned you. But you explained already that· 

you have no recollection of that incident. You have gone 

through the records of the Authority and there is no indication 

that that telephone--

MlL WATSON: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: --call ever occurred. 

MR. GOLDBERG: It also just doesn't make sense. I 

mean, the Authority, from companies that it is considering for 

possible selection, does not solicit nor does it welcome nor 

does it consider appropriate for somebody to call up and start 

to volunteer pricing information over the phone, unless we are 

calling them to get -a confirmation. So I mean, it is not a 

procedure which would be a typical procedure that occurs. 

If someone wants to submit pricing information, there 

are ways to do it, and the RFP generally sets forth what you do 

or what you do not do. But it is not the ordinary course. 

69 



ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Is ·this the period where you were 

giving these firms two days to respond, .or not? 

MR. WATSON: Wel 1, let me go back over that again. We 

submitted the RFP to 12 firms, the same 12 you are talking 

about, on March 7, 1991. March 15, this particular firm -~ 

PRAG -- indicated they were not going to propose. That was, I 

think, the time frame we had asked everyone to respond within. 

They had about a week. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: That is the initial set? 

MR. WATSON: This is the initial set. 

propose; four did propose. 

Four did 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Oid the Cobbs firm reply to the 

second inquiry? 

MR. WATSON: Well, yes, they did after we contacted 

them, along with two other firms, once Chase withdrew. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Yes, sir. 

MR. WATSON: And I had gotten the authority from the 

Chairman and the Commissioners to continue the process, because 

now we were at the end of April and the next meeting was going 

to be in May. I was given, through a special resolution, the 

authority to continue the process. 

What we did, rather than go back out, issue a new RFP, 

and find different firms, was that we went back to the original 

12, talked --- had interviews information-- . Well, I won't go 

back over that, because I just covered it. 

ASSEMBL~N LANCE: Is it possible that Mr. Cobbs was 

responding by telephone to the time frame for the second 

proposals -- to the second set? 

MR. WATSON: On the one-day turnaround? It could have 

been -- it could have been but that would have been, you 

know-- The point I made in my testimony was that the RFP had 

never changed. It had been available since March 7, so two 

months had elapsed in which to respond. We didn · t think the 

day was out of line, particularly since two other firms were 
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able to accomplish the same thing,. It was a level playing 

field, as- far as we ~ere concerned. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I want to move on to some other 
areas. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Before you come off that point, if 

I might, Mr~ Lance--

Mr. Watson, you indicated the contact in the 
administration was Bob Lurie in the Treasurer's.Office. 

MR. WATSON: The contacts I had during that time were 
with Mr. Lurie, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN 
That is correct -- Bob Lurie. 
KAMIN: Was it the same, for 

part, with you, Mr. Goldberg? 

the most 

MR. GOLDBERG:· I think most of the day-to-day contact 

was with Lurie, but I am sure I had some conversations with 

Berman, as well. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: On the issues of selecting or 

proposing for your consideration professionals -- whether they 
be financial advisers, attorneys, or bond counsel, whatever it 

might be -- did Mr. Salema ever make suggestions to you, Mr. 

Watson? 

MR. WATSON: No, he never did. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Did he to YOU; Mr. Goldberg? 

MR. GOLDBER.G: I don't think Mr. Sa lema ever made any 

suggestions about underwriters at all. I don't .recall him 

making any suggestions with regard to any professionals, 
although I must say that during this period of time we were 
probably getting suggestions from, you know, various people, 

including the possibl~ participants themselves, for inclusion. 
So after 2 while who may have mentioned one name or not all 
sort of blurs in. But I have no recollection of Salema talking 

at all about the underwriting process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Or any professionals? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't have any recollection of him 

talkillV: about any professionals. I just don't have any 

recollection. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you have any recollection about 

any otheE person irt the administration, outside of Mr. Lurie, 

having made suggestions to the Commission for consideration of 

professional firms? 
MR. . GOLDBERG: I am sure that I had, you know, at 

least one conversation with Berman, where we probably went 
through the list of possible candidates for financial adviser. 
I don't rem~mber having any discussion with Berman about 

underwriters at all. But I do think with regard to the 
financial adviser, when we had to replace Chase, I have, you 

know, a general recollection that I talked to Berman and I 
expressed my concern that we were confronted with this 
unexpected development. r would assume that in that 
conversation we went through, you know, the names of the group 
we had. But I do not have any recollection of, you know, the 
discussion beyond this; that Treasury indicated that they would 
try ahd be as helpful as they could in guiding us through and 
ending up with a financial adviser, to the extent that they 

could tell us anything. 
I was constantly trying to make sure that if we were 

going to do something it made sense to them, because in the 
final analysis·, under the law, two individuals must approve, in 

writing, what the Authority does with the underwriting. The 
law bbligates both the Governor and the Treasurer to sign, you 

know, their approval. So we went to great lengths to make sure 
that the Treasurer was fully informed. I didn't go to great 
lengths to make su-re tbe Governor was fully informed, pretty 
much on the premise that if the Treasurer was okay, presumably 

the Governor was going to be okay. I really had no discussions 

with the Governor at all, on the assumption that they were not 
necessary, or, if they were necessary, I would hear that. I 
never heard it. 

what 

But with Berman, 

was happening, and 

I went through, 

I tried to get 

72 

from time to time, 

from him whatever 



thoughts he had. Because the one thing that I wanted to avoid, 

to the extent possible, was taking a course of action on the 

refinancing and find out, at some point, that the Treasurer was 

in disagreement and was not going to approve. Or, 

alternatively~ if he was in disagreement, that I understood 
what the disagreement was, so that we could move to address it 

and eliminate whatever question he might have. 

In fact,- during the process, the Authority took the 

initiative in the decision-making process and Treasury, 
basically, fed back to us, you know, their concurrence with 
what we ended up doing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Watson indicated that the 

suggestion for financial advisers came through Mr. Lurie. You 

are indicating that communications came through Mr. Berman. 

Was there any contact-- You indicated there was no contact 

with Mr. Salema with reference to professionals, with either 

you or Mr. Watson. 

MR. GOLDBERG: During the· time we were focusing on 

financial adviser, I don't recall any conversation with Mr. 

satema concerning the selection of the financial· adviser. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Other than those brought in the 

time frame, what contact did you have with Mr. Salema? When 

did he first contact you with suggestions? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I am not sure that Mr. Sa lema ever 

contacted me with suggestions. As a matter of fact, Mr. Salema 
had minimal, if any, involvement in this process. The people 
who were actively involved in the process were basically: Mr. 
Lurie, who was, like, the key liaison person from Treasury to 

us; and to a much lesser extent, Mr. Berman, who I would talk 

to periodically, largely, you know, to share together the 

questions that we were dealing with; and then people like Carl 

Van Horn, who from a policy standpoint was involved on behalf 

of the administration on a whole host of issues, like I-95 and 
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the like; and of course, from time to time, Commissioner Downs 

and his people at DOT. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So the only folks in the 

administration, up t6 this point in time today, who have spoken 

to you about. professionals, suggested names for consideration 
to be used by the Turnpike Authority, have been Mr. Lurie and 
Treasurer Berman? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. It would have been out of 
Treasury, I mean, one way or another. They are the only two-­
We had the bulk of the conversations with those two. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: 
from Treasurer Crane? 

Has there been any communication 

MR. GOLDBERG: He had no involvement. I think he was 
in the Legislature at that time. He would not be involved, and 
was not involved. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I am expanding the time frame up 
until now, since he replaced Treasurer Be.rman. Has there been 

communication from Treasurer Crane? 
MR. GOLDBERG: About what? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: About professionals that may work, 

or continue to do work for the Turnpike Authority. 
MR. GOLDBERG: No, there has been no communication on 

that at all. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you. 
Back to you, Mr. Lance. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: In any event, Lazard was chosen. 

Lazard had no prior experience in New Jersey? 
MR. GOLDBERG: · I don't think that is true, but· I am 

not sure~ Lazard, of all the firms we were talkirig about, was 

a firm that at least in terms of reputation was the one that I 
recognized to the greatest extent. Some of the firms we were 

talking about I never heard of. I knew nothing about them. 

Lazard was a firm that has, you know,· an outstanding reputation 

or certainly has had an outstanding reputation in the 
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underwriting community. But more than that, I was aware of the 

fact thab as one of.their senior members there was Felix Roaden 

(phonetic spelling), and Roaden had probably the outstanding 

reputation for dealing with difficult municipal refinancing 

issues through his involvement with, I think, the Mack 
Corporation in New York City. He certainly had what, in my 
mind, was the kind of expertise that few, if any firms could 
match. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Did you speak with him? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No, I never spoke with himi but the . 

fact that the Lazard firm had within it the kind of expertise 
that Mr. Roaden represented was a factor that I found, at the 
very least, comforting. It gave me the belief that this was a 
firm that was capable of dealing with the kind of complexities 

that the Turnpike would have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Even though evidently, based upon 

what we have discovered so far, there may have been a problem 
in Florida, although I am not sure of the time frame. You all 

were not aware of that? 

MR. GOLDBERG: We were not aware of that problem at 
the time we made the decision and, quite frankly, I don't 

believe 

Florida 

acted. 

months 

that whatever. difficulties Lazard may have had 

were a matter of public disclosure at the time 

I have done, obviously, some reading over the last 

as these reviews have gone on that has indicated, 

in 

we 
six 
you 

know, activities of different companies, not simply Lazard or 
others, in various ·states. I have seen reference to Florida. 
I don't know a great deal about it, but that was not a matter 
of an awareness on our part. I don't think it was public, but 
if somehow or other there had been some publicity on it in 

Florida, or wherever, it was not something that, at that point, 

we were aware of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Fair enough. 
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I would like to move on to another area, Mr. Chairman, 

if I might. You were in this difficult situation because the 

original firm had withdrawn and you had to get a new firm. Did 

any negotiations or discussions concerning Lazard' s fee take 
place when it was approved by the Board on May 30, 1991 -- as 

to what their fees would be? 
MR. WATSON: When we gave the recommendation for 

Lazard, that confirmation, because we had selected Lazard, I 
think, on May 2 or 3, somewhere in that time frame--

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Incidentally, Mr. Watson, have I 

been mispronouncing the name all these months? Do you not 
pronounce the "d" on the end Of it? 

MR. WATSON: Of Lazard? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE:· Yes. 
MR. WATSON: Yes. That's the way I say it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: With or without? 

MR. WATSON: With. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: With. 

MR. WATSON: The selection had been made of the Lazard 
firm this was the second time around following the 

resolution I got from the Commissioners prior to the May 
m~eting. At the May meeting, we recommended that Lazard be 
selected, and at that same meeting, as I recall, the resolution 

indicated that Lazard's fee should be a n~gotiated fee. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I have a documen_t that you have 

provided us. It is a memorandum to you from the Di rector of 
Law. It is dated May 15, 1991. In pertinent part, it states.: 
"The terms will remain for one year at a $50,000 annual cap for 
the services to be performed, except the cap will not apply in 

the event of a major financial restructuring or any other 

extraordinary financial transaction." Of course, that is what 
happened. 

MR. WATSON: Right. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: The hourly rate schedule for 
Lazard F~eres & Company is as follows: "Partners, $250; senior 
vice presidents, $200; vice presidents, $150; and associates, 

$125." Now that, I gather, would be for a major financial 
restructuring or other extraordinary event. 

MR. WATSON: No, no. That would have been for 
financial advisory services. The point was, if we got into an 
extraordinary refinancing, that cap would not apply 

subsequently, as we indicated, with the exception of a major 

refinancing in the memo, because it was moving then towards 
appearing to be a refinancing. So we were only paying-him when 

we hired him -- as of the effective date of May 30, b~t we 
interviewed him earlier than that-- It was for financial 
advisory services, with a cap of $50,000. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: So I have read this inaccurately. 
I had thought-- You are here to clear this up, and I am not 
accusing you of anything. I am just asking_ what the situation 

was. These hourly rates were toward the $50,000 cap? 

MR. WATSON: Exactly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: And not toward a major financial 

restructuring? 
MR. WATSON: Exactly right. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Let me just add, because I-- At the 

time that we were retaining Lazard for financial adviser and we 

were negotiating the hourly rate, my recollection is that 
Lazard was not comfortable with an hourly basis at all. They 
also ~aid they never charged, or it was not their practice to 
charge for their services on an hourly basis, and once more, 
they didn't have hourly rates for their senior members, because 
the members didn't-- You know, they were not like a law firm. 

They just did not bill on an hourly basis. 

We insisted that for a financial adviser, we had to 

strike some kind of an hourly rate. As I recall, they said, 

"Well,.,-you know, for our senior people we would charge a _rate 
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of $500, $600 an hour. We don't even know, but it would be a 

big number." We said, "Wel 1, that would - not be acceptable." 

If they were going to take the financial adviser's .· position, 

they would have to agree to hourly rates that would be more in 
line with what the Authority had approved in the past. We 
ended up with the rate structure we have, but in the process it 
was recognized by both the Authority and by Lazard that the 
understanding that was being approved for the financial adviser 
would not be applicable in the event that we undertook a major 
refinancing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Let ,me stop you there, Mr. 
Goldberg. That being the case, wa.s there anything in writing 

as to how compensation would occur for a major financial 
restructuring? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Not at that time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Is that because you were not at 
that point contemplating a major financial. restructuring? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No1 because at that time, quite 
frankly, I don't think that we at the Authority were fixed in 
our minds what the basis for compensation would be. I had an 
awareness that we had paid $4.1 million to Smith Barney, and I 
was determined that whatever we did with Lazard, it wasn • t 
going to be 6f that order or magnitude. But we had not, at the 
Authority, actually decided exactly how the compensation level 
would be fixed. 

It would be a negotiated figure. Lazard had indicated 
I 

that it was not an uncommon practice in the trade to be 
compensated based on a dollar a bond. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: What would that have been? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That would have been at least $2.5 

million. I indicated that we were not willing, or prepared, at 
this early point, to agree to any such arrangement. We left it 

open, with the understanding that compensation would be 

n~gotiated at some point, whether it would be right then or 
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shortly thereafter, because we had conversations periodically 

about compensation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Wouldn't it have _been pref et able 

to negotiate that earlier rather than later? 

MR. GOLDBERG: We 11, it depends on what your 

overriding objective was. I had made the determination that 

the one effective lever that I had for trying to make sure that 

Lazard expended the best possible effort, was to hold out both 

the prospect and the uncertainty as to what their compensation 

would be. If we had negotiated a fixed figure of any kind, it 

would have made it less effective in terms of trying to ensure 

that we were going to get the kind of determination and 

attention and commitment that I was hopeful we would get from 

Lazard. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: So that was a deliberate decision 

on your part not to negotiate? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It was my belief that the Authority 

could be better served by leaving open the amount of the 

ultimate compensation to a later point, because that, as I say, 

was going to be driven by the results. In my discussions with 

Lazard, we were telling Lazard what, in our minds, would be a 

successful refinancing. There were a variety of things, 

including: the substantial improvement on the financing costs; 

broadening the base of the underwriting community; ensuring the 

involvement of New Jersey-based firms; ensuring the involvement 

of firms owned by minorities and women; making sure that the 

securities were priced and sold at the best possible price; and 

so forth. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Couldn't that all have been -- I'm 

asking, I don't know this couldn't that all have been 

written in the contract; that you needed minority-based firms, 

that you needed women-owned firms, that you needed New Jersey 

firms? Could that not have been done up front? 
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MR. GOLDBERG: Sure. You could have put all of that 

into the~ contract,· but at some point in that contract you 

either then put in a number or basis for mechanically 

calculating a number, or you don't. 
What. I• m saying is, in my· mind, at that time, given 

the nature of what we were confronted with and trying to 
achieve, it would have been counterproductive for us to say, 
"And you are going to get pai.d 'X' dollars." I preferred to 
leave it that they would have to rely on the Authority being 

fair in negotiating a fee that properly reflected the value we 
received from their services. 

_proceeded on that basis. 

Ultimately, Lazard, you know, 

Lazard would have been very content to have worked out 
the number,· provided the number was of the scale they wanted. 
So at some point we were going to have to deal with that. My 
view was, I could better decide on behalf of the Authority, and 
I could recommend, and staff could recommend to the other 
members of the Authority, what would be appropriate 

compensation when w~ could see what had occurred and how Lazard 

had carried out the assignment. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Was that a decision, Mr. Goldberg, 

that you made in your capacity as the Chair, or was it a 
decision that the Board in total made, or in consultation with 

Mr. Watson? How was--
MR . GOLDBERG : It was a decision that I made in my 

capacit~ as the Chair. 
ASSEMBLYMAN- LANCE: I have a document of August 27, 

1991 that indicates an initial fee of· $425,000. I guess that 
was one of, perhaps, three different charges the company 

eventually made. There were three sales of bonds? Was that 

the way it worked? 

MR. GOLDBERG: There were actually five. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Five? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Did they--

-MR. GOLDBERG: These were, I think, 

separate occasions. I mean, the document 

recollection is that they were approved 

occasions. 

approved on four 

is ·there, but my 

on four separate 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: You were comfortable with the fees 

as they eventuated, totaling $2.3 million or so? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. Where we ended up was a number 

that the Authority negotiated. I took an active role in that, 

staff had an involvement, and we ended up with an agreed upon 

compensation to Lazard which, in my opinion, was fair 

compensation considering the services they provided and the 

results we achieved. 

I will tell you that I was comfortable at the end as 

we went through the process. Particularly at some of the early 

points I was not quite sure where we were. going to end up. The 

process we followed had its advantages, and I explained to you 

what, to me, was the primary advantage. It · had its 

disadvantages, too. I mean, from the standpoint of a public 

officer, it probably is easier, in a certain sense, to just 

predetermine these things and do it on that basis, and with a 

conventional refinancing · I am sure that that would have been 

the approach that I would have preferred. 

In this case, given the objectives that were important 

to us, the complexity of what we were dealing with, and the 

uncertainty as to how this thing was going to play out, this 

was the approach, in my judgment, that would give the Authority 

the best end result and end up with us paying not a 

disproportionate fee. Because if the financing had not been 

successful, Lazard would not have been paid a fee of this 

amount, and they understood that. Therefore, they did 

everything they could to make this a successful underwriting, 

and that is exactly what I intended. 

+ ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Excuse me, if I might. The 

$50,000 initially was based on rates? 
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MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The $425,000 was not? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: And subs.equent fees at--

MR. ·GOLDBERG: They were not based on any hourly 

rates. They were not based on hourly rates. They were based 

on--
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You were making the determinations 

in your capacity as Chair? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Essentially, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Lance? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I respect your saying that there 

are certain advantages and certain disadvantages. In trying to 

understand it, we have the documents that the Turnpike 
Authority presented to us. There is a letter dated in November 

from Lazard indicating why it was entitled to compensation. 
That letter is after some of the bonding that occurred, not all 

of it. It is post some and pre others. Arid of course, from 
our perspective, we are trying to figure out exactly how the 

fees eventuated. This appears to be, at least in part, 

justification after the fact, and perhaps there are other 

documents that existed previous to that. Then . again, perhaps 
it is just a matter of negotiations between you, Mr. Goldberg, 
and you, Mr. Watson, and Lazard. 

I understand that there are pros to that approach, but 
perha~s there are drawbacks as well. Given the fact that we 
are trying now to reconstruct exactly how all of the fees 
eventuated, do you recommend to us legislatively that in the 

. future we make it more strict; that we require authorities to 

have contracts for these types of situations? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't have any recommendation. I 

found this financing to be what I will call sui generis. This 

was not a run-of-the-mill financing. I have some awareness of 

financial underwritings on behalf of clients. I have 
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occasionally represented clients and have done some with them. 
In the m:>rmal type. of financing for a sewer authority or a 

school boaid or something, with a $20 million, even a $50 
million borrowing, you can make some judgments as to how best 
to do it. 

A refinancing -0f $2.5 billion or $2.9 billion does not 
easily fit into any mold. If the Legislature were to set 
guidelines, obviously public agencies would follow them, and 
the Authority would follow them. If there were strict rules as 
to how you do it, in my opinion, the likelihood in this case is 
that they would not have produced a result that would .be 
financially more advantageous to the Authority. The things I 

did were guided by the judgment as to what was going to give us 
the most favorable approach. But I will tell you that, from 
the standpoint of accountability or record keeping, it is 
always easier for someone who wants to come in after the fact 
and examine what has been done to have the thing as close to a 
formula as possible. To the extent that that is of the highest 
policy, then the Legislature can mandate it. The only thing I 
can say is that when you get to a transaction this 
extraordinary, that kind of mandating is likely to produce a 

less effective financing if it is carried out well. In this 
case, I undertook responsibility beyond the normal. People 
could say, "Well, you should not have done it," and that is 
judgment for others. 

In this case, it was my judgment that if I didn't do 
it, I was more likely to end up with what had happened back in 
• 84- • 87. I found that result totally unacceptable. So I did 
what I thought would be the most effective way of getting a 
better result. If I could have come up with a better way of 
handling it, I would have come up with it, but I didn't. And 

to this point I really can't recommend to the Committee a more 

effective way of doing it. I mean, the fact is, by holding out 

the c~rrot of payment to Lazard, I believe we got the maximum 
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f'avorable effort from Lazard. So I think that that approach 

was a very effective approach, but it does· make the process 
more difficult and more complicated. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Goldberg, doesn' t the--
Excuse me, Assemblyman Lance. Doesn't the market, or Wall 
Street generally, on large projects, have financial advisers 
paid on an hourly rate? 

MR. GOLDBERG: In many cases, they do, yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Can you point to another 

comparative issue ~- significant undertaking -- where there was 
a similar structure to what you decided was a responsible 
course to take? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, I can point--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: For another issue someplace else. 
MR. GOLDBERG: I can point to what the Authority - did 

in • 84- • 87, where there was even less structure and paid even 
greater amounts. In our own agency, we have an example which, 
as far as I am concerned, had even less control and less 
effectiveness associated with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Goldberg, you are the one who 
make the determination of whether this was a responsible 
approach to make or whether it would be irresponsible to make 
it. 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You arbitrarily decided that this 
would be the way to pay Lazard. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I made that decision. 
consider it arbitrary, but I made that decision. · 

_ ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Lance? 

I didn't 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: My background is not with $2.9 
billion refinancing. It is more at the level of the ~ocal 

school board. I think you made the point that it may be sui 

generis. We are trying-- Assemblyman Smith- quite rightly asks 
what purpose do these hearings serve? He stated earlier this 
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morning the question of whether we should prohibit 
contribut-ions, and ·I think the Legis la tu re may be moving in 

that direction. Now I am pursuing this to determine whether we 
should also move in the direction -- and this would rein in an 
administration of the political complexion of the one that was 
in off ice in 1984 -- whether we should rein in, irt the future 
the discretion, for better or worse, that the Chair of the 
Turnpike Authority would have in the future in the area where 
you exercised your discretion. 

You said, I believe, that you can't really answer 
whether we should or not because of the sui generis nature of 
the $2. 9 bi Ilion refinancing and the fact that there are pros 

and cons to doing it the way you did it. Is that an accurate 
summary of--

MR. GOLDBERG: Pretty much. Let me also say, there 

are recognized ways of paying the financial adviser. Hourly 
rates are not the only way. I mean, the other way, which is 
not uncommon, is to pay so much per bond, and a dollar a bond 

is a very common number. I have seen that number in 

transactions. ·I have heard that number in transactions. It 

produced a bigger compensation than, in my mind, I liked, and 

therefore, even though that would have been a formula approach 
that would have been fairly simple, would have taken out some 
of the subjectivity of what we did, it would have also produced 

a payment to Lazard that went beyond what I was hopeful we 
would end up paying. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: To set the record straight, nobody 
in the Governor's Off ice and nobody in the Treasurer's Off ice 
was involved with you in determining the compensation? This is 
after the fact, after Lazard had been chosen. That was the 

decision that you made exclusively without any involvement from 

either Governor Florio's Office or the Treasurer's Office? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct, but I did have a 

conveJ?:.Sation with Treasurer Berman, which I recall in 
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generalities. The gist of it was whether from the Treasury 

Department standpoint they felt they should negotiate this fee 

or set this· fee, or whether that was my responsibility as 

Chairman. My recollection is that Mr. Berman said that as far 

as Treasury .was concerned, it was up to the Turnpike to 

determine the fee, and that they were not dictating to us or 

telling us how to set the fee. 

I had some conversations. I s~id, "Well, what do you 

think about a dollar a bond?" He said, "A dollar a bond might 

be a fair fee~" I said, "Is that a fee that you feel we should 

pay?" He said, "It is up to you to negotiate the fee." And I 

said, "Thanks," with all that that word implies. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: Yours is an unsalaried position. 

Is that right, Mr. Goldberg? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes, it is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: So that was left to the 

discretion--

MR. GOLDBERG: It was left to the Authority, and 

within the Authority it was my judgment as the Chairman that 

the essential responsibility for working this out with Lazard 

was going to rest with me, after consul tat ion with our staff 

and discussion as to what would be fair, given the amount of 

work that these people were doing for us, the activity they 

were engaging in, and the result we were getting. 

I took that responsibility, and I don't want any 

misunderstanding as to who fixed the fee. I fixed the fee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I have no further questions, but I 

have a comment: I think this has been enlightening as to how 

the fee structure was ·generated. I agree with Mr. Goldberg 
. . 

that there are pros and cons to the way fees were employed in 

this situation. Perhaps it is something that we, in the 

Legislature, should examine further. I recognize the 

difficulty of this procedure, but perhaps in the future we 

should look to legislation in this regard. .I recognize, as is 
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true in most situations, that there are pros and cons, but I 

think we-have an ac~urate rendition of what occurred here; that 

this was a decision made by the thair of the Turnpike Authority 
relative to the payment that Lazard would eventually receive. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Lance, thank you. 
Assemblyman Romano wanted to ask some questions. We 

will come back to him. Mr. Kavanaugh? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Thank you very much. 
As I have been sitting here these hours, I have to ask 

you the question_-- the personal question: Chairman Goldberg, 
are you any relation to Chancellor Goldberg? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No, but you are not the first one to 
ask that question. We are not related. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Well, I closed my eyes, . and 
the two of you answer very similarly as far as--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, way backr in a lineage that 
neither of us recall, perhaps we are related, but, no, we are 

not--
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCE: I think Chancellor Goldberg is 

better looking than--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, he's younger. 
MR. WATSON: For the record, I am not related to 

Assemblyman Watson either, but probably somewhere back in our 
past we crossed. Watson is a pretty common name, but I am not 
related to him, and he is better looking than I, I think. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Okay. Regarding the selection 
of the underwriters, back when we were preparing the '92 budget 
to auth~rize the Turnpike sale -- the purchase -~ you began the 
process of selecting the underwriters regarding the 

restructuring of the debt. Now, in the report we received it 

stated that you, as Chairman, Mr. Watson, as the Executive 

Director, the Comptroller, and a Lazard representative made up 
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that interviewing committee, along with Bob Lurie. Is that 

correct, -0r were there other members involved? 

MR. WATSON: On page 16 of my May 23 report, the 

members were: Lazard 'Freres partner, Richard Poirier; Jack 

Tamagni, who. is also a member of Lazard; Chairman Goldberg; 

myself; and at that time our Comptroller was on leave and we 

had an Acting Comptroller, John Jacobsen. We were the official 

panel. Bob Lurie, representing Treasury, observed, but he did 

not participate in the interview process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: What role did the Turnpike 

Authority play, . with Lazard, regarding the allocation process? 

Who had control? Was it Lazard, or was there--

MR. GOLDBERG: Do you mean allocation-- I mean, are 

we jumping into that? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: As far as the underwriters -­

excuse me -- the bond underwriters that we were talking about 

-- the selection of the underwriters having to do with the 

bond-- Who was responsible for the selection process? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I am confused. Are you talking about 

the selection of who were going to be underwriters, or are you-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: . Yes. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Okay. That has nothing to do with the 

allocation of bonds, I don't think. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: No, I just misspoke. 

MR. GOLDBERG: All right. We went through a process, 

which I think our statements outline. The process basically 

was to, first of all, solicit from the underwriting community 

at large expressions of interest. We contacted a number of 

·firms which had already made it clear that they had an 

interest. I think we ran an ad in the "Bond Buyer," and we 

generally, you know, held out to the underwriting community the 

fact that there might be an underwriting. The financial 

advi~er put together an RFP. Firms were advised that if they 

had an interest, they could respond to ·our request fo·r 
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proposals. And, in fact, we got quite a number of responses. 
I think Qe got 49 initially, and I think ultimately there were 
even a few more after that. 

In that approach, we asked underwriting firms to 
indicate whether they just wanted to participate in the 
underwriting, or whether they felt they had particular 
qualifications to be a senior underwriter, which ·in the 
underwriting community is a distinction of some note. I 
believe 11 firms, in responding, indicated that they wanted to 
be considered for senior underwriter. 

Lazard was given the responsibility for handling this 
process. Lazard was also given the responsibility for 
determining how to "follo~ up on this mass of responses we were 

receiving. Lazard prepared a set of questions that would be 
used in an interviewing process. The decision was made that we 
would interview all 11 firms that asked to be considered for a 
senior position. So we scheduled a set Of interviews that 
occurred, I think, over two separate days. Lazard, in essence, 
structured the interview process as part of our charge to them. 

Basically, having gone through a process to get a 
financial adviser to take us through the process, it was the 
view of the Authority, both staff and Chairman, that we were 
going to follow the advice and counseling of Lazard. That is 

exactly why we went through the process to get that kind of a 
firm. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Who conducted the interviews? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Wel 1, I wi 11 come to that. I wi 11 come 

to it very quickly. The interviews were set up. They were 
structured so that each firm would be asked an identical· set of 
questions, so you would have, in essence, a level playing 

field. Everybody was going to be asked the same things in the 

same order and by the same people. 
The bulk of the questioning, as I recall, was done by 

Rick ~tbirier of Lazard. He handled the questioning and the 
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follow~up with them. Mr. Watson, also by prior agreement, had 

several questions that he asked of the firm. I don't remember 

the exact number -- two or three. 

MR. WATSON: . Yes, I asked about three. Yes. 

MR. GOLDBERG: So with each of the 11 firms, we went 

through essentially the identical process. Poirier led the 

interviews and asked the questions that he was design~d to 

ask. Mr. Watson asked the two or three questions that he was 

going to ask. 

During the interview, any of the members who were 

sitting in could ask additional questions, and from time . to 

time-- I don't have a clear recollection, but I'm sure with 

different underwriting firms, different people may have asked a 

question from time to time. But the . bulk of the questioning 

was done by Poirier. During the interview process, each of us 

who was there took whatever notes or did whatever they felt was 

helpful to them in considering the process. For myself, I took 

very few notes. I was there listening, primarily to see what 

the answers were. 

Following each of the interviews, we had a brief sort 

of discussion among the group as to what ·the impressions were. 

If I am not mistaken, I think that at the end of each day we 

had some .further discussion about the overall impressions we 

had as to the different firms that had been interviewed. At 

the end of that process, over two days, Lazard took all the 

information they had, which included the RFP information -­

each firm had given us a great deal of information -- the 

responses we had gotten through the interview process, the 

comments. and reactions that each of the individual members had, 

and they were directed to come back and make recommendations as 

to how to do the underwriting. 

This was in the context of a broader assignment to 

Lazard. The major assignment to Lazard, at least in my mind, 

was the assignment to come up with a plan of refinancing. They 
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were to come up with how the refinancing should be structured, 

and withi-n that plan they were to come up with recommendations 

as to how the underwriting of that plan of financing should be 

done. 

And that is what Lazard did. After the process went 
through, within a re la ti vely short period of time of maybe two 

weeks, with, I am sure, some further informal conversations on 

the staff level, or whatever, Lazard came back and made a 
presentation to the Authority at a Committee meeting of our Law 

and Finance Committee, I believe. Lazard laid out both a 

detailed plan of finance, how it would be structured, and the 

assignment for underwriters. 

I would also add that in structuring the plan of 

finance, this was quite complex. It was complex because there 

had already been a refinancing, as I mentioned, in '84-' 87. 

This had significant legal aspects to it, because having 

already done a certain amount of refinancing, the Authority was 

constrained in terms of how it could proceed with a subsequent 

refinancing. Therefore, Lazard, in preparing whatever program 

it was going to prepare, was working in close constiltation, not 

only with Authority staff, but with counsel, which included not 

only bond counsel, but special tax counsel, Mudge Rose. So 

that aspect of the financing was where most of, I think, the 

energy and attention had been directed, because at the outset, 
simplistically, I was assuming that if we were going to 
refinance, that we would refinance if not with a single issue, 
with maybe two issues, or whatever, you know, because of size. 

When we went through .. it, it turned out, for reasons 

that I 4id not fully understand then and I don't think I fully 
understand now, that the law dictated the financing had to be 

split up into probably certainly into probably three 

pieces, and beyond that, the timing of the refinancing was 

controlled and there had to be a delay of at least 30 days 
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between certain sales in order to comply with the requirement 

of the tax laws.-
So Lazard came back-- They came out with a structured 

approach which initially called for three sales of bonds of 
different types, the first being, in essence, I think, a 
refinancing of the ~04, that which had to be treated separately 
than a refinancing of the $2 billion debt. As it turned out, 
the refinancing, instead of being done in just three pieces, 
ended up being done in five pieces, again, for a variety of 

technical reasons. 
But as part of this assignment, Lazard also came· in 

with a very detailed recommendation, or set of recommendations 
for how underwriting assignments should be done. Now, my 
directions to __ Lazard, and staff's directions to Lazard· were 
fairly general. Basically, what they were were: We did not 
want to replicate what we had in '84-' 87. We did not want a 

single firm, in essence, controlling or running the entire 
refinancing. We also wanted the underwriting spread as broadly 
as possible, but in doing that, we wanted to make sure that 
there would be fair involvement and consideration for firms 
that were Jersey-based firms, and firms, as I said before, that 
were owned by women and - minorities. Because traditionally 
those kinds of firms had always been excluded from 
underwritings like this one, which in the business are 
considered the cream of the underwriting business and an 
opportunity for smaller firms to make a legitimate profit. We 
felt very strongly that if we were going to have to undertake 
this kind of underwriting and if, in fact, people were going to 

make mo~ey out of it, that at least there ought to be fair 

involvement of those kinds of firms. 
These were the assignments that were given to Lazard. 

Lazard came back and they, in my mind, had followed our 

directions and· had achieved our objectives, because what they 

.came -:,.back with, -although we didn't tell ·them what 'to do about 
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senior assignments, or how to make the decision as to how to 
assign firms to a senior position, Lazard came back with a 
structure that involved all 11 firms that had asked to be 
considered for a senior position. So they had done, in our 
minds, the kind of thing that we had asked for. 

They also, very specifically, allocated those senior 
positions, and those allocations are set forth in the documents 

you already have. Beyond that, they took the remainder of the 

applicants and they included every single firm that had 

responded to the RFP in the underwriting group. So it seemed, 
to me at least, that Lazard had brought back to us a set ·of 
proposals that responded to our objectives and responded to 

what Lazard had been told to do. 

In terms of the three top firms, Lazard indicated that 

the three top positions had been assigned to the three top 

firms in terms of underwriting activity at that time. They 

were, I think-~. At that point they were: First Boston, 

Merrill Lynch, Goldman Sachs. The information we were provided 

with, and we understood, was that those firms, in fact, had 

done the three largest amounts of underwri tings during that 

recent time period. So we got from Lazard a set of proposals 

which, on their face, made a great deal of sense and were 

consistent with what the directions were. 

Lazard's presentation, I am sure, was reviewed by 

staff. It was reviewed by, probably, counsel. It was 
reviewed, or made available to Treasury. My recollection is 
that no one had any· either questions about the assignments, or 
suggested or recommended changes from what Lazard gave us. We 

got that presentation at a time where the I-95 legislation was 

still up in the air. It had not passed. It was in late June, 

but even though it was late June, the bill still had not been 

finally acted upon~ So initially the expectations were that we 

would take this plan into our public meeting with the 

Commis~·ioners and get it approved in our June meeting. 
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However, if we did that, we would have been actually 

proceeding on a plan of refinance before the critical event -­

in my mind a critical event -- had occurred: the direction 

from th• Governor and the Legislature to do the I-95 

transaction. So the June meeting was postponed and was 

rescheduled -for early July. The I-95 legislation passed that 

final week. It was signed, I believe, on June 30. Therefore, 

the recommendations we received from Lazard were presented to 

the Authority in a public· meeting on July 2, 1991. It was a 

meeting at which all of the Commissioners had an opportunity to 

ask whatever questions about whatever happened, and we took 

action. The action we took was immediately available publicly 

to everyone. In that sense I mean that the document you have 

that is stated recommendations of Lazard for underwriting-­

That document was a public record and·publicly available. As a 

matter of fact, the press reports of that meeting, I am sure, 

recite at some length what was happening.and what firms would 

be involved. I 
- '1 

I will also say that while a lot of things we did were 

controversial, and there were criticisms, there was a lot of 

criticism about the I-95 transaction. For .example, people 

e~pressed certain reservations -- or at least some people did. 

My recollection is that no one at that time, in any position 

public or private, ever questioned the rationality or the 

appropriateness of the underwriting assignments. I think, in 

my mind, · that was because they seemed appropriate; they made 

sense; they were what Lazard described as the "best and the 

brightest from the underwriting community." 

. The assignment of Merrill Lynch, I was comfortable 

with, because of all of the major underwriting firms in New 

·Jersey, I know of no firm that has made a stronger and more 

visible commitment to having a presence in New Jersey than the 

Merrill firms. So there was a rationality to Merrill having a 

.major role in the underwriting. It was consistent with the 
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directive that Lazard had given, so the underwriting 

assignments, as I looked at them, made sense. On top of that, 

Lazard understood that if they really expected to get the kind 

of fee that I knew in their hearts they were hoping for, it was 

up to them to give us a plan that would work) and a group of 

underwriters that would do the job and bring it in on the basis 

that we expected. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Kavanaugh? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: What was my question? Was 

there any particular order when the firms were questioned when 

Lazard brought them in? How did you do that, by postmark, . or 

alphabetically? Do you remember how that was when you did the 

underwriters? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I have absolutely no recollection of 

how the order came about. Do you? 

MR. WATSON: My recollection would have been 

alphabetically, but I could be wrong on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: So it seems that what you are 

stating here is that Lazard made all the final recommendations. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Lazard made the recommendations. The 

actual, you know, decision was made by the Authority, but it 

was based on--· 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: 

public meeting? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

At your July 2 meeting 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: At the time, prior to Lazard 

coming with the verious underwriters, were you aware of any 

contact between Lazard and anyone in the Florio administration 

regarding the selection of Merrill Lynch? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Were you aware of any direct 

relationship between Merrill Lynch and Lazard involving fee 

splitting? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: You, in your statement, said 

it seemed appropriate that they would have these vatious 

underwriters, and that if they were seeking the fee they 

needed, they had to bring forth these individuals. Since that 
time, we are all aware of the Massachusetts problem of fee 
splitting between Lazard and Merrill Lynch. So it seems like 

it was kind . of a comfortable deal. I am certainly sure that 
Lazard would look favorably at Merrill Lynch, presence in New 
Jersey or not. 

How was Merrill Lynch chosen with the approval of the 
Authority as the lead underwriter in the C & D share? I think 

that was the $1.6 million. 

MR. GOLDBERG: They were chosen in the same fashion 
that every other underwriter was chosen. We got a 
comprehensive list of recommendations from Lazard, and that is 

what Lazard recommended. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Was there anyone -- either Mr. 

Watson or you, Mr. Chairman -- anyone in the administration who 

talked to the Authority to direct them to use Merrill Lynch 
during the process? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 

MR. WATSON: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Excuse me, Mr. Kavanaugh, may I 

ask-- When you are referring to Lazard under this sequence of 
events, you are specifically referring to Rick Poirier as the 
person making the recommendations to you on behalf of the firm? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, the bulk of the contact we had 

with the Lazard firm was with Rick Poirier, so very often 

Poirier and Lazard would be synonymous. I cannot tell you that 

the recommendations we got from Lazard were just Mr. Poirier•s, 

however, because he had a team involvement there. In addition, 

we had the presence, from time to time, of one of the other 

partners, Jack Tamagni, who did take a certain active 

involvement. I· viewed the recommendations .we ·got as being the 
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recommendations of the firm, with Mr. Poirier, you know, having 

the lead -role in formulating what the firm recommended. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Poirier was the lead role in 

conducting the interviews, and then Mr. Poirier was the lead 

role in putting together the package to recommend to you? 
MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That was your relationship with 
him as well, Mr. Watson? 

MR. WATSON: Yes, that is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you. 

Mr. Kavanaugh? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: . Your memory is very good, Mr. 

Chairman. I am just wondering now, when we had these lead 

underwriters and we had the other ones which -- the smaller 

underwriters-- They get together and they call them, what, a 
"selling group" or something? 

MR. WATSON: A "sel 1 ing group,'' yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: When did it first come to you, 

as far as you becoming knowledgeable -- either of you ~- that 

Armagon (phonetic spelling) was a part of one of the selling 

groups? 

MR. WATSON: They• re not. 

MR. GOLDBERG: At no point in the entire refinancing 

activity did the companies that have been mentioned in the 

press Armagon and Consolidated ··Financial Management, or 

whatever its name is-- At no time did either of those 

companies participate in the underwriting, and at no time did 
anyone, whether it be from Lazard or from any other source, 
recommend that those firms be included in the financing. They 

never applied for 

inclusion; they 

inclusion; 

did not 

they were never 

participate in 

considered for 

the Turnpike 

refinancing; and, to my knowledge, they received no 

compensation that came out of the Turnpike refinancing program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: All right. Do you have a list 

available that you could give to the Committee of the selling 
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groups for each issue? 

Is that ifl the packet? 
Would you be able to identify those? 

MR. WATSON: Yes, we provided that. It is in two 
documents. !n my report of May 23, it's Exhibit "0." Then in 

either the October 7 or the October 8 document, we submitted 
the list again. So it is in two places. 

stop? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Watson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Are you at a convenient point to 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Yes, Dick. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I am going to. suggest that we t.ake 
about a 10-minute recess. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: How about letting me speak first, 
because I might have to run out the door? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Certainly, Mr. Romano. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: Mr. Goldberg left. 
MR. WATSON: Well, he probably .had a higher calling-

right now. (laughter) 

ASSEMBLYMAN . ROMANO: In keeping with the--
apologize, first of all, but I have my own problems up north. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I understand. 

I 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: I am retiring, and a lot of last 
minute things are coming up. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: You have to work out your pension. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: I will continue in the 

countenance that I always maintain, in your words, "loyal 

opposition," in mine, "contentious comedy." I am not going to 

be contentious here. I will just be "in comedy," if you will. 

Just in my facilitator role here, I go back to 

Assemblyman Kavanaugh's comments about the history of the group 

known as the Public Resource Advisory Group. I believe, when 

Mr. Watson spoke, it wasn't the number of different issues one 

had with roads, but the total bonds -- the total amount of 
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money that each group was looked at. He was raising the point 

of how many highway or road jobs this company listed in their 

resume. 

MR. WATSON: Well, in the information that Securities 

puts out, ·1 think they list both money and number of issues. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: And -for the most part, it was the 

number of issues -- the volume of the bonding? 

ASSEMBLYMAN WATSON: Well, we looked at both of them, 

but the volume was important, too. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: You looked at both of them. 

Also, in that same comment, because, you know, a lot of times 

we speak-- No one speaks after you speak, and one might hear 

what you have said and take it as a summation that that was, in 

fact, what transpired. This is for my colleagues. I don't 

mean this for you, Mr. Watson. 

When Assemblyman Kavanaugh referred to the voluminous 

issue of the RF~, I think we all have to understand that RFPs 

to these companies here-- This is boilerplate. I'm sure they 

have that on some word processor someplace where they just fill 

in the different terms. It isn't that someone is sitting down 

to write a doctoral dissertation. 

In any event, those are the only comments I wanted to 

make, except for the fact that I do think we should recognize 

that even in the agenda for this meeting here, we talk about 

the issuance of debt by the State State agencies and 

authorities. If my recollection serves me correctly, I don't 

think there was a day imposed on what debt we were talking 

about or what date, I should say. So, you know, any 

reference that my colleagues might have had to prior, I think 

are in keeping, but I think we are all here together trying to 

come up with some sort of rationale so that we can best deal 

with this issue of proper protocol in the issuance of debt by 

State agencies. 

99 



You know, I rest with you 100 percent on this entire 

issue. r look forward to the time when we will sit down and 

come up with a bipartisan effo~t. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Dr. Roma.no, you referred to the 

RFPs as boilerplate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: Well, the--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: And yet the testimony we have 

heard today from the Authority is, in fact, that this was such 

a unique, special, sui generis deal; that it was somehow unique. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: Wel 1, what I am saying is that 

the power graphs and the information requested by you, Mr. 

Chairman, are basic. You know, it i~n·t that they have to go 

back into the history books. It is a numbers situation. I 

think you will have to agree with me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Which is ~hy, in fact, we were 

concerned about the high fees for something that is boilerplate. 

Back to you, Mr. Kavanaugh. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Mr. Chairman, I-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Oh, we are going to stop. 

ASSEMBLYMAN ROMANO: We' re going to 

appreciate your allowing me to break in. 

stop. I 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: We will take a 10-minute break. I 

think everyone c9uld use a chance to stretch. I appreciate the 

patience of the witnesses today. I don't think we have that 

much more to do when we come back, but I do think a break would 

be a help. We will start at 2:20. 

(RECESS) 

AFTER RECESS: 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I think everyone is ready. We are 

in the middle of questioning, with Mr. Kavanaugh. I would like 

to--
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Mr Kavanaugh, 

left off?-

are you prepared to pick up where you 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Just some closing remarks 

here: I understand that the Port Authority issues a written 

report describing how and why the patticipants are chosen. 

Now, has the Turnpike Authority changed their policy in doing 

like the Port Authority? 

MR. GOLDBERG: First of all, to my knowledge, the 

Authority never had such a policy. It certainly didn't have 

such a policy in connection with the '84-'87--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: . Which Authority? 

MR. GOLDBERG: The Turnpike Authority. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: No, no, I'm saying you do not 

have one. 

MR. GOLDBERG: The Turnpike Authority has not had--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: The Port Authority does, 

though. The Port Authority issues a written report describing 

why and how bond participants are chosen. Now, do you think, 

as far as the integrity of the process, that that would be 

something you would be agreeable to? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I think that would be a useful thing. 

By hindsight in this situation, if we were doing it over, I 

think we probably would have done that. I don't think it would 

have changed any of the decisions, but for purposes of 

documenting the record, I think that would have been useful. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Just one last thing regarding 

Bob Lurie, who is a career person in Treasury whom we all have 

the greatest respect for. In a memo from him to Treasurer 

Berman on the subject, he stated that criteria .for selection 

would be used, and that proposals should be graded by the 

Committee and firms selected in general accordance with the 

grades assigned. However, in the statement we have, or the 

report, you stated it was impossible to assign separate scores 

to eaqh proposal. I am just wondering why the scoring system 

wasn't used. 
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MR. GOLDBERG: No, I don't think 1 said that, or at 

least I do not recall saying it. What I think I said was that 

I did not attempt to score them. Let me just say that Mr. 

Lurie, in particular, was fully cogizant of the process that we 

went through .and how we did it. As we have indicated, he, in 

fact, sat in on the interview process and he was aware of the 

results of that process as recommended by Lazard. At no time, 

as part of that process, did Mr. Lurie recommend that we do 

what he had in his memo. If he had reiterated that 

recommendation at the time that we were doing it, it is quite 

conceivable that we would have dbne it. ~he fact is, the 
) 

Authority believed that it went through a comprehensive process 

and that we had received the information that both we and the 

financial adviser needed to make the decisions. The Authority, 

at · least in this case, was satisfied with the specific 

recommendations that we got from Lazard as being consistent 

with all of the information we had. 

I don't take issue with the notion that as a matter of 

regular procedure you go through that process. I wouldn't 

overstress the value of it, because I think these processes are 

so subjective that we may create a false sense of security. In 

terms of how you are making these decisions, if one believes 

that by going through a rating system or a numbering system, 

you are, in fact, going to end up making the selection process 

simpler or easier, I don't think that is really true. I think 

the value of tt~e process and the documentation is just that; 

that it does explain to those who look at the process after the 

fact more precisely what was done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: What it was-­

MR. WATSON: I think on my report--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: l gave you credit for this-­

MR. WATSON: Yes, yes, you gave. the Chairman credit 

for something--
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I thought possibly in a quiet 

evening y.ou assisted him, but I see that the Executive Director 

prepared--

MR. WATSON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: The words I used were just-­

MR. WATSON: Yes' I think it is on pages 17 and 18 I 

where we went through the process. It was my strong feeling in 

going through it that since we were dealing, you know, with the 

11 top firms in the world as underwriters everyone had 

recognized them in the industry as the top firms-- In 

listening to the presentations they were making and the - t.op 

managers that each of them was bringing in there, and after 

re.a ding each of their proposals, . it was just very difficult, 

for me anyway, to assign a separate and precise score. I would 

have had a great deal of difficulty saying that one firm got 98 

and another firm should have 97.5. I could not make that 

distinction based on the interview process, the answers to the 

questions, the proposals. That was my point in making that. 

That does not mean you can't set something up and try to do 

it. At that time, in 1991, given the type of firms we were 

looking at, I simply could not make that numerical distinction. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: I would think, though, that 

the financial adviser would be able to do that -- the process 

for the dollars that were received there. It is just 

something as far as trying to clarify. 

That is all, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN -KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. Kavanaugh. 

We will now go to-- Does Mr. Romano want to make any 

other comments at this point? (no response) We will go over 

to Mr. Gibson for his questions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman• 

I have a few questions on the holdback pool 

allocations. But before I start those questions, something 
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came up earlier today that l need a little clearing up on. 

Maybe it ~ill also clear up a question Assemblyman Kamin had. 

When you gook over this four-mile stretch, did you put 

Turnpike employees on there to maintain it? 

·are--

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Okay. So basically-­
MR. GOLDBERG: And State Police. 

·MR. WATSON: Yes, we hired additional State Police. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Now, the State Police you use 

MR. WATSON: Our State Police. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: You don't have the same State 
Police as the rest of the State? Well, I don't want to get 
into that; that's--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, we don't have the same State 

Police. We have a different troup, and we pay for our State 
Police. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: You have your own maintenance 

people there. It basically becomes your road. You just don't 
charge tolls on it, and you are eligible for Federal aid on 

that four-mile stretch. You said that. Have you made any 

applications for Federal aid? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: And you have received it? 
MR. WATSON: It is in process now. We required-- Our 

agreement was that we would get at least $6 million a year for 
five years, as the Chairman said, from the Federal allocation. 
We have performed several million dollars• worth so far, and we 

are in the process of being-- You have to expend it first, and 

then you get reimbursed later. We are in the process of 

getting that money reimbursed now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: That Federal aid comes through 

DOT or directly to you? 

MR. WATSON: Through New Jersey DOT. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN G!BSON: Okay; all right. That clears it 

up for me. That cl.early has become your road, just like you 

went out and bought a piece of real estate. 

MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. If something happens there, we 

get sued. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: All right. There was $219,000, 

plus or minus thousands of dollars of holdback pool mone·y. Mr. 

Watson, can you explain to the Committee who initiated the idea 

of a holdback pool and who approved of its use? 

MR. WATSON: Well, as I understand it -- and I am not 

an expert in that field; that is why we hired financial 

advisers and others it is common in the industry for 

financing like this to have a retention of some percentage. I 

think in our interviews with the firms, they indicated it was 

something like a 10 percent retention that was held back to be 

redistributed amongst the underwriting and selling groups in 

anticipation that some of them may not . have gotten as many 

bonds to sell as they could have sold. In other words, they 

might have said, "We can sell 400," and they got 20. 

That is my understanding about what that pool is. 

That was administered by the financial adviser. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: So the idea was not initiated by 

anybody currently. It is what has been done as a standard. 

The other question was: Who approved of its use in 

this case? 

MR. GOLDBERG: All right. Let me take your first 

question. In this case, as I recall it -- and I think we had 

some writings there; Mr. Watson might have to double check -­

we had told Lazard, as a generality, that we did not want a 

situation where the seniors were holding all of the prof its and 

benefits to themselves; that they were being fairly allocated. 

We also wanted to make sure that there was proper inclusion of 

the kind of firms that I mentioned several times -- women- and 

minoriV¥-owned firms. So that fund, as I understood it, was a 
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way of reserving funds so that to the extent there was a need' 

to make - sure that there had been full inclusion of the 

different kinds of firms, there would be an opportunity to do 

that. 

Now, having said that, and as a generality, to my 

knowledge the Authority never directed Lazard to allocate any 

specific amount of funds to any specific underwriter. All the 

Authority did was give them the general directions that I have 

mentioned. To the extent that there was a holdback of funds 

·and to the extent that there was any distribution from those 

funds; the ~ctual, you know, distribution of those funds was 

done by Lazard. It was not done by the Authority or at the 

direction of the Authority, and certainly not at my direction. 

I never directed Lazard specifically with regard to allocating 

funds. · 

Mr. Watson, do you have anything to add? 

MR. WATSON: No. That is my understanding, too. We 

never gave them, you know, any indication of what firm to give 

what money to, but to make sure it was allocated fairly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Excuse me. Mr. Gibson, if I 

may-- It was my understanding that there was, in fact, a 

letter from Merrill Lynch, as senior underwriter, to the 

Authority, requesting guidance on how · to handle the holdout 

pool. 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't believe there was a letter from 

Lazard contemporaneous with the underwriting--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: No, from Merrill Lynch. 

MR. GOLDBERG: From Merrill Lynch? I don't recall 

such a letter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you reca~l such a letter, Mr. 

Watson? 

MR. WATSON: If it had come, it would have gone 

directly to the financial adviser. If it came to us, we would 

.have sent it right to the financial adviser. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Do you recall seeing the letter? 
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MR. WATSON: I don't recall that, but if there was 

one, it would have gone that route. 

MR. GOLDBERG: The only thing I rec a 11 seeing after 

the fact -- and, you know, there has been a lot of paper and it 

is possible that something was missed-- The only thing I 

recall seeing after the fact was a document that was in the 

material submitted by Treasurer Crane to, I think, this 

Committee, which I understood was a document that came from 

Merrill Lynch. It had a list of underwriters in it with an 

indication as to an allocation of an amount of bonds to a group 

of underwriters. 

That document, to my knowledge, the Authority did not 

receive or see at a time contemporaneous with the 

underwriting. I don't have any awareness of any specific 

allocation of bonds to underwriters. To the extent that that 

has occurred, or did occur, to myi knowledge that would have 

been undertaken by the Lazard firm. If they did it, presumably 

they were doing it pursuant to the general directions we had 

given them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: That letter was more, I 

understood, who were the participants in the syndicate. But 

the letter I was referring to was one where Merri 11 Lynch was 

responding to the holdback--

MR. GOLDBERG: If you got that letter, it might be 

helpful to refresh our recollection. 

MR. WATSON: It might refresh our memory if we could 

see it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I don't have it. I was hoping 

that perhaps you did or had some knowledge of it. 

MR. WATSON: No . 

MR. GOLDBERG: I just don· t remember that kind of a 

letter, so I don't even know where to look. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: A 11 right. Clearly, on something 

of this significance Lazard would not be acting without some 

direction, in my view. 
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Mr. Gibson, please go ahead. 

"ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Of the $219,000, $84,000, plus or 

minus, went to Butcher & Singer. As 

holdback was to go to the minorities. 

I understand it, this 

Is Butcher & Singer--

It is certainly not a New Jersey firm. Is it a minority firm? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't know. I don't think it is, but 

I have to tell you that to my knowledge, no one at the 

Authority directed either the financial adviser or a senior 

underwriter· to allocate any specific· amount of bonds to any 

underwriter, including Butcher & Singer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: So the allocation to Butcher & 

Singer would not have been by the Authority. It would have 

also been contrary to your general guidelines to set this out 

to minorities and New Jersey firms? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, it certainly would not have 

followed from those guidelines what the basis would have been 

for giving an allocation to Butcher & Singer. I don't know. I 

have no way of knowing why that was done, assuming it was done. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: But it is your testimony that -­

and you can say yes or no -~ the $84,000 that did go to Butcher 

& Singer was contrary to the general guidelines on where this 

holdback was to go? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I wouldn't say it was contrary. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Not to a specific firm, but to 

these minority and New Jersey firms. 

MR. GOLDBERG: It may not have been contrary, but it 

was not pursuant to· the guidelines. I mean, the guidelines 

were to make sure that there was fair inclusion of a certain 

kind of group of firms. In addition, there was a general 

guideline to make sure that there had been a fair distribution 

among the underwriters of bonds. That is a very general 

guideline. Why Butcher & Singer did or did not get allocated 

the amount of bonds they got, I don't know, and it was not at 

the direction of the Authority. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: All right. 

-ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Who told Lazard, then? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I don't know that anyone told Laza rd. 

I mean, that may well have been a judgment made by Lazard for 

its own reasons, and I don't know the basis for such a 

judgment. I do not have that information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Go ahead, Mr. Gibson. I'm sorry. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: That's all right. 

Both of your testimonies then are consistent-with what 

was in The Courier-News. You were quoted as saying that you 

only provided general guidance, not the distribution. You have 

already said that today. So somebody had to decide the 

distribution on this holdback pool. What we would like to find 

out, if we can -- if you know -- is, who made that decision? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, I don't know, but my assumption 

would be that to the extent that anyone was in communication 

with underwriters about the distribution of funds, it would 

have been- Lazard. Lazard would be doing that, presumably, 

pursuant to the general direction that Lazard had from the 

Authority. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Other than the fact that this 

particular firm was not a New Jersey firm and not a minority 

firm. 
MR. GOLDBERG: Yes. This was not a New Jersey firm, 

as far as I know; it was not a minority firm. If, in fact, 
they got an additional allocation beyond what had initially 

been granted them, the Authority doesn't know why that occurred. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Are either of you aware of-­
First of all, did Joe Salema contact either of you with regard 

to any of this distribution of the holdback pool? 

MR. GOLDBERG: No. 

MR. WATSON: No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Are either of you aware of hi~ or 

anyone else in the administration contacting Lazard with regard 

to this distribution? 
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MR. GOLDBERG: No. 

MR. WATSON:- No. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Is it your view that Lazard was 

reporting to the Treasurer's Office? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Lazard had, in essence, itistructions to 

keep the Treasurer's Office fully informed as to what they were 

doing. You know, based on the conversations ~e would have from 

time to time, I certainly understood that Lazard was in fairly 

regular communication with people in the Treasury Department. 

Presumably, most of that would have been with Lurie, but it 

could have been with others, because they were doing a variety 

of things where it might have been logical, you know, to follow 

up with different people within the Department. 

But Lazard was expected to keep Treasury aboard, 

because everything we did required Treasurer approval. So 

beyond that, if we were doing something that to the_ Treasury 

looked wrong, or looked like it wasn't the right way to do it 

or the best way to do it, I would have, you know, welcomed any 

comments or assistance that they would provide. And over the 

course of time, they did provide comments and assistance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Kavanaugh? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Through the Chairman, what was 

your reaction regarding 

firm, nonminority firm? 

Butcher & Singer, a non-New Jersey 

When did you become aware of this 

allocation that they received or why they received it? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, some--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Let me just follow through. I 

think as the CEO of an organization where we are talking about 

millions of dollars being handled here, that it would show a 

lack of responsibility, an almost irresponsible action, on the 

part of the Authority to allow this to happen when you know 

there are certain guidelines, certain things that are very, 

very much in the forefront as far as the Legislature is 

concerned. 

When did you become aware that this firm -received this? 
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MR. GOLDBERG: Well, before you quickly conclude that 

there has been a lack of responsibility, you probably should 

have the answer to that question. The answer to that question 

is that the Authority, at least I at the Authority, had no 

information about any specific allocation to underwriters, 
including Butcher & Singer, until after the review of these 
matters occurred starting last April and May. I did not see 

any document or paper that suggested that Butcher & Singer 

received additional bonds until after, I think, Secretary -- or 

Treasurer Crane submitted documents to this Committee. I don't 

remember when that was done, but it was clearly within, I would 
guess, the last six months. 

I will further tell you, although you did not ask-­

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Were you incensed, as the 

Chairman, when you saw this; that a nonminority and a non-New 

Jersey resident received an allocation? What was your reaction? 

MR. GOLDBERG: My reaction was- that it was something 

that, on its face, did not square with what we expected to have 

been done. I did ask counsel to follow up on that to the 

extent possible. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Was that verbally or in a memo? 

MR. GOLDBERG: There is a writing on that somewhere, I 

think, sometime within the last three or four months. At this 

point, because of the fact that there are active, ongoing 

Federal investigations which are pursuing these things I 
presume in detai 1 and in-depth-- At this point, it does not 
seem that the Authority, on its own, is going to get answers to 
these questions any quicker than these investigators wi 11 get 

them. 
But the Authority has a concern about that kind of 

issue, and did express it. I believe there is-- If I am not 

mistaken, I think there was a memo -- possibly to Mr. Watson -­

you know, expressing not only some concern, but requesting that 
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we do whatever we could do at that point to get more 

information. At thi°s point, I do not have more information. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Through you, Mr. Chairman, was 

that memo-- That memo was from you, as Chairman, to Mr. 

Watson, as the Executive Director? 

MR. GOLDBERG: That is correct. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Have you had a response, 

either verbally or in writing, from the Executive Director to 

you, as Chairman? 

MR . GOLDBERG : We've talked about it, and at this 

point I have talked to counsel. While I do not want to go into 

detail, the Authority, at this point, is limited in terms of 

pursuing questions which in the ordinary course we would pursue 

because of the ongoing Federa·1 investigations. We do not want 

to in any way interfere with, or imped~, those investigations. 

That, based on discussions with counsel, you know, limits what 

we can do at the moment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN . KAVANAUGH: Through you, Mr. Chairman, 

would you characterize-- Would I be right in saying that you 

were dismayed when you found out about this? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Look, I don't want to characterize it 

other than to say it was a surprise to me to learn that there_ 

had been an explicit allocation of bonds to a list of 

underwriters, and that on that list the allocation to Butcher & 
Singer in particular did not seem to make sense on its face. 

It was questionable enough in my mind for us to seek further 

information. We have attempted to do that, but as of this 

point, I don't have further information . 

. ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Were any of the requests 

directed to the Treasurer? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I think we inquired of Treasury where 

they got that document. My understanding is that we were told 

by, because-- The document said it came from the Turnpike, and 

it 'did not. 
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MR. WATSON: We were told it came from Merrill Lynch. 

~SSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I'm sorry, Mr. Watson? 

MR. WATSON: We were told it came from Merrill Lynch, 

as I recall, because I was incensed, too. My big interest was 

in making sure that , minority firms, which very seldom have a 
chance at participating in events like this, participated. 

Most of my questions to the panel when we interviewed them were 
in that area. They all insisted, beyond any question, that 

they were going to perform equally in this area. When I saw 

it, I was just as incensed as the Chairman. I recal 1 talking 

to Mr. Lurie about it and asking where it came from. ·My 

recollection is -- and I probably have a letter on this point 

-- that it came from Merrill Lynch themselves. 
That is as far as we can go. The Chairman is 

correct. We have talked to counsel trying to get the answer. 

Counsel has talked to counsel. Apparently once these 

investigations start, staffs to staffs do·n' t talk anymore. So 

we run into a blind wall at this.point. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: If I may, Mr. Kavanaugh? 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAVANAUGH: Just to that point, Mr. Watson 

has clarified it. The Chairman wasn't dismayed; the Chairman 

was incensed. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. Kavanaugh. 

On that point -- and maybe it would help -- Butcher & 

Singer is part of the merger with Weekford Securities (phonetic 
spelling). Butcher & Singer was the largest Pennsylvania firm 

in the securities business in Pennsylvania -- home based in 
Pennsylvania. They are now affiliated with Weekford 

Securities, which happens to be the largest firm in 
Pennsylvania -- or, excuse me, in Virginia, headquartered out 

of Richmond. That is a huge distribution network. For a firm 

of that size, as a regional, significant firm, to be in the 

pool allocation does not make sense. 
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Did you inquire in writing for an explanation of this 

from Lazai:d, specifically to Rick Poirier? 

MR. WATSON: No, I don't think I did in writing. I 

·think since we were into the situation of the investigation,. I 

talked to counsel to make contact with cbunsel. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Your counsel? 
MR. WATSON: Yes, our counsel to call their counsel; 

lawyers to talk to lawyers and figure out if we could get some 
answer to that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Did you get a response back from-­
MR. WATSON: Not yet. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: So counsel has not been able to 

report back to you from either contacting Lazard· or Merrill 
Lynch, or any of the senior underwriting firms that were 
involved in the deal? 

MR. WATSON: I have not received anything. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Okay. And you have not received 
any communication verbally either? 

MR. WATSON: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Okay. 

Mr. Gibson? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: 
you referred thaf to counsel? 

I am curious about how long ago 

MR. WATSON: It would have been in recent months, 
since the information came out in the Treasurer's documents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Three months? 
MR. GOLDBERG: Within the last two or three months. 
MR. WATSON: The last three or four months. 

.ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: What incentive would Lazard have 
for creating their own distribution pool, assuming they did? 

MR .. GOLDBERG: Well, I think we may be creating a 

mis impression. I want to be. careful about that. There was 

nothing wrong with there being a holdback pool, from the 

Authority's point of view. It was consistent with our 
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instructions. I think that at some point we may have, in fact, 

written the underwriters indicating that, you know, that was 

something that could be done, or should be done. 

So the fact that there was a holdback pool, in and of 

itself, did not mean to the Authority that anyone -- Lazard or 

anyone else was not, you know, proceeding in the best 

interest of the Authority. That is different from the question 

of what happens to the money that is in the holdback pool. On 

that issue, from the Authority's standpoint, the reason for 
that pool was to accomplish the objectives we have already 

stated. If it was utilized for other reasons, then the 

Authority would have to have, from the financial adviser or the 

underwriter, an explanation, you know, for those allocations. 
·As we have already testified, we, with regard to Butcher & 

Singer in particular, have not gotten an explanation for why 

they would have gotten an allocation. 
I c~n·t tell you that there is no basis for that 

allocation or that it was improper or that it was wrong. I 

don't know that. All I know is that on its face, it did not 

square with what we were expecting to happen. At· the very 

least, you know, we should have an explanation. 

The Other aspect of it is, we never got that 

information_ from Merrill Lynch at the time that the allocations 

were going on. So we were never in a position at a time when 

it would have been useful to understand, you know, what these 
decisions were or who was making them. 

So we have taken action after the fact. When we 

finally, for the first time, saw that kind of specifics-- We 
had a lot of trouble with Merrill Lynch at the wrap-up of the 
underwriting. Mr. Watson can probably speak to that better 

than I. But all of the underwriters were directed to report 

after the completion of the underwriters-- The senior 

underwriters were directed to give us a breakout as to who got 

an arlocation of bonds. We got those allocations fairly 
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promptly from the other senior writers, from Fi~st Boston, from· 

Goldman Sachs~ and ·whomever. With Merrill Lynch, we got some 

of that information. We did not get a complete report. 

The absence of a complete r~port concerned the 

Authority sufficiently that, as I recall, Mr. Watson wrote 

. Merrill Lynch, you know, telling them that they were 'supposed 

to give us a complete report. While I am not absolutely 

certain of this, my best recollection is that while we got a 

certain amount of information about how they distributed the 

bonds they were involved in, we never got a total, you know, 

explanation of that distribution. And we certainly did not get 

that kind of detail that was on the document that Merrill Lynch 

produced for the Treasurer's Office. 

So the Authority, at that time, was concerned about 

it. Ib took some steps to get that information. We have 

gotten a certain amount of c~mpli~nce. We did not get 

compliance from Merrill Lynch that was completely satisfying. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Go ahead, Mr. Gibson. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: I am finished with that, but I 

have something else, unless somebody else--

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: No, go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Okay. On your comparison of 

financing costs, you indicated that you have done considerably 

better in the current offering than what was done in '84-'87. 

Let me take just one item that you have, in fact, done better 

in. I would question whether it is all because of additional 

talent or additional energy. There may be another explanation 

for it. If there isn't, then fine. But take the traffic 

consultant as an example. 

$13,000. 

That went down from $191,000 to 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: This is page 10 of that report-­

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: --that we are referring to? 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Yes. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Thank you, Mr. Gibson. Go ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: I don't necessarily believe that 

is because the current Authority was so much more aggressive in 

holding the costs down. ~ould you please give us some insight 

on why you feel t~at the traffic consultant went down so much? 

MR. GOLDBERG: I'm sure you're right that that kind of 

figure did not come down because we were more efficient. Mr. 

Watson may have a more complete answer than I. My guess would 

be that we had just gone through the toll increase and, as a 
result, the traffic revenue studies we had were very current. 

Therefore, it was not necessary for the traffic consultant to 

do much more than just update fairly current reports. 

MR. WATSON: That is correct. 

MR. GOLDBERG: That, I am sure, is the reason. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: Are there similar things to that 

throughout the--

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, there are differences. Each 

financing is different. We spent, in some cases, more, and 

there are reasons for that. For example, I don't think we 

spent more for counsel, and of course, attorneys• fees between 

'85 and '91 probably went up. But, for example, we spent 

$277,000 for special tax counsel; which was not employed in the 

earlier one. We did· that because, among other things, it was 

the judgment of the Authority, particularly of its Chairman, 

that even if I was overloitering the issue, that the complexity 
of this transaction was great enough in my mind that I wanted 

the security that came from having the best tax counsel I could 

get. 
. We used Mudge Rose; we used Bob Ferdon. We went 

through a process in selecting tax counsel, but that process 

satisfied me that we got, in Mr. Ferdon, if not the most 

qualified tax expert on this kind of issue in the country, 

certainly someone who is among the premier group. I considered­

that money well spent. Therefore, you know, the fact that that 
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kind of advice was not needed with an initial refinancing, in 

my mind, -didn't mean that we should not .have spent it. It was 

money that we should have spent. 
But, look, the order of magnitude speaks for itself. 

I mean, you can walk around these numbers as long as you want, 
and you can console yourself with the notion that market 
conditions were different, and of course, they are different 
every single day. But the fact is, the Authority, in 1984-'87, 

spent $67 million to do no more than what we did in '91-'92, 
and, on its face, these numbers would not satisfy me. 

Now, I was not brought into the Turnpike to 
investigate this earlier financing, and I did not spend a lot 
of time doing that. But I spent enough time to look at these 

nu_mbers to satisfy myself that if there was any way we could 
avoid spending this amount of money in a mandated refinancing, 
we were going to · do everything possible to ensure that that 

happened. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: I just have to interrupt on this 

one, Mr. Goldberg, respectfully. The issues back in the '80s, 

in fact, were larger -- over 4.1 billion worth of bonds -- and 
it was an ongoing process in that there had to be the 
recalculations of the fixed interest rates. It was not just a 
one-shot deal. So I don• t think you can say, in my. view- -­
correct me if I am wrong here -- that somehow this was only a 
little bit different from the last time. 

MR. GOLDBERG: In this day and age, if you could do 
that same deal the way it was done in '84, and you did it for 
that kind of money in this climate, you would spend a lot more 

time than I am spending explaining why you did it. 

Now, if you think that is a good expenditure, you are 

entitled to your opinion. I'm telling you that, on its face, 

that amount of money is very hard to justify, particularly when 

you can .compare it with the numbers we compiled. If you want 
to do it on the basis of calculations on market, fine. But I 
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don't believe that that financing cost represented the best 
that could be done,· or anything close to it. In my mind, the 

best proof of it is what we did in '91-'92. You don't have to 
accept that. You can disagree with it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Well, the market conditions have 
changed, and it is not that deal that is under investigation. 

Mr. Gibson, please go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GIBSON: I'm finished, Mr. Chairman. 

Thank you, and thank you, gentlemen. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: If I may, just to finish up on . a 
couple of points Mr. Gibson had, could you help me with the 

call notice? What is that -- on page 10 again of your -- the 
$441,000? 

MR. GOLDBERG: As part of the refinancing scheme, one 

of the things. that the Authority had to determine was the 

amount of bonds that pursuant to our indenture we could call 
and redeem at par, as against that premium. In ·order to do 

that, among other things, we had to go through a call notice, 

and that is the cost involved in that. I will also tell you 
that there is a dispute among some of the owners of the bonds 
that were called that is in court. They are arguing that the 

Turnpike did not properly do what it could do, or it went 

beyond what it should have done and did not call, you know-­
We sho~ld not have called certain bonds. 

Since that is in litigation and in the hands of 
counsel, while I would be happy to explain in generalities, I 
don't think this is the appropriate forum to get into a lot of 
detail on what may affect pending litigation. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: In a rough sense, how much of the. 
$441,000 would have been actual cost of the publications versus 

technical advice? 

MR • GOLDBERG : I don't think there is any advice in 

there. I think it is whatever was required as a matter of the 

indentures. It is like an out-of-pocket expense. I don't 
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think there is any lawyering or anything in there, bu·t I have 

to say th-at I don't really know. 

Can you answer that, Mr. Watson? 
MR. WATSON: No. Most of it, as I recall, had to do 

with the selection of what bonds are called. There is an 
arbitrary process to do that, and it is a very complicated 
process. It came back as that being the cost for the process. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN:. Two more very brief questions: 
One, the other counsel you referred to was also involved in the 
other offerings. Who was the other counsel, as referred to on 
page 10 -- the name of the firm? 

MR. GOLDBERG: The firm that served as bond counsel? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: On page 10, bond counsel--
MR. GOLDBERG: Page 10 of what? 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Of your report -- · bond counsel, 

other counsel, special tax counsel -- on your comparison of 
finance costs? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, okay. Oh, all right. 

MR. WATSON: Bond counsel was Morgan Lewis. 
MR. GOLDBERG: Bond counsel was Morgan Lewis & 

Bockius. Another counsel would have been 

·counsel -- Sills Cummis. 

an Authority 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Who made the determinations as to 
what firms were, in fact, filling these slots? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, Sills Cummis had been retained by 
_the Authority, in fact, before Mr. Watson and I arrived, so 
that was not a decision that was made as part of the 
refinancing. Morgan Lewis, or the selection of bond counsel 

and the .selection of special tax counsel both went through an 

RFP process which was basically headed up by Mr. Cummis of the 

Sills Cummis firm, which, in turn, was brought back by way of 

recommendations to staff, the Chairman, and ultimately, the 

full Authority. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN; So Sills Cummis, in the selection 

of these - different ·firms, functioned in much the same way as 

Lazard did for the selection of the underwriting firms? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Well, it was a much lesser assignment. 

It was an assignment to put together a list of qualified firms, 
to interview them, and to make recommendations as to which 
firm, or firms, should be considered for selection. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: My final question: Did anyone in 

the Governor's Off ice or the Treasurer's Off ice contact . you 
with suggested names for the RFP? 

MR. GOLDBERG: Oh, it's possible. I mean, that I. do 

not recall, but--
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Watson? 

MR. WATSON: Not that I recall. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: But it is possible in your case, 
Mr. Goldberg? 

MR. GOLDBERG: It is possible. l don't remember, but 

it is quite possible that the names were, at one point or 

another, suggested. That does not mean that any-- I got 

recommendations for everything, from everybody. I mean, I had 

bushels of recommendations from almost everybody who lived and 

breathed, it seemed to me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: The amount of $2.9 billion does 

generate a great deal of interest. 
MR. GOLDBERG: I was never such a popular figure with 

Wall Street as I was then, and I never will be again. 
ASSEMBLYMAN KAMIN: Mr. Goldberg, Mr. Watson, I am 

very appreciative of your patience and of your testimony 

today. It has been enlightening. 
That concludes today's proceedings. My thanks to the 

Office of Legislative Services, again, for their expert help, 

and to the Committee members and staff. 

This meeting is adjourned. 

(MEETING CONCLUDED) 
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DECEMBER 14, 1993 

(201) 247-0900 

The New Jersey Turnpike Authority appreciates the 
opportunity to appear today before the Assembly Appropriations· 
Committee to respond to any questions concerning the Authority's 
refinancing activities. 

Within the last ten years, the New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
refinanced its entire bonded indebtedness on two occasions. The 
first o~curred between 1984-1987. The most recent occurred in 
1991-1992. 

The 1984-87 refinancing took place primarily because the 
Authority in 1985 borrowed 2 billion dollars to finance a widening 
of the Turnpike in the north between interchanges 11 and 18, 
including both the eastern and western spurs. The widening also 
included dualization of the portion between interchanges SA and 9. 

At the time of its 2 billion dollar borrowing, the 
Authority's program was conceptual. The Widening Program had not 
been designed and essential state and federal permits h•d not been 
obtained. 

1984-87 REFINANCING 

In undertaking this refinancing, the Authority: 

1. Did not retain or use an independent financial advisor 
until 1987 at which time the program was substantially 
completed. 

2. Did not engage in any public solicitation of underwriters 
to carry out the program. 

3. Assigned the responsibility to act as Authority financial 
advisor and lead underwriter to a single underwriter, 
Smith, Barney, Harris, Upham & Co., Inc. (Smith Barney). 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE.A.UTHORITY 

4o Left the structuring of the underwriting essentially to 
-smith Barney. 

5. Did not undertake an effective cost control effort. As a 
result, the cost of the refinancing was approximately 67 
million dollars. Ufiderwriting costs alone exceeded 57 
million dolla~s. Payments to Smith Barney for its 
services as Financial Advisor exceeded 4 millton dollars. 
Printing costs were more than 2.5 million. 

By contrast, the 1991-92 refinancing cost $26 million; $40 
million less than the 1984-87. The Financial Advisor received 
$2,275 million and underwriters $20 million. Printing costs were 
less than $600,000.00. (See attached chart). 

1985-90 CONSTRUCTION PROGRAM 

Significant problems arose because the Authority decided to 
borrow 2 billion dollars before its program had progressed beyond 
the conceptual stage. The 2 billion dollar borrowing was premised 
on the Widening Project being completed by the end of 1990. 
However, the Authority was able to place under construc-tion 
between January 1986 and April 1990 less than 250 million dollars. 
In an effort to accelerate construction, the Authority spent 
approximately 70 million dollars to plan and design the widening 
of the Western spur before obtaining required State and federal 
approvals. Because the required permits were not issued, the 
Administration of Governor Kean in 1989 abandoned this project. 
The 70 million dollars expended on these plans have been of no 
value to the Authority. 

1985-90 FINANCING DECISIONS 

The borrowing of 2 billion dollars also substantially. 
distorted the Authority's financial decisions. In 1985 as part of 
the 2 billion dollar borrowing, the Authority committed itself to 
increase tolls by 40% effective July 1, 1986 and by an additional 
40% January 1, 1990 to pay for the increased costs of the 
A~tbority's debt. The 1985 borrowing predated more stringent tax 
limitations imposed in 1986. The Authority, therefore, for.a five 
year period, was able legally to invest unexpended construction 
funds and to divert the arbitra9e earnings from such investments 
to pay Turnpike expenses. Since the construction program did not 
proceed on schedule, most of the 2 billion dollar borrowing 
remained available for investment and produced substantial 
short-term earni~gs. The Authority decided in lieu of raising 
tolls on schedule to apply these investment earnings to the 
growing shortfall between toll revenues and Authority expenses. 
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S ervic • 

Underwriting/Aemarket1ng Fees 

Management/Financi.:ll Advisor Fees 

Advertising 

Ac counting 

Verification Agent 

Bond Counsel 

Other Counsel 

Special Tax Counsel 

Call Notice 

Gen er al Consultant 

Traffic Consultant 

Marketing 

Printing 

Rating Services 

Trustee. R egis1rar. Paying Agent 

Miscellaneous 

1991 A 
Serv;ce Cffm2 
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Management.Financial M'-ser Fees 4a5,ooo 
Advensing 
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V aifica1ion Agent 5.000 
Bond Col.6\s• 380.875 
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·Call Notice 2.384 
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Printing 112.047 
Rating Senlices 122.000 
Trustee, RegsYa", Pa~ng Agent 32.601 
Mi:scelli2neous 

$3.819.663 
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$66 89i ~=6 
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Bet~een 1986 and 1990, the gap between revenues and expenses 
increased to $~62 million. The shortfall was covered by arbitrage 
earnings. In 1990, however, under the tax laws, arbitra~e 
earnings could no longer be ~sed for this purpose. To close the 
revenue gap, it was necessary for the newly appointed 
Commissioners to adopt a disproportionately large toll increase. 
The toll increase was approved in Jariuary 1991 effective in March 
1991. 

1991 DECISION, TO REFINA~CE TURNPIKE INDEBTEDNESS 

In February, 1991, Governor Florie's Administration proposed 
the sale to the Turnpike Authority of the portion of Interstate 95 
from the northern terminus of the Turnpike to the George 
Washington Bridge. The Turnpike Authority, during a seri•s cif 
hearings before the New-Jersey Senate and General Assembly, 
supported this proposal provided (1) legislation was enacted which 
directed the Turnpike Authority to purchase the section of I-95 
for 400 million dollars and (2) the Turnpike indebtedness was 
fully refurided. The refunding of the Turnpike debt was considered 
desirable in order to remove restrictive provisions within the 
existing bond resolution and essential to eliminate any questions 
concerning the use of Turnpike funds for such a purpose. 

The State supported the sale of I-95 to the Authority to 
obtain 400 million dollars to assist the funding of essential 
State services for the fiscal period starting July 1, 1991. It 
was clearly stated that if legislation directing the Authority to 
purchase I-95 was adopted, the Authority not only would have to 
refinance its existing debt, but also would have to complete such 
refinancing quickly to.have funds to pay for the acquisition of 
I-95. 

Although the legislation directing the Authority to purchase 
I-95 was not approved until June 30, 1991, .the Administration and 
the Authority, in anticipation of its possible approval, started 
discusaions concerning a possible refinancing in February and 
March 1991. Extensive discussions between the Administration and 
the Authority continued through June. These discussions concerned 
the details of the purchase agreement between the State and the 
Authority, the redrafting of the Authc::ity's bond resolution 
particularly the extent to which excess Authority funds could or 
should be used for general State purposes and the manner in which 
this extremely large refunding would be carried out. 

Because of these preparations, it was possible for the 
Authority to adopt its Plan of Finance on July 2, 1991. The 
Authority's prompt action was key to the ultimate success of the 
program. 
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NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

PREPARATIONS FOR REFINANCING 

The Turnpike Authority considered itself responsible for 
carrying out the refinancing that would be mandated by leqislative 
action. It did not believe~ however, that it had sufficient 
expertise to undertake such a difficult assignment without the 
services of the well qualified professional consultants and the 
assistance of the Administration, particularly the Treasury 
Department. 

At the outset, the Authority reviewed the manner in which the 
1984-87 refinancing had been carried out. It was our judgment 
that the procedures used during that refinancinq could not and 
should not be utilized. 

The Authority concluded that it required the assistance of an 
independent financial advisor. It solicited RFP's from qualified 
firms including Kidder Peabody & Co., Inc. (Kidder Peabody), the 
firm that had been providing such services to the Authority since 
1987. The Authority provided that the firm selected as Financial 
Advisor would not be permitted to participate in any future · 
financinq in order to avoid a possible conflict of interest. This 
condition resulted in the resignation of Kidder Peabody and its 
withdrawal from tonsideration. Details concerning the selection 
of Chase Securities and its resignation and replacement by Lazard 
Freres & Co. are set forth in prior Authority reports and are not 
repeated here. 

Before retaininq Bond Counsel and Special Tax Counsel, the 
Authority also solicited requests for proposals from qualified 
firms. Moreove.r, the Authority decided not to concentrate the 
responsibility for implementing its refinancing plan in the hands 
of a small, select qroup of underwriters. The newly designated 
Financial Advisor was directed to develop a proposed refinancing 
plan and to recommend how the refinancing should be implemented. 
The Authority directed the Financial Advisor to open the selection 
process to the entire financial community. The Authority also 
insisted that underwriting firms based in New Jersey and such 
firms that were owned by women or minorities be given a fair 
opportunity to be included in any proposed refinancing to the 
.greatest extent possible consistent with a successful refinancing. 

The Autnority established objectives to be achieved by the 
Financial Advisor. One objective was to reduce underwriting costs 
from the 57 million dollars spent in 1984-87 to approximately 20 
million dollars. Remaining costs were to be held to 6 million 
dollars. It was understood that the Authority would negotiate a 
fee substantially less than the 4.1 million dollars spent for 
management and financial advisory services in 1985-87. The actual 
amount paid for such services would reflect the success of the 
Financial Advisor in achieving Authority objectives. 
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NEW· JERSEY TU RN PlK:f_ A U.T,H °'RI TY 

RFP~s were solicited from the entire underwriting community. 
A total of 49 proposals were received. The eleven firms that 
requested to be assigned a role as senior man~ger were 
interviewed. Based upon the recommendations submitted to the 
Authority by its Financial Advisor all eleven firms received a 
senior underwriting assignment. The Authority approved without 
change the Financial Advisor's recommendations for the refinancing 
and the underwriters assignments at its public meeting on July 2, 
1991. The Plan of Finance and the underwriter assignments were 
publicly set forth by the Authority and its Financial Advisor at 
that meeting. No expressed criticism or public disagreement with 
the Authority's actions concerning the proposed underwriting were 
received. 

I will not burden Committee members at this point with · 
further details of the refinancing program. There is submitted 
with this Statement for inclusion in the public record of the 
Committee proceedings the following documents which discuss in . 
greater depth the Authority's program. 

1: Report to Governor, Treasurer, and Chairman and 
Commissioners of the New Jersey Turnpike Authority on the 
1991-92 Bond Refinancing by Donald L. Watson dated May 
24, 1993. 

2. Letter with attachments from Donald L. Watson to 
Honorable Rodney Frelinghuysen dated October 7, 1993. 

3. Letter with attachments from Donald L. Watson to 
Honorable Rodney Frelinghuysen dated October 8, 1993. 

4. Memorandum dated December 6, 1993 from Donald L. Watson 
to Chairman David J. Goldberg responding to Mr. William 
Cobbs' Testimony before the Assembly Appropriations 
Committee on September 14, 1993. 

In conclusion, the Authority undertook a man~ated 
refinancing, at a time not of its choosing and at the direction of 
the State's highest policy makers; the Governor and the 
Legislature. It is our belief that we handled this assignment 
responsibly and successfully. 

At the time that the Plan of Finance was adopted, the op1n1on 
of .most knowledgeable observers was that the Authority would be 
fortunate if the refinancing did not increase debt service costs. 
In fact, the Authority reduced the debt service costs on its 
existing debt by more than 260 million dollars. 
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NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

When the refinancing was undertaken, in view of the 
downgrading of the State's credit rating, it was believed likely 
that the Authority's favorable bond rating would also be 
downgraded. The Authority was successful in maintaining its 
rating. 

By comparison with the 1984-87 Refinancing, the Authority 
reduced issuance costs by 40 million dollars. 

I would be pleased to answer any questions the Committee may 
have. 
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INTRODUCTION 

In 1991 the New Jersey Turnpike Authority carrie~ out a 

complete refinancing of its outstanding debt with results that 

were widely considered. to have been highly successful. 

Recent weeks have seen this success obscured and the 

procedures adopted by the Authority for the rafinancing called 

into some question, following disclosure of a federal 

investigation and subsequent media reports on its possible 

ramifications. 

This report describing the reasons for the refinancing, the 

process for carrying it out, why the process was employed, and the 

results of the overall effort was prepared at the direction of the 

Chairman. 

It should help resolve any issues which may have ~risen with 

respect to the integrity of the Turnpike's operations and should 

demonstrate that the refinancing was carried out with careful 

regard for the public interest. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Early in 1991, it became apparent that the New Jersey 

Turnpike Authority must corisider accomplishin~ a massive $2.9 

billion debt re-financing, one of the most complex public finance 

transactions ever undertaken, and do it under extreme time 

constraints. 

Mindful of the history of such efforts by the Authority, its 

leaders decided to implement what turned out to be the most' 

rigorous selectiori criteria for professional firms and cost 

controls ever utilized by the Authority. 

As a result, the re-financing achieved the following goals: 

The re~financing provided flexibility for 
new projects which the Authority was required to 
undertake, and for a critical $400 million purchase of 
part of Interstate Route 95 to help balance the State 
budget. 

The Authority's fiscal approach to the refinancing was 
regarded so favorably that its "A" bond rating was 
~aintained, thus permitting the bonds to be sold at 
lower interest rates, saving more than $260 million 
over the life of the bonds. 

The cost of the re-financing, at $26 million, was less 
than one-half the cost of the previous ventures by the 
Authority in the 1980s. 

·The Authority avoided the necessity of considering a 
future toll increase for at least four years. 

The achievement of these goals was· not easy. ·xt requiied a 

long and exhaustive process and decisions on a great many 

technical matters. 
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For the first time, the Authority determined to utilize a 

competitive process in every aspect of the entire bond issue, and 

began it with the selection of an -experienced financial advisor 

with a national reputation to assist the Authority with its final 

determinations. Among the recommendations advanced by the 

financial advisor was identification of the prospective 

underwriters. 

The underwriters were officially selected through a 

Resolution adopted by_the Authority on July 2, 1991 approving the 

recommendations of the financial advisor. These recommendations 

included a list of firms which would be involved in actually 

selling the bonds. In view of recent media reports, it is 

important to riote that the Authority at no time had before it, nor 

did it approve, the names of Armacon Securities or Consolidated 

Financial Management as part of that group. 

The prime motivation of the Authority throu9hout the entire 

re-financing proc~ss was to obtain the best result for its 

bondholders, its toll payers and the State of New Jersey. The 

record demonstrates that goal was achieved. 
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I. Pr,lude to the Refinancing 

In accordance with existing bond covenants, the 1989 

Certification of the Comptroller evaluated the financial condition 

of the Authority and stated that an operating deficit would occur 

because of rising operating costs and debt service. This was 

partly du~ to an anticipated 1986 toll increas~ that was not 

implemented. 

Later in 1989~ the Authority proposed to raise tolls to cover 

this deficit. After Governor Jim Florio assumed office in January 

1990~ the New Jersey State Department of the Treasury conducted a 

preliminary review of the Author~ty's finances and the proposed 

toll increase in consultation with Authority staff, the New Jersey 

Department of Transportation and Treasury's special financial 

advisor, Dillon, Read & Co. 

The Treasurer found the Authority's finances t~ be in need of 

substantial restructuring in light of currerit and projected 

deficits, and its proposed widening construction program to be 

"poorly defined and not supported by any coordinated planning or 

statewide transportation policy." (Exhibit A). The toll increase 

was postponed by the Treasurer until the Authority put its 

financjal and capital programs in order. 

Shortly thereafter, in April ~990, Governor Florio appointed 

David J. Goldberg as Chairman of the Authority to oversee actions 

~f the Authority, and Donald L. Watson as Executive Direct6r to 

manage its daily operations. Their first charge was to revi•w and 

reevaluate the Authority's :~idening Program and financial 

structure and to implement necessary reforms. 
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Concurrent with these actions, the -Governor signed an 

Executive Order mandatiri9 that all State transportation agencies 

participate in the Transportation Executive Council. This Council 

was directed to integrate the individual plans of each agency for 

the benefit of the citizens of the State of New Jersey. As a 

result, the Authority developed a Business Plan (its.first), which 

was adopted in December 1990. 

Based on favorable reception of the Business Plan, a toll 

increase was approved for implementation in March 1991. This 

served to remedy part of the operating deficit. Additional efforts 

were made to reduce the annual growth in operating expenses, 

including a zero-based budget process, reduction in the number of 

operating departments and Significant reduction in discretionary 

spending. 

Finally, the Authority began to explore ways in which it 

could reduce the annual debt cost on the Authority's outstanding 

bonds--in short, a refinancing~ 

II. How the Refinancing Effort Was Started 

Perhaps the most critical aspect at the beginning of the 

refinancing effort was the selection of a financial advisor. This 

came about as a direct result of the Authority's review of what it 

considered to be undesirable results of its forays into the bond 

market in the 1980s when it did not have such independent 

assistance. And without question, the most important aspect of 

the decision to obtain a top-notch financial advisor, made right 
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at the ~tart, was the basic policy- decision that this firm could 

not participate in the underwriting of the bonds. 

No such independent advisor was in place in 1~84 when the 

Authority moved·to refinance its outstanding 1966 and 1977 bonds 

to achieve test savings, allow for .more flexible bond covenants, 

and provide funds to make statutorily mandated payments to the 

·newly-created New J~rsey Transportation Trust Fund. 

In 1985, $2,001,000,000 of new bonds were issued to (1) 

finance widenin9 of the Turnpike from Interchange 8A in Jamesburg 

to Interchange 9 in East Brunswick and from Interchange 11 in 

Woodbridge to Interchange 18W in Ridgefield Park; (2) construct 

new interchanges and noise barriers, and (3) reconstruct existing 

interchanges. In 1987, the 1985 bonds were remaiketed based on a 

change in market conditions. This remarketing was an automatic 

provision of the 1985 bond covenanta known as the "drop-lock 

conversion", which converted the previous variable fate bonds to 

fixed rate bonds. 

In each instance, the Authority chose its long-time 

underwriter, Smith Barney, Harris Upham & Co., Incorporated 

("Smith Barney~), to structure the offering and to serve as lead 

underwriter. The Authority did not reta~n a financial advisor 

until 1987, too late to review how the issues had been structured, 

or to help negotiate the compensation of Smith Barney or the other 

underwriters to insure a f~ir price and terms. 
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Authority records indieate that as early as September 1983 

and continuing through the first half of 1984, Smith Barney 

provided general financial advice to the Authority on the possible 

refinancing of its then outstanding debt. These services appear 

to have grown out of the firm's long-term relations~ip with the 

Authority, rather than through any specific Authority 

authorization. Smith Barney had been the Authority's informal 

investment advisor since at least 1955. 

Consequently, when the Authority voted to adopt a financing 

plan in June of 1984, it naturally was the one submitted by Smith 

Barney. At that same meeting, the Authority appointed Smith 

Barney as Senior Managing Underwriter for the $500 million bond 

issue called for in the financing plan, and as the Dealer-Manager 

for a proposed tender offer for the Authority's outstanding bonds. 

And on July 17, 1984, the Authority named seven co-managing 

underwrit•rs_ for fif~y percent (50%) of the issue. These actions, 

all taken without any formal competitive selection process, set 

the pattern for the Authority's later actions in 1985 and 1987. 

Smith Barney received a structuring fee, management fee and 

underwriting fee for the 1984 bond issue. 

In 1985, Smith Barney developed another financing plan and 

the Authority once again designated them as lead underwriter for a 

$2 billion bond issue. 

Authority documents indicate that Smith Barney was discussing 

a possible bond issue with the Authority for months prior to any 
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formal Bction by the Authority appointing Smith Barney in an 

official capacity~ By August 1985, Smith Barney had prepared a 

hypothetical financing schedule for an Authority bond issu~nce. 

Although the arrangements structured by Smith Barney drew the 

attention of the State Treasurer, who expressed concern in October 

about Smith Barney's compensation package, and about.the guarantee 

that they would be lead underwriter in remarketing of bonds, the 

Authority decided to proceed. 

For the 1985 .$2 billion bortd issuance, Smith Barney again 

received a structuring fee, a management fe~ and an underwriting 

fee,· as well as a commitment to remarket the bonds, for ~dditional 

compensation of $14.8 million out of a total of $24 million in 

underwriters' fees. 

The Authority's overall process in marketing of its 1984 and 

1985 bonds received much scrutiny by the Legislature, State 

Treasurer, bond community and media, and soon after they were 

issued the Treasurer wrote the Chairman advising th~t the 

Authority should retain an independent financial advisor. 

The Treasurer's Office proceeded to prepare a draft scope of 

work, and a solicitation letter to four firms for the post of 

financial advisor to the Auth~rity was ready by the summer of 

1986. The letter noted that under existing industry rules, the 

financial advisor could not participate in underwriting any 

Authority bonds while still serving as financial advisor. 

Although interviews occurred in September 1986, Kidder, Peabody & 
. 

Co., Incorporated ("Kidder Peabody") was not formally appointed by 

the Authority until January 20, 1987. 



Even as Kidder, Peabody was being retained, Smith Barney 

continued to push forward as the "remarketing agent" for the 19BS 

bonds. By September 1986, it had prepared a financial analysis of 

the conversion from a variable to a fixe~ interest rate 

as contemplated by the 1985 bonds. By January 1987, it· had 

completed a financing schedule calling for the conversion to take 

place on March S, 1987. On January 30, 1987, ten days after the 

formal naming of a financial advisor, the Authority approved· Smith 

Barney's proposal to implement the conversion. The Authority has 

no record of Kidder, Peabody having given input into the Smith 

Barney proposal. 

As with its 1984 and 1985 issuances, the Authority did not 

select the underwriting group for the 1987 remarketing by any 

formal competitive process. The pattern of using Smith Barney as 

lead underwriter was repeated. Remaining underwriters were chosen 

without any open public solicitation of interest. In 1987, the 

Authority did have the services of its recently retained financial 

advisor, -Kidder Peabody; however, that advisor could only counsel 

the Authority on implementation of the remarketin9 previously 

negotiated with Smith Barney. 

Remarketing the 1985 bonds produced a management fee and 

"remarketing" underwriter fees for Smith Barney amounting to $3.8 

~illion out of a total cost of Sl9.7 million. 

The "closed" process of 1984-87 resulted in fees 

disproportionately higher than those of the more open and 

competitive 1991-1992 approach, even though the size, effort and 

complexity of the two efforts were comparable. (Chart I). 
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CHART I 

Comparison of Financing Costs 

Service 1984 CD 1987 1991 - 1992 
Offerings Offerings 

--

Underwriting Fees 38, 771, 173 20,084,185 

Remarketing Fees 18,243,323 0 

Management/Financial Advisor Fees 4, 121.286 2,275,000 

Advertising 366,360 213, 166 

Accounting 155,314 66,000 

Verification Agent 35,000 14,500 

Bond Counsel I 1,075,337 843,331 

Other Counsel I 432,930 445,546 

Special Tax Counsel 0 277,586 

Call Notice . I 0 441-,933 
-

General Consultant _7,979 25,397 

Traffic Consultant 191 ,396 13, 154 

Marketing 0 27,056 

Printing I 2.567,948 578,632 

Rating Services I 249,950 472,600 

Trustee, Registrar. Paying Agent I 644,475 318,199 

Miscellaneous I 34,985 4.764 

Total Cost ss.a91,4ss I 2s.101.049 
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By March of 1991, the Authority was reviewing whether some 

form of new financing might be needed. On the 12th of that month, 

Kidder, Peabody & Co. told the Authority it wished to withdraw as 

financial advisot, in hopes of obtaining a future underwriting 

assignment. (Exhibit ·B). 

Since passage of legislation requ~ring the $400 million I-95 

purchase would necessitate Turnpike action, there was a critical 

need to prepare for the possible refinancing without delay,. 

meaning the Authority must act quickly to retain a new financial 

advisor. A competitive selection process was instituted 

immediately. 

The Authority's Comptroller, with the input of the State 

Treasurer, prepared a Request for Proposal ("RFP") in early March. 

It was sent to twelve firms which had either expressed interest in 

the role in the past, had a natfonal reputation for such services, 

or had the recommendation of the State Treasurer. The scope of 

services included, among other· things, reviewing the Authority's 

financial structure and recommending cost saving measures, and 

advising on the implications of a broad-based refinancing program. 

The RFP specifically precluded any firm appointed financial 

advisor from handling the underwriting of Turnpike bondso 

(Exhibit C). 

As anticipated, industry interest in the financial advisor's 

role was extremely limited. 

Proposals. were received in response to the.RFP from only four 

firms. Because of the light response, those firms that did not 
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respond were asked why they did not wish to participate. Six 

firms were more interested in potential underwriting 

opportuniti~s; the other two did not feel they had ~ufficiertt time 

to prepare a proposal. 

The four firms were in~erviewed by the Chairman, the 

Executive Director, and the Comptroller on March 20th. They 

identified Chase Securities, Inc. as the first choice, 

based on its experience and credentials in transportation 

financing. 

At the March 28, 1991 Commission Meeting, the Commissioners 

appointed Chase financial advisor. (Exhibit D). Chase be9an 

working immediately on an RFP for underwriting services in the 

event the Authority chose to refund its outstanding bonds and 

issue new bonds. 

Less than a month after it had been selected as the 

Authority's financial advisor, Chase notified the Authority that 

as a result of a corporate reorganization, it had decided to 

withdraw from the business of providing municipal advisory 

services and to discontinue its services as the Authority's 

financial advisor. (Exhibit E). By now, time was of the essence, 

and so the Authority's Commissioners approved a special resolution 

at their April° 30, 1991 meeting authorizing the Executive Director 

to select a new financial advisor to ~eplace Chase, to be 

confirmed by the Commissioners at their May meeting. 
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Firms previously contatted were contacted again by the 

Authority's Comptroller, advised of recent developments, and given 

a new opportunity to submit proposals. Lazard Freres & Co., which 

had not made a proposal originally, submitted one on May 2, and 

the two other firms which had previously expressed interest in 

interviewing for the position, but did not do so for lack of time, 

also made presentations. The Executive Director, Comptroller and 

Executive Assistant reviewed Lazard's proposal, ·conducted 

interviews with all three of the new prospective financial 

advisors,· reconsidered the firms previously interviewed, and 

unanimously selected Lazard, one of the nation's top financial 

advisory firms. (Exhibit F). 

III. 1991-1992 Bond IS$_UeS 

The new financial advisor confronted two immediate tasks 

which, of necessity, had to be performed within the sh~rt time 

remaining--preparati~n of a Plan of Finance and managing the 

underwriting RFP then in progress. In essence, the Plan of 

Finance was a policy documertt outlining the objectives of the 

refinancing, decisions on how many separate issues should be 

marketed, how they should be structured, and a number of other 

tax, financial and legal considerations involving the Authority's 

need for greater flexibility in utilizing the proceeds. In 

addition to the financial advisor and staff of the Authority, the 

offices of the Attorney General and Treasurer were involved in 

this process. (Exhibit G). 

Managing the.underwriting RFP, including recommendations as 

to the senipr Underwriters and Co~managers, was considered a 
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technical professional effort in which the financial advisor 

g&nerally acted as the lead. 

First drafts of the RFP for underwriting services had been 

prepared by Chase but were finalized by the Comptroller after 

Chase withdrew. The RFP was released to the market on May 2nd. 

(Exhibit H). This RFP indicated that the Authority had not yet 

decided whether to r~finance, but wanted to be in a position to go 

to market as quickly and economically as possible. 

The RFP was sent to approximately 54 firms that had expressed 

an interest. (See Exhibit I for list of firms). A legal 

advertisement was printed in the Bond Buyer, the municip~l finance 

industry's primary source of daily information on. Monday, May 6 

(Exhibit J). 

Lazard's first duty with regard to the RFP was to review the 

document that had been distributed on May 2 and to prepare 

additions to the RFP for distribution a week later. (Exhibit K). 

Proposals to particip~te in various underwriting capacities 

were received from the 49 firms indicated in Exhibit L at Lazard's 

offices on May 20th. 

The following eleven firms proposed. to serve as senior 

managing underwriters (the underwriter who coordinates the sale 

and ~ho represents the interests of all.other underwriters to be 

allocated· bonds in that parti~ular offering, as well as its own 

interests): 

1. PaineWebber Incorporated 7. Goldman, Sachs & Co. 
2. Lthman Brothers · 8. Dean Witter Reynolds, Inc. 
3. Merrill Lynch & Co. 
4. Dillon Read & Co., Inc. _ 

9. Kidder, Peabody & Co., Inc. 
10. Smith Bainey, Harris Upham & Co. 

5. Donaldson~ Lufkin & Jenrette 11. Bear Stearns & Co., Inc. 
6. The First Boston Corporation 
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All proposals were distributed for review to the Acting 

Comptroller, the Executive Assistant to the Executive Director, 

the State Treasurer and Lazard. Proposals from the prospective 

senior managing underwriters were circulated to these persons and 

to the Chairman, Executive Director, Comptroller, Director of Law, 

General Counsel, Bond Counsel and Special Tax Counsel. 

Lazard was instructed by the Authority that the underwriter 

selection process was to be open to all firms interested in 

participating, so that all firms expressing an interest would be 

included in the financing in some role. Further, Lazard was 

charged with the responsibility of making certain the lead 

underwriter made a fair allocation of bonds and profits to other 

underwriters· involved in actual sale of Turnpike bonds. 

And, in view of the Authority's concern for New Jersey based 

businesses and for mlnority and women-owned firms, a policy 

directive was issued to Lazard that every opportunity be given to 

such firms to parti~ipate in the sale. 

The_ eleven firms seeking to participate as senior managing 

underwriter were invited to oral interviews led by Lazard in early 

June. Each was limited to no more than four key representatives 

who would work on the transaction. Interviews were limited to one 

hour with each firm given the opportunity to make a brief opening 

-and closing statement. The ·interviews actually took between 40 

and SO minutes. The remaining portion of each hour was used by 

the interviewers to discuss the interview among themselves and to 

• 

-15-



prepare personal evaluations of the prospective underwriters. In 

-the interest of even-handed treatment, a standard series of 

sixteen questions was drafted by Lazard with input from the Acting 

Co~ptroller, and these questions were posed by the interviewing 

committee. (Exhibit M). To further assure fairness, only the 

prepared que~tions were used. 

The designated interviewing committee consisted of: 

Lazard Freres Partners Richard Poirier 
and Jack Tamagni 

(Mr. Tamagni attended some, but not all, 
interviews) 

Chairman David Goldberg 
Executive Director Donald Watson 
Acting Comptroller John Jacobsen 

In addition, the State Treasurer's representative, Director 

of Finance ~obert Lurie, was present at all the interviews, and 

the Authority Commissioner Clay Constantinou attended some. 

Up to this point, the Authority had not decided to proceed 

with a refinancing. However, on June 30 legislation was adopted 

directing the Authority to purchase the I-95 Extension from the 

State for $400 million. While legislation was before the Senate 

and General Assembly, Chairman Goldberg testified that the 

approval of this legislation would require the total and immediate 

refinancing-of the Authority's then outstanding bonded 

indebtedness. 

ln anticipation of the passage of the legislation, Lazard 

prepared underwriter recommendations, based on the personal' 

evaluations of the proposals, interviews, the discussions that had 
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occurred after each interview, and Lazard's first-hand expertise 

in the underwriting field. (Exhibit N). These recommendations 

were transmitted to the Authority via the chart shown as a part of 

Exhibit 0. 

These included a schedule showing senior managing, co-senior 

managing, co-managing and selling group underwriters for each 

series then proposed, based on the particular needs (i.e., 

institutional sales, retail sales, financial strength, and 

innovative expertise) of each offering. The senior and co-senior 

managers recommended by Lazard and approved at the July 2, 1991 

Commissioners Meeting were: 

Senior Managing 
Underwriter 

Co-Senior 

Series 
1991A/B 

The First Boston 
Corporation 

Bear, Stearns & 
Co., Inc. 

PaineWebber 
Incorporated 

Series 
1991C/D 

Merrill Lynch & 
Co. 

Donaldson, Lufkin 
& Jenrette 

. Kidder, Peabody & 
Co., Inc. 

Smith Barney, Harris 
Upham & Co., Inc. 

Series 
1991E * 

Goldman, Sachs 
& Co. 

Dillon, Read & 
Co., Inc. 

Lehman Brothers 

Dean Witter 
Reynolds, Inc. 

When changes in the marketing strategy for certain issues 

were later shifted to maximize the capabilities of marketing to 

individual irivestors, First Boston was replaced by PaineWebber as 

the senior managing underwriter for the Series 1991B offering, and 

Goldman-Sachs was replaced by Lehman Brothers a·s senior manager 

for the Series 1992B issue. These changes were.permitted under 

the Authority's RFP. 

In the selection of particular profession-al firms from among 

a group of organizations general~y regarded as leaders in their 

* Note: Series 1991E became Series 1992A and B. 
~.$' J( 
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fi~ld to perform complex technical services, it is virtually 

impossible to assign separate and distinct precise "scores" to 

each of them. No such effort Vas made in this ins~ance .. 

Lazard's final recommendations were based on th~ discussions 

at the interview sessions and Laza~d's own professional 

expertise. It should be recognized that all these firms 

interviewed demonstiated a willingness to accept a refinancing 

controll~d by the Authority through its independent financial 

advisor, an ability to service a broad spread of retail and 

institutional customers, the necessary expertise to carry off such 

a complicated series of transactions, a commitment to absorb any 

losses that might occur as a result of interest rate shifts 

between the date of signing of the contract of purchase and the 

date of closing, and the financial resources to carry through on 

the pledge to absorb pre-closing losses. 

The Authority accepted all the underwriter recommendations 

submitted by Lazard, including the se~ection of Merrill Lynch to 

manage the largest and most complex component of the refinancing. 

Lazard's choice was based upon Merrill Lynch's track ~ecord, 

innovative financing expertise, broad marketing capabilities in 

both institutional and retail sales, and financial ability to 

absorb any leases had the 1991C and 19910 Series proved 

unprofitable, recognizing.that the sehior managing urtd~rwriter 

bore the lion's share of the risk associated with these offerings. 
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All these objectives were achieved by th• 1991-1992 bond 

refinancing. 

Lazard's Plan of Finance proposed four steps involving a 

series of bond offerings and other actions needed to refund 

outstanding bonds and create· new debt. This would permit more 

innovative financing to fund the projects set forth in the 

Bu-siness Plan, new transportation projects not yet funded and, 

very importantly, acquisition of the I-95 Extension. After review 

and comment by the Chair~an, Executive Director, Acting 

Comptroller, General Counsel, Bond Counsel and Special Tax 

Counsel, the Plan of Finance adopted at the July 2, 1991 

Commission Meeting provided for: 

1. Restructuring existing investments to free cash for use 
in refundings of 1984 and 1985 bonds; 

2. Refunding the Series 1984 bonds with the proceeds from 
the sale of tax-exempt Series 1991A and 1991B bonds; 

3. Refunding Series 1985 bonds with proceeds from the sale 
of series 1991-C and 19910 tax-exempt bonds 
and with excess proceeds from the 1985 bonds arising 
from the abandonment of the Western Spur 
widening; and 

4. Issuing Series 1991E bonds (later changed to Series 
1992A and 1992B) to pay for the acquisition of the I-95 

_ Extension and to fund new projects contained in the 
Business Plan. 

(E~hibit O). 
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During the activities discussed above, there were several 

other professional services being retained to complete this 

refinancing, including special tax counsel, bond counsel, trustee, 

paying agent, verification agent, swap provider and financial 

printing services. All these services were procured using a 

competitive selection proce~s similar to those previously 

described. 

(Because of the obvious public interest in the process for 

selecting the underwriters for the 1991-1992 bond issue, a 

thorough discussion of the rationale for the process is described 

in Appendix II.) 

IV. Conclusion 

The results of the offering were considered highly successful 

by the Authority, the State Administration and the muni~ipal bond 

market. Each issue was positively received by the markets and 

quickly sold out. 

The re-financing provided flexibility for 
new projects which the Authority was required to 
undertake, and for a critical $400 million purchase of 
part of Interstate Route 95 to help balance the State 
budget. 

The Authority's fiscal approach to the refinancing was 
regarded so favorably that its "A" bond rating was 
maintained thus permitting the bonds to be sold at 
lower interest rates, saving more than $260 million 
over the life of the bonds. (Exhibits P through T). 

The cost of the re-financing, at $26 million, was le~s 
than one-half the cost of the previous ventures by the 
Authority in the 1980s. 

The Authority avoided the necessity of conside~ing a 
future toll increase for at least four·years. 
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Based on these results, the Authority believed then--and 

still does-~that the 1991-1992 refinancing was a considerable 

success, and the process described in this report demonstrates 

··throughout careful regard for the public interest. 
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APPENDIX I 

'The New Jersey Turnpike Authority is an agency of the State 

of New Jersey established within the New Jersey Department of 

Transportation and assigned the powers and responsibilities set 

forth in NJSA 27:23-1 et seq. Although described as an 

independent Authority, the provisions ~f· this law mandate that the 

Authority carry out its responsibilities in close coordination 

with the Executive Branch of State Government. The Commissioner 

of the New Jersey Department of Transpo~tation serves as a member 

of the Authority in an ex officio capacity. Although Authority 

members have specified terms of years, the Chairman is designated 

by the Go~ernor and serves at his pleasure. All actions of the 

Authority set forth in its minutes are subject to review by the 

Governor~ In addition, NJSA 27:23-3(F) requires the prior 

approval in writing of the Governor and State Treasurer or the 

Director of the Division of Budget and Accounting in the 

Department of the Treasury before the Authority may issue or 

refund bonds or other obligations. 

On June 30, 1991, legislation was enacted which directed the 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority to acquire a 4.4-mile section of 

the limited access super highway known as Interstate 95 ("I-95" 

Extension), which extended from the then existing northern 

terminus of the Turnpike to the George Washington Bridge. This 

legislation provided that the State would sell this section of 
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I-95. The Authority, in turn, was obligated to pay to the State 

in consideration therefor the sum of $400,000,000 . 
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APPENDIX II 

Rationale for Process Used to Select Underwriters 

The RFP process is a standard technique used by public 

a9encies for selecting financial, engineering and like 

professional services. In contrast to sealed bidding, where the 

lowest bidder automatically receives the award, the RFP process is 

particularly suited for selecting private firms to perform complex 

work or tasks calling for the exercise of discretion or 

professional jud9ment. The RFP process is premised on the 

judgment that the firm offering the lowest transaction costs may 

not ultimately provide the least expensive service in the 

long-term, considering the financial and legal conseque~ces of 

poor judgment or lack of experience on the part of the 

professional. Governor Florie's recent promulgation of Executive 

Order 92 recognizes that sealed bidding may be the more 

appropriate underwriter selection process for conventional bond 

transactions but nevertheless provides for an RFP process on 

particularly complex debt offerings. 

The selection of under~riters for the 1991-92 refinancing is 

a prime example of the sort of complex offering where the exercise 

of poor judgment 6r the lack of expertise could ultimately have 

proved costly to the Authority and its bondholders by reducing or 
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eliminating the savings that could be realized by refinancing. 

The Authority's desire to explor~ and benefit from innovative 

financing techniques such as interest rate swaps called for the 

selection of senior managing underwriters having significant 

experience in such ~ndeavors. ·Just as important, the selection of 

a firm based purely on the lowest quoted interest rate and 

underwriters' discount for any of the bond off•rings could have 

resulted in an award to a firm or firms having little experience 

or limited capacity.to underwrite and market the Authority's 

bonds. Such a fir~ could have weakened the m~rket's confidence in 

that and subsequent bond offerings. This could have had serious 

f inaneial and legal consequences for the overall success of the 

Plan of Finance. Thus, the Authority considered it essential that 

firms of the highest caliber and reputation be selected to lead 

each of the five offerings, based on the their respective 

_ strengths and the particular needs of each offering (i.e., 

institutional versus- retail marketing strength, ability to absorb 

losses in the event of unsuccessful sale, ability to structure 

innovative debt instruments). 

The technical and legal requirements of the Authority's Plan 

of Finance were such that the a~ternative, sealed bidding or 

competitive sale of the bonds, was not a feasible method of 

accomplishing the Plan of Finan~e. The competitive bidding 

approach to the issuance of securities requires that all the 

significant terms of the securities (except interest rate) be 
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known in advance of the actual sale of securities. These terms 

must be fixed for publication in a "notice of sale" at lea$t one 

or tw.o weeks in advance of the receipt of sealed proposals. 

Underwriters then bid on the published terms and conditions by 

delivering a seal~d quote for specific interest rates for each 

maturity. When the sealed bids are opened, the award is made to 

the underwriter offering to buy the bonds at the lowest interest 

rate. The issuer of the bonds is obligated either to accept the 

lowest bid or to reject all bids. 

This method of selling bonds works where the securities are 

easy t~ understand and virtually all the terms of the bonds are 

known with a high level of certainty prior to advertising the sale 

of the bonds. The Authority's Plan of Finance involved 

determinations about the terms of the debt securitie~ that could 

not be known until the interest rates for the bonds were being 

negotiated in the market. For example, the Authorit~ needed the 

flexibility to adjust the maturities of the bonds and the 

principal amount of the bonds within any maturity in order to take 

advantage of the lowest possible rate~ available in the market at 

the time the bonds were being offered. Such adjustments might 

have been, and in fact were, material. These adjustments could 

not have been accomplished in a competitive sale, except with a 

very narrow range, once a noti~e of sale had be~n published 

identifying the specific maturities to be bid upon. With the 

guidance of the Authority's financial advisor and underwriters, 
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the Authority was able to structure the maturities in response to 

market conditions in each of its 1991-1992 financings in order to 

obtain the most favorable interest rates. 

Similarly, the Authority took advantage of certain 

complicated financing techniques that likewise do not lend 

themselves to the competitive sale process. The selective use of 

municipal bond insurance is an example. The decision to use 

municipal bond insurance depends on ~hether insured bonds will 

offer an interest rate sufficiently lower than the rate on 

uninsured bonds such that the savings from the lower interest 

rates on the· insured bonds will offset the cost of the premium 

paid for the bond insurance. A decision whether to use municipal 

bond insurance cannot be ~ade until the interest rates on the 

bonds are krtown. In some instances, insurance will save money 

while in other instances it will not. This is a decision that 

could have been made by the Authority only at the time of 

negotiating the interest rates for the bonds. 

As a further example, the Authority also took advantage of a 

municipal bond insurance policy for funding a debt service reserve 

fund on one of its issues. Normally, such reserves are funded 

with casp from the proceeds of the bonds; however, if market 

conditions are suitable, savings can. be achieved by using a 

reserve fund insurance policy. The decision to use the reserve 

fund in~urance policy was not made until the Authority negotiated 

the prices on the bonds. Under the-competitive bidding approach, . 
the Authority would have been required to select this. feature in 

advance and hope the decision proved to be correct. 



As yet another example, the Authority's Series 19910 bonds 

were issued as variable rate bonds where the interest rate on the 

bonds fluctuates weekly subject to a bondholders' right to t~nder 

the Bond to the Authority for full payment. Such transactions 

cannot be competitively ~id because the initial interest rate is 

effective only for a short time. It is impossible to sell this 

type of securities on a weekly basi~ subject to competitive 

bidding. Once the securities are issued, it is critical that.the 

Authority have a relationship with an underwriter having the skill 

and experience in the variable rate marketplace to continue to 

reset the interest rate on the bonds and to maintain a viable 

secondary market in the bonds. The competitive sale process 

provides no assurance that the Authority would be able to maintain 

such a secondary market or have firms capable of properly setting 

variable rates on a weekly basis .. 

The Authority also took advantage of an interest rate swap 

agreement in the context of the ?eries 19910 bonds. This 

agreement permitted the Authority .to protect itself from rising 

interest rates by exchanging the variable rate paid on the Series · 

19910 bonds for a fixed rate that was lower than comparable fixed 

rates being offered for the Authority's bonds at that time. The 

decision to use this complicated financial structure was not made 

until the day the bonds were pri~ed, when it could be ascertained 

that such a financing techniqu~ would result in ~avin9s to the 

Authority. The competitive sale, which requires that all 
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significant terms of the bonds be established and fixed well in 

advance of the sale, would have precluded the Authority from 

implementing ~his technique. The Authority did, howe~er, evaluate 

proposals from an~ conduct interviews with five different 

providers of swap arrangement~. The proposals involved 

considerations of cost, experience and security. AIG Financial 

Products was ultimately selected as the Authority's swap provider 

Timing was also a key factor in the implementation of the 

Plan of Finance. Federal income tax laws dealing with the 

issuance of tax exempt bonds required that the Bond issues be 

separated by at least thirty-one days. The use of competitive 

bidding on interest rates r~quires at least two-weeks' lead time 

for the sale of bonds to an underwriter on a fixed date regardless 

of market conditions. If market conditions were unfavorable at 

the time the sealed bids were opened, the Authority would have 

been put in the position of either rejecting all the bids and 

starting over or accepting a bid that was not in its best 

interests. 

By contrast, in a negotiated sale, the Authority is permitted 

to withdraw from pricing on a bad day and is free to undertake 

pricing as conditions improve. In this refinancing, the Authority 

withdrew the scheduled pricing of its Series 1991C bonds and 

entered the market the next day when ma.rket conditions were more 

favorable. Had the bonds been sold competitively, the Authority 
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would have been required to a~cept the below-market price for the 

bonds or to reject all bids on the scheduled date and republish a 

notice of sale for as many as two or three weeks later, all with 

no assurance that market conditions on that date would be suitable 

for the financing. Such a delay might have imperiled the 

Authority's ability to c~mplete its Plan of Finance on Schedule~ 

given the issue separation requirements and timing imposed by the 

Federal income tax laws. Use of a pure "competitive sale" of the 

Authority's bonds (i) offered the Authority no assurance that it 

would receive the best interest rates and greatest savings; (ii) 

would have precluded the Authority from using financing techniques 

that resulted in savings; and (iii) might have resulted in a 

failure to complete the Plan of Finance. Accordingly, the 

Authority used the RFP process for the selection of senior 

managing underwriters for the 1991-91 series of bond issues. 
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ST.~TE OF" ~EW ·JERSEY 
· OEPAATMENT OF nfE TREASURY 

STATI MOUH 
CNGDZ 

~9'1NTON. NIW JIRHY 08121~2 

EXHIBIT A 

DOUGLAS C. lll:JIMAN 
STATE T"USURllit 

Honorable James J. Florio 
Governor 
State House 

·Trenton. ~.J. 08625 

Dear Governor: 

February 23. 1990 

You recentiv recuested that the Decartment of the Tre~surv review the 
necessity for the ~ew Jer.sey Turnpike Authority to in5titute by April 1 one of several 
contemplated proposals for :i toU increase. 

In connection with that -review the Depanment evaluated the foUowin2 
materials supplied by the Authority as jusufication for an increase in 1990 including: -

The Authoricy~s 198i-1989 financial statements: 

The 1990 Proposed Oper:iting Budget: 

The Toll Sensitivity :ind Revenue Projection Study prepared by Wilbur Smith 
. .\ssoc:iates; 

The bond documents for the Authorir_v's 1984 and 1985 Bond issues: 

The Authoncy·s financi~l projections (and underlying assumptions) through 2001: 

• The Authorii:-'s 1990 C:ipital Plan. 

. The Department has consulted with the Authonry·s staff. counsel. Bond 
Counsel. and investment banker. Also. the Depanment worked closely with staff from vour 
office and the Depanment oi Transponation in performing its review. Funher. we retained 
Dillon. Read & Co. as a special financial advisor for conducting the project. 

Based on our woric we find that: 

There is no financial or leszal need for a toll increase in 1990: funds are available to 
prudently meet au financ:iaf obligations: 

The capital program is pooriy defined and not supponed by any coordinated planning 
or st~tewide m1nsponauon poiicy: . 

A toil increase of 40% • 70% wiil be required. and should be instituted by rrud-1991. 



but not before J full accounting of the operating and capital budgeu can be made to the 
;>ublic: 

·The actual amount oi the toll increase will depend on the revised operating budget ana 
the projected cost and tirrung oi the ultimate capital program. 

We recommend two steps that can be taken to obtain a cash surplus in 1990 
to meet the covenants oi the 1985 Bond issue and eliminate the need for a toll increase in 
1990. First. the Authomy·s operating budget should be cut. The Authority has increased its 
~Pe.rating budget by an average of almost JO% per year for several years.. and the same was 
1nmally proposed for 1990. Our analysis shows that the budget could be c:utto below a i% 
2rowth rate. resultin2 in about S4 rrullion in savine. Second. the Autboritv sbould use ail 
~~terest earnings to pay. fo.~ interest expense on its bond~. This is a common practice tn 
tmanan2 toll roads. as ma1cated bv Dillon Read &. Co. in the attached letter. There is 
approximately S30 rruilion of current year earnings and S64 million prior years eamino 
ava1iable for that puf?OSe. The Authonry's projected 1990 deficit was based. in large pait. 
uoon its decision to use construction fund earnings as additional construction funds for us 
ili-defineci cap11al program rather than as an oifset to its current interest expense. 

In summary. \\·e believe that toll-payers' funds should not be spent until there is a 
comprehensive and integrated statewide transportation planning process which 
incorporates an appropriate Turnpike Authority .construction program. Bondholders 
should also take. c:omf on from these actions since better coordination will enhance public: 
suppon for future Authority toil proposals . 
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!-ionOf'lbie Dou~ C. ~ 
Seate Trasmw 
~t of Treaaurv 
State House. Q40m . 
'!'l"i:'\tOn. New Jtfte.¥ m62S 

OarOoug: 

- - - - ~ : ··-·-·-- ..... 

·.J~-.J' .... /'1-' ..... ~ 
.. ~ ~~ ., 1'. ~.,..,: !()()~~ 

212·9Qtl'· 'f()()t) 

~Z:..1990 

As ?Aft of our m-.w of the enancaJ St.INS ot the New J~ TW"i'lpb Authcm~ uhe 
·.s.u~l. you haw asked us to ccm:nent on whethf:r st IS appropnate tor an &Ssuer. sud\~• 
the Auihcntv. to we mte'i!St anunt:S rrom a C'ONWctson fund to otlslt debt HrYtc;e mcm'T'ld 
~r..n~ C"C"nSmaon. Wt belitve that men an~ is lppropnlte u it raWtS ma Manca.l 
::atching Ot ~ C011S to those awn wno will f«"eft P"O!l"t benefia, 

User fet ~ ~ such as toll roads fftqul!Nfy Mt nf'R based U?Cft apc::thiii for 
:~those taalitics wftid\ are U\ use. Carps tor new tac:i.litia an pos1µcmcct \U\til CO!nJ)leoon. 
To aC'C"Cmoiish this finuaallv. Wuef'S oiftlfl establish am~ mten!lt ICCCW\U IC ti.and debt 
~ce dUra:"\t consnmcm o.f thrY use U\~t amme tram the CON~on Nnd to offstt debt 
!e'Yte'e. !~ !he latter a.. i&Sft'S · ue ~ for c:ebt semar m p•opcn uon to U\e amount of 
~~on tunas which haw~ spent 

:: has been the put pracatt ot the Authont,v to umize interest atnanp to ~nset 1nreirar 
~e. ~e Au~~·s 1987 Remark~ Memcrand~ cc~ated conun~g uus !)ra:tsce. 
~~ON'" that documlnt indic.ued I cnciv.al ancreue "'the llnOW\C of debt HTY1C'e Wftlcft 

wCNJd N\~ to be paid from Net ~es based Oft tht prapoaaon of consu=ucno" pro• 
~mnated tct be mm~ CYW mne. M ot todl~·. t.6\e Widenulg Program nu not pn:>gmsed at 
:~on~~ pro,.aed erpend.&Nft ie"Ym. leaYU\g appnnazml'liy ~of the COl\SU'\icuon r.um 
sftll~ · 

!.n ~· we ~ that tht ~ere of aUOW'lng &ntll'IS't ~ oft W\S~ 
~~on ftmds to offset ~ mmnst D1'i!!'LSE &SIOC:ltvd wtth sud\ hinds as cormsient wnh tn• 
~na~le of only ~· usen tor t"\e CO.St of t.~e ~ which has been spent on pro1eC!S tor 
U'ct!!r bmtftt. 

Youn~. 

~i.D.Ml:V­
~ Vice Prmdent 
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Kidder, Peabody& Co. 

Lime I. Llwia 
HNIO.• vu:1 !l'aUlc:>&Jliil'f 

Mr. Donald Watson 
E:ecutive Directer 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.O. Boz 1121 

lacorporaced 
IC lmlANQVUt SQUAfU: 

NIW VCftl<, N.Y. IOCOS 

New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903 

Dea.rDon: 

EXHIBIT B 

<lt&l 81~Mll 
lfU1 C&ll> llM711 

March 12, 1991 

As you know. Kidder, Peabody hu been the Turncike Authority's financial 
advisor since 1987 t an assignment we have found both rewarding and challenging. 
However, we feel that our basic business foc~s on the origination and trading of tax­
exempt debt precludes us from continuing our advisory role to you beyond April 15. 

I certainly do hope that we can do business with the Authority in the future as one 
of your Wlderwri ten. . 

~L:adg 

' / 

Sin. cerelylli. ~ ~ I t 

0~· -~ 
Laurie B. Lewis 
Senior Vice President 



EXHIBIT C 

NEW JERSEY ·TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

P.O. Box 1121 New Brunswick, N.J. 08903 (201) 2.47.0900 

March 7, 1991 

Michael J. DelGiudice, Partner 
Lazard Freres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

RE: Financial Advisory Services 

Dear Mr. DelGiudice: 

The New Jersey Turnpike Authority (hereinafter "NJTA") wishes 
to engage the s~rvices of a competent financial advisor to provide 
advice to the Comptroller on financial rnatters of the NJTA. Such 
matters may include, but would not be limited to, the examin·ation 
of the financial structure of the N.JTA. and examination of the 
investment strategy, preparation of cash flow projections, and 
~xamination of any additiorial bonding proposals or refinancing 
proposals. A comprehensive Scope of Services is attached as 
Exhibit A. 

The solicitation for these services is being conducted 
pursuant to the statutes and laws of _the State of New Jersey, as 
found in N. J. S • .A. 27: 23-6. l and the regulat'ions and policies of 
the NJTA as they regar~ the procurement of professional services. 

The NJTA will require the following information to be 
submitted in response to this solicitation: 

1. Firm name, mailing address, street address, telephone 
number, and fax numl:>er. 

2. A brief history of the fir~·s background including the 
date of establishuient '· senior partners/executives, and the· 
anticipated partner/executive-in-charge. of this account. 

3. The credentials of all pr~fessional staff expected to be 
assigned to this account, emphasizing the staff's experience 
in providi~g financial services to firms/agencies similar in 
size and structure to the NJTA. ?lease provide detail as to 
the role each member of t~e :ea~ would have on this account. 



NEW JERSEY iURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

RE: Financial Advisory Services . 
March 7, 1991 
Page Two 

4. List the transportation financings on which your firm has 
served as financial advisor or senior managing underwriter 
during the past two (2) years. Please include the amount, 
date, issuer, purP.ose, your firm's role, and the staff 
responsible for each financing. 

5. Provide at least three examples of relevant, similar work 
done for otber clients by the primary members of the tea~ 
your firm is proposing for this account. 

6. Explain to the NJTA the method/system used by your firm 
to obtain timely bond information. 

i. Please provide your fir='s rate schedule including hourly 
r~tes for partners/executives, associates and administrative 
services. The anticipated contract amount for these services 
is SS0,000.00 annually, however tr.is amount will be prorated 

· - f :r 1991. 

8. Ideftti!y the li:its of !iabili:y for professional errors 
and omissions insurance that your :~rm currently holds. -

9. References from public agencies, ~r other clients of a 
si~ilar nature. This may include any letters of 
recommendation from any client wishing to provide same. 

10. A statement of your fir:'s Policy on Equal Employment 
C~portunity/Atfirmative Actio?'.l. Additionally, your firm's 
ackno~ledgment to complete £11 fcr~s required by the New 
Jarsey Depart:ent of the Treasury, Office of Affirmative 
Action. 

ll. Please complete the Affidavit of Moral Integrity, 
attached as Exhibit B. 

i;. Each proposal submitted must be signed by an by an 
c:!icer authorized to make bi~ding commitments for your firm . 

. ~~e NJTA reserves the rignt ~ot :: retain the services of a 
!inanc~al advisor at t~is ti:e i! =~==~=stances deem it in the 
~est ~=:erests cf :he NJTA. ~owever, ~! such services are 
retai=ed bas~d on this solic~:at~==· ser~ices will be required 
~egi==~nQ May :. :991. 



NEW JERSEY iURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

RE: Financial Advisory Servi~es 
March7. 1991 
Page Three 

• 

The firm selected as the NJTA's fin•ncial advisor will be 
precluded from any underwriting activities the NJTA may require at 
a future.date for any bond activity which may occur during the 
life. of any agreement for the services listed in this 
solicitation. · • 

·The firm selected to provide these services will be expected 
to comply with the NJTA Code of Ethics. and any and all Federal 
and New Jersey State laws and regulations pertaining to the 
fina?cial industry. 

?lease be advised ~hat any fir~ which has any clients which 
would present any actual or potential conflicts of interest with 
the NJTA. may be disqualified from participation in this 
solici~ation. Should your fir~ determine that it has a client 
which appears on its face to possibly present a conflict of 
interest. please list any and all such clients so that the NJTA 

·may make a determination as ~o whether an actual or potential 
conflic~ exists. 

Copies of the 1984 Ge~eral ~evenue Bond Resolution. the First 
Supple~ental Revenue Bond Resolution. the Second Supplemental 
Revenue Bond Reso~ution, and NJTA 1989 Annual Report ar• attached 
for your information. 

Should your firm wish to respond to this solicitation. please 
do so by supplying five copies of the requested information in 
writing to Catherine A. Schladebeck. ~omptroller, New Jersey 
Turnpike Authority, P.O. Sox :1::, New Brunswick, New Jersey, 
08903, (908)-247-0900, no later :h~n March 15, 1991. Should you 
wish to deliver your proposal. the street address is Rte. 18 South 
and I~terchanoe 9. Please direct any any and all inquiries on 
this matter to the undersigned. 

Very truly yours. 

~-'~ 
:a:~erine A. Schladebeck 
:=::po;:-oller 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Financial Advisor 

The Financial Advisor for the New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
(hereinafter "NJTA") would be expected to perform the following: 

1. Revie~ of NJTA's financial structure; make recommendations for 
greater efficiency and/or cost effectiveness. 

2. Review, evaluate, comment and coordinate responses to financing 
proposals to NJTA from investment banking community. 

3. Provide bond market information to NJTA on a timely basis. 

4. Assist in updating the investment community (in particular the 
Rating Agencies) on the NJTA's financial plans and the status of 
its projects.· 

5. Attend NJTA board and s~aff meetings, as requested. 

6. Perform computer cash-flov modeling to project the effects of 
various financial strategies. 

7. Exa~ine and evaluate arbitrage and reissuance questions. 

8. If bond financing becomes necessary during the term of this 
agreement: 

a. Advise on the financial structure that achieves the lowest 
cost of debt for the Authority, . 

b. Advise on the timing of the sale, 

c. Advise on the structure of ·underwriting and/or selling 
groups, 

d. Review and assist in developing specifications for obtaining 
the services of a competent undervriter, and in negotiating 
all undervriting and placement fees for the bonds, 

e. Perform arbitrag~ calculations as necessary, 

f. Attend all document meetings. 

9. ~ork vi th NJTA staff. Investment Bankers. Bond Counsel, Special 
7ax Counsel and General Counsei in NJTA financial matters. 

10. 3e available to provide financial advice on an as needed basis. 



N E W J E R S E Y TU R N P I K E A U T H 0 R IT Y 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

March 27, 1991 

EXHIBIT D 

RE: Authorization to Retain the Firm of 
Chase Securities, Inc. to Provide Financial 
Advisory Services to the Authority 

The New Jersey Turnpike Aut~ority requires the services of a 
competent Fir.ancial Advisor to assist in,the planning of financial 
invest~ents on behalf of the Authority. Kidder; Peabody & Co. has 
served the Authority for several years in the capacity of 
Financial Advisor. This association will end at their request on 
April 15, 1991. 

In anticipation of this sep~ration, on March 7, 1991 the 
Authority solicited proposals for Financial Advisory Services fro~ 
twelve fir::ls: four of the fir:s responded. The four fir:ns which 
su.b:ii t ted proposals are Chase Sec:u·ri ties, Inc:. , Public Fina:icial 
Manaqement. Inc:., Alex Brown & Sons and Ernst & Younq. Each fir:: 
was interviewed by the Chair~an, ~xecutive Directer and 
Cc:nptroller. 

Durinq each interview. clari!ic:ation was qiven to each fir~ 
reqardinq the reference in the Solicitation tor Services 
indicatinq a SSO, 000 annual cap ~or the services to be per~or:ned,. 
Each proposer was advised that in the event of a major financial 
restructurinq or other ext~aordinary financial transactions. the 
cap would not- apply and the ~reposed rate schedule would ;~vern . 

. •.•. 

Chase Securities. Inc. is reccmmended to be retained by the 
Authority for the provision of Financial-Advisory Services. Thei: 
proposal outlined excellent experience and staff credentials. 
Chase's primary business is under~ritinq and tradinq U.S. 
treasury, federal agency, munici;al. corporate and asse: backed 
securities. This experience is in line with the current 
investment strategy of the Authority. The team Chase has assi;ned 
to the Author~ty account has si;ci!icant experience in 
transportation infrastructure fi:iancinq. The. hourly rates 
~reposed are as follows: 

President and Vice President 
.Associates 

SlSO 
s 75 

Chase does not charqe an hourly :ate for administrative services 
provided in the course of a Finacc~al .Advisory Contract. However. 
out-of-pocket expenses wil: be :ei=.bursed separately~ 

t/=IK 00 



j • 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Therefore, authorization is requested to retain the firm of 
Chase Securities, Inc. to provide Financial Advisory Services to 
the Authority and to serve a~ the pleasure of the Authority with 
30 days written notice for ter~ination of services. 

The Comptroller. joins with the undersiqned in rec:ommendinq 
Chase Securities, Ine. to provide Financial Advisory Services to 
the Authority. Please charqe this item to Account No. 
10-890-4608. 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

Herbert I. Olarsch 
Director of Law 

00 
,,.,~ 



Chase Securities. Inc. 
i· Ctiase Fia.::a 

I New York, New York 1CC81 

lllllf 111111 CHASE. 

Chairman David Goldberg 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunswick. NJ 08816 

Dear Chairman Goldberg: 

EXHIBIT E 

May 17, 1991 

. As you know Chase Municipal Securities, Inc. has made a decision to close its operations 
on May 31. 1991. As a result, we understand that the Authority has hired Lazard Freres to 
serve as financial advisor. As indic:ited in a letter to you on April 25, 1991, it is Chase's 
intention to maintain sufficient staff resources in order to service transactions in progress. 

However, in light of the fact that principal members of the Chase Team responsible for 
providing financial advisory services to the Authority _are in the process of negotia~g future 
employment with one or more firms th:it m:iy be submitting proposals to serve as 
underwriter. we believe it would. ~e in the Authority's best interest if we resigned. 
Therefore. \\ith your approval. Chase Municipal Securities, Inc. will no longer serve as 
"interim fina."lci:il advisor'' effective Friday, May 17th. 

We appreciate your patience and understanding on this difficult matter. 

cc: Donald Watson 
ExeC'Jtive Director 

Sincerely, 

RE\;ciVED 
NIW tleray Tum;>ika Authority 

MAX 2J 1991 
'-..... ~ e (.. c.,~l,"-· 

CHAIRMAN'S OFF!CE 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

May 15, 1991 
EXHIBIT F 

~E: Confirmation Of Agreement With Lazard Frere• & Co. 
For Prof esaional Financial Advisory S•rviees 

At the Commission MeetinG of April 30, 1991, the Executive 
~irector received authorization to select a new Prof easional 
Financial Advisor to be confirmed at the May JO, 1991 Commission 
Meeting. This action -waa necessary due to the audden dissolution 
cf the Authority's -previ.ous Financial Advisor, Chase Securities, 
Inc. 

The Authority had initially solicited proposals from several 
firms from which Chase Securities, Inc. was seleeted at the March 
~8, 1991 Commission Meeting. In order to expedite the replacement 
of Chase Securities, Inc., the Authority received proposals from 
three of the firms or;inally invited plus three additional firms, 
and selected Lazard Freres & Co. This firm offers comprehensive 
Financial Advisory services with a well experienced professional 
financ~al staff. 

The terms will remain for one year at a SS0,000.00 annual cap 
for the services to be performed except the cap will not appl7 in 
the event of a major financial restructuring or any other 
extraordinary financial transactions. The hourly rate achedule 
for Lazard Freres, & Co. is as follows: Partners - $2!0.00: 
Senior Vic• Presidents - S200.00: Vice Presidents ~ $1!0.00: and 
Associates ~ S12S.OO. 

Therefore, it is requested that authorization be granted to 
enter into an Agreement with Lazard Frere•, & Co. for Professional 
Finaneial Advisor7 Services in an amount not to exceed $50,000.00 
annually with the exeep~ion of a major financial restructuring. 

The Comptroller .. -eoncurs in this recommendation. Please 
charge this ·to Account Ho. 10-890-4608. · 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION:. 

Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

\fM 
Herbert I. Olarach 
Director of Law 
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EXHIBIT G 

llO•lt'f J' LUllll 
DU'UTY Dlllle"f'Oll 

DOUCIL.A• C. 8KltMAN 
STATI T"UaY,_IUt 

i 
April 4, 1991 

To: Dou;l11 ~. Berman 
I "i:, 

From: Robert P. Lurie ,_r'-"' 
' I 

Subject: Turnpike Un~•rwriter Selection 

The proposed ~urcpik• refunding may be th• 11r9e1t, and th• most 
scrutinized~ financial tr1n1aetion in the State•1 hiatory. Not only. 
Will Str••t, but1al10 the Le9isl1tura, the prea1, and the public 
w111 be watching. this deal fer any appearanc• of conf lict1 of 
interest or oth•r perceived wron;C'.!ein91. Th:l1 memo 1u;;e1ts 1 
proeaa1 de1i;ned to avoid 1dver1• perceptions. It 1110 1u9;e1t1 an 
underwritin; group structure to k••P in mind wh•n 1electin; firms. 

I 

UDt!Mtvrltwr &elaction !rps••1 

• an: There should be an ezten1ive, detailed Requ•at fer 
Propo11l1 for: all management ;roup posit:lon1. The R!'P 1hould·b• 
sent to 1ny firm who wishes one. we may want to pl•aee an 
1dverti1em•nt j in the Bond Buy•r to 1cU.eit propo11la. Firms 
should be given at l••st two week• to re•pond. 

• Oral lnter•iMr8: Pirme on a •abort list• after review of tb• 
written pi'opoaala 1houlc! be interviewed and 11ked follow-up 
questions rev1rd1n; their propo11l1. 

I 

• R•Timt Camllitt .. : There should be 1 committee form•d to receive 
and r•view the propo1111, and to mak• recommend1t!on1. Th• 
cornrnitt•• cou:ld b• th• Finance Cofililitt•• of the Turnpike 
Authorit7, with 11ai1tane• from TUrnpik• 1taff, our office, and 
perhaps 1omeon• from DOT 1t1ff. 

I 

I 
• ·criteria for &election:· Th• propo11l1 should be graded by the 

committe• 1eeordin9 to 1 pre-e1t1bli1hed ••t of criteria, with 1 
written r•view available tc reapondino firms. Firms should be 
1•leet•d in general accordance with th• gr1dea a11i9ned. 
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Dou9 l1• c. lerman . 
April 4, 1991 
Pa;e 2 

• Co111pOnut• of !tM &7: 
I 

.. Capital· (unuaually important en this l1rv• 1n 
und•:nn:itin;). 

• Distribution 1tr•n;th, both institutional and retail. 
- !1nkin9 •zperienc• in tr1n1portation. 
- Ezperti•• in de1i;nic9 a compl•a tranaportation er•dit. 
- !xperti•• in advance r•fundiDVI• 
• Creative, and legal, way1 to ••v• mone7 on th• refundln; • ..., l••• • I 
- New Jerley pre1enca ~ contribution to th• State economy. 
e Minority own•r1hip and/or fin1nein9 team members. 

Stnactur1 pf tile QAO~nrritipg &Jpdle1t• 
! 

Th•r• 1houlc! be at le11t five cl111if ie1tion1, or tiers, of 
firm1 in the underwritin; 9roup.. Th• rule of thumb i•, th• hi;her 
th• ti•r, the more underwrit1n; riak th• firm abould take, and th• 
mor• bond• th• firm 1bould be allocated. 

1) Book-nuuling S•niar Kanager: m1na;1a the marketinv and 
allocation proe•••· Thia firm rau1t have a ••rr 1tron9 capital 
baae, and a ?)read cH1tribution network with. a balance of 
in1tit:ution1l and retail eapab11J.ty. Compensation will b• 
primarily in the form of •t:akedown•, or 1111•• co11111is1ion, 1:Lnee 
thi1 fb:m will. receive the 11r;e1t allocation of bonds .for 111• 
to its cu1tomer1. Will 1110 v•t 1 11Hll man19ement f••· 

2) •s.nior Banker•: Traditionally th• ••m• firm •• th• look-running 
Mana;er, but n••d not be. Thi1 firm 11 alfi\Olt another financial 
1dvi•er. Develop1 th• financial plan. Kan19e1 the document 
draftin;. Runs computer 1n1ly111 for the refundin;1. Nork• 
with the BookarunninG Man19er to itructur• debt amortization. 
This firm will: ;et 11 relatively l1r;e management t•• for their 
~ankinv 1erv1c11. It w111 1110 9et the 1econd 1arve1t 1b1r1 of 
the bonc!1.. : 

3) Coa1.nior aaaa9era: Paticipate in th• 1tructurln9 and document 
drafting proce11. May att•nd 1ome workinv vroup m••tin91. , 
Th•r• 1hould bl 1 ••rT 1m111 management fee1 co11pen11ticn will 
~· mo1tly in •tak1down•. Th••• firm1 will v•t mor• boo41 than 
co-manaver•, c!:l1c:u111ed below. Thar• should be no more than 
thr•• co-1enior Man19er1. Each 1hould b• l1r1• f irm1 with 1 · 
1tron; capital b111t, · but may ~· 1211titutiona1 ot retail 
speci1l~1t1, 11 long 11 other firms provide balanc•. 

t) ca-manager1: A11i1t in underwriting and selling bonds. No 
mana;ament fee·. The1e firms will ;et a lar;• allocation of 
bond1. These should b• primarily good at marketin9. Rew Jersey 
based firms ·and minority firms anould. prob1bl7 90 her• du• to · 

--
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their relativelJ' weak capital b11e. There 1hould bl about liX to 
ei;ht co-m1n11•r1 on a deal tbi1 1ia•, and tb•r• may b• two tiers cf 
co 0 mana9•r1 baaed upon th•ir participation in th• undenrritin9 risk. 

i 
5) l•llint group 1m hllr•: Will •••i•t in ••111n; bonda, but will 

v•t only a small allocat1.on. Th••• flrm1 will not participate 
in .th• unaenn:i tin; riak·, Th• nu=er of 1ellin9 group member• 
le unlimit•d. 

• Th• financial '.plan may include three 1eparat• bond i1au••: th• 
1985 refundin; CSl.6 billion), the 1984 refunding <•soo 
million), and the new money 111ue (S450 million). Thia presents 
1n opportunity to rotat• firms in •1r:iou1 poaiticn• in th•. 
mana;•m•nt ;rcup. 

• Co=••nicr mana9er1 and the Book-running 1enior rnanao•r eould 
rotate. 

• The •senior Danker• firm 1hould not be rot1t•d; th•r• m11t b• a 
con1i1tent, integrated financial plan for all three i11ue1, 
which mu1t · J>e ~·adju1t•d 11 int•r••t rat•• and other variable• 
ch1n9e. On• f!rm mu1t man•;• that proce11. 

• Th•r• could be more than ei;ht firm• rot:.ting thou9h th• eight 
co-manaver slots available on each deal. . . 

• Thar• should not be more than a total of thr•• co .... 1·en1or 
m1na;er1 in total, since it would. be extremely unwieldy to k••P 
more firms involved in the deal 1trucurin; proce11. Thu1, there 
1hcul&S 1110 ftCt b• • rotation from co-manaver to co·••nior 
mana;er. 

leul• Und•nrritipg Ggmag ltrngtur• (names for illuatta~~~on a~: 

(Co-eeNor Maupil) . 

(C(>. Manapn>. 
(chOOM up to .pt 
for act.dial) 

(c:c>-rngn with ltiiC 
rilk pUUdpstion> 

(Selllft9 Group Mtmbtn) 

c: Rat~ Scovronick 

. DllaWHW ; r;:ra ... sew.r 
I 

. J.1. HAMuer 

Pint Bolton 
Pmnt Webblr 
Prtntoa JCaat 

MJtlHI 

(w\li.mited numbs) 

~lroa. LuudPmw 
Pint Pidlllty 

Cripby lrudford 



EXHIBIT H 

Hay 2, 1991 

NEV JERSEY TURNPIKE·Al1THORIT.Y 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FOR UND£RVRITING SERVICES 

t. INTRODUCTION 

The Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority (NJTA) invites proposals for 
professional undervriting services. 

NJTA is interested in receiving detailed information concerning 
restructuring and/or refinancing alternatives for its outstanding 
debt including a potential refinancing of all of its indebtedness. 
Such indebtedness in the original principal amounts of $501,825,000 
Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority Turnpike Revenue Bonds, 1984 Series and 
$2,000,000,000 Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority Turnpike Revenue Bonds, 
1985 Series Bi-Hodal Multi-Term Format (BMTF) 7.20% Mode A Bonds are 
herein referred to as the Series 1984 and Series 1985 Bonds, 
respectively. The NJTA currently has S350 million in Series 1985 
bond proceeds vhich have not been allocated as part of the revised 
"1985-90 Yidening Program." Consistent vi th its overall financial 
analysis, the NJTA is assessing hov these proceeds should best be 
used in connection vith a potential restructuring and/or refinancing 
of the Series 1984 and Series 1985 Bonds. Bovever9 your proposal 
should consider the possibility of issuing nev debt, in an 
approximate amount either separately or as part of a refunding, so 
that the NJTA can fund future anticipated State projects. It should 
be understood that as of the current date, the NJTA has made no final 
decision as to whether to restructure or refinance all or any portion 
of the Series 1984 and Series 1985 Bonds. 

The solicitation for these services is being conducted ~ursuant to 
the statutes and lavs ~£ the State of Ne~ J~rsey, as fcund in 
N.J.S.A. 27:23-6.1 and the regulations and policies of the NJTA as 
they regard the procurement of professional ~ervices. 

The firms selected to provide these services, if any, vill be . 
expected to comply vith the NJTA Code.of Ethics, and any and all 
Federal and Nev Jersey State lavs and regu~ations pertaining to the 
financif.l industry. 



II. TIME SCHEDULE 

In order to be con~ider~d. complete re~ponses in.the indic~ted 
quantity must be delivered in vriting to the folloving parties at the 
addresses, and by the date and time specified belov. 

NJTA 
(15 copies) 

Hailing Address: 

Federal Expt'.ess 
Address: 

Proposal Due Date: 

Time: 

III. INOUilUES 

Catherine A. Schladeb~ck 
Comptroller 
(908) 247-0900 

Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P. o. Box 1121 
Nev Brunsvick, NJ 08903 

Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 · 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunsvick, NJ 08816 
Hay 20, 1991 

3:00 p.m. Late responses 
vill automatically be rejected. 

Any questions regarding the Request for Proposal (RFP) must be 
directed in vriting as follovs: 

Mailing Address: 

Federal Express 
Address: 

Catherine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

Nev· Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P. o. Box 1121 
Nev Brunsvick, NJ 08903 

Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Rout'! 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunswick., NJ 08816 

The Authority vill allov facsimile transmissions (908-249-9635) but 
accepts no liability for errors in transmission whether clerical or 
mechanical. 

Relevant tax lav questions may be directed as follows: 

Special Tax Counsel 
Mudge Rose Guthrie Alexander 

& Ferdon 

Richard Nicholls 
(212) 510-7616 

or 
Jeffrey Piemont 
(213) 61~~~ 



IV. PROPOSAL GUIDELINES 

Proposers must comply vith instructioris and restrictions embodied in 
this RFP vith regard to preparing and submitting proposal responses. 
Proposers are expressly prohibited from contacting any NJTA 
Commissioners or other officials once this RFP has been released for 
distribution, other than as specified herein. Failure to comply vith 
proposal guidelines may result in disqualification of the respective 
proposer. 

The folloving criteria, not necessarily exhaustive nor listed in 
order of significance, vill be used to evaluate responses. 

1. The proposer's detaili!d description of an appropriate plan of 
finance. 

2. The ability of the proposer to identify comprehensive financing 
alternatives and the marketing and rating agency implications of 
each. 

3. The ability of the proposer to execute the financing plan from a 
technical and marketing perspective. 

4. !he proposer's general approach to the requirements of the RFP. 

5. The qualifications and relevant experience of personnel to be 
assigned vith projects of similar scope, size and complexity. 

6. The firm's relevant past experience in engage~ents of similar 
scope, si~e and complexity. 

7. Proposed fees. 

V. RESERVATIONS OF RIGHTS 

The NJTA reserves the right to: 

1. Reject any and all proposals with or vithout cause. 

2. In its 3ole·discretion, accept the proposal vhich it considers 
most favorable to the NJTA's interest. 

3. Yaive minor irregularities or defects in all procedures relative 
to this RFP. 

4. Reject all proposals and seek nev proposals vhen such procedure i, reasonably in the interest ~f the NJTA. 

5. Request and receive such additional information as the NJTA may 
reasonably require and to disqualify any proposer and reject any 
proposals for failure of the responsible party to promptly 
provide ·such additional information. 

17( 



6. Conduct intervievs vith any or all proposers prior to selection. 

7. Conduct pre-contract negotiations vith any or all proposers 
prior to selection. 

8. Reviev and ap.prove any change fo significant staff members•as 
vell as the right to discharge the firm promptly based on such 
personnel changes. 

9. Approve underwriters counsel. 

10. Negotiate all fees. 

VI. NJ'f A LIABILITY 

The NJTA shall not be liable for: 

l. Any costs incurred in the preparation of responses. 

2. Any costs incurred by the proposer in connection vith any 
interviev or negotiation relating to this RFP. 

3. Any costs vhether or not included in the-proposal unless such 
costs are agreed to in a subsequent letter of engagement or 
contract. 

4. Any disclosure, vhether by negligence or othervise, of any 
material or information in any form submitted by any proposer in 
response to this RFP. 

VII. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON THE NJTA: REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION 

The folloving enclosed information is intended to provide background 
information on the NJTA's outstanding indebtedness: 

1. The Official Statement for the Series 1984 Bonds. 

2. The Official Statement for the Ser~es 1985 Bonds. 

3. Special Report prepared by Ernst & Vhinney regarding the 
Series 1984 Bonds. 

4. Financial Report of the NJTA as of March 31, 1991. 

S. NJTA "Business Plan for the 90's" December 1990. 

6. Investment Schedule for Bond Proceeds as of March 31,_ 1991. 

7. Projections of Toll Revenues, Operating Expenses and Maintenance 
Reserve Depos~t for Calendar Year 1991. 

SI~ 



Requests, if any, for additional information or materials must be 
submitted in vriting to the NJTA in accordance vith the process set 
forth herein under Section III. Inquiries. Such requests vill be 
revieved to determine if they are reasonable and relevant. Bovever, 
ve vill not electronically transmit the return response. 

VIII. CONFLicr OP INTEREST 

Please be advised that any firm vhich has any clients or 
relationships vhich vould present any actual or potential conflicts 
of interest vi th the NJTA, may be disqualified from participation in 
this solicitation. Should your (irm determine that it has a client 
or relationship which appears on its face to possibly present a 
conflict of interest, please list any and all such clients or 
relationships so that the NTJA may make a determination as to whether 
an actual or potential conflict exist$. 

IJ:. REQUIRED PROPOSAL CONTENT 

If you are interested in serving only as a co-manager in any 
potential NJTA financings, please provide the information requested 
in Questions 1-5 and Questions 13-18. 

1. Transmittal letter not to exceed one page signed by an officer 
authorized to make binding commitments for your firm. 

2. Executive Summary not to exceed tvo pages. 

3. Specify the firm name, mailing address, federal express address 
if different from mailing address, telephone number, fax number 
and primary contact. Indicate vhether your firm wishes to be 
considered for senior manager or as a co-manager •. 

4 •. Identify the four ,primary individuals for your firm vho would be 
assigned to the NJTA and vhy their back.ground is relevant. 
Please include information relating to applicable experience of 
these individcals~ Detail the role each member vould have on 
this account (Limit Three Pag~s). 

S. Summarize the firm's experience, in chart form, as a scenario 
book-running manager of Turnpike revenue bonds or other surface 
transportation issues vith a par amount in excess of $100 
million since January 1, 1985. Co-senior and co-manager· 
experience for the above should be delineated in a separate 
chart. For each issue specified vithin the two above-referenced 
cha~ts indicate the Par Amount, Sale Date, Issuer, Gross Spread 
by component and the pri1nary staff person responsible for each 
financing. 



6. If·NJTA concludes that current borroving documents unduly 
restrict and limit the NJTA, a total defeasance of the Series 
1984 and Series 1985 Bonds may be necessary in order to provide 
enhanced flexibility to administer programs responsive to the 
needs of the State of Nev Jersey. The Governor, in his FY 1992 
budget, has included a proposal for the NJTA to purchase from 
the State certain roads for $400 million. In describing the 
r~nge of financial options, in response to Ques~ion No. 6 
proposers should assume as one option that a) the road purchase 
vill occur; b) the issuance of bonds, if necessary, ·and the 
actual payment to the State of $400 million, vill not occur 
before the defeasance and/or retirement of all currently 
outstanding NJTA debt has occurred; and c) that the payment of 
$400 million to the State vill occur not later than June 30, 
1992. 

Please describe in detail the rang~ of financing optio~s 
available to ~ccomplish the foregoing, including a scenario that 
is reflective of current market conditions. Provide a summary 
·table describing the present value savings for each option or 
scenario. Pre~ent value savings should be computed by comparing 
the aggregate debt service currently paid to the aggregate debt 
service after all nev bonds have been issued. Any change in 
investment cash flov should be taken into account. 

Provide all debt service and savings schedules and assumptions 
used to support your recommendations in a clearly identified 
appendix. Quantify costs and specify other considerations vhich 
the NTJA should be aware of for each option. 

a) Bov vould varying market conditions affect your proposed 
approach? Outline scenarios in vhich it is possible to 
achieve debt service savings given a complete d~feasance 
and quantify the magnitude of expected savings. 

b) Assuming a variety of market conditions, discuss hov the 
NJTA should approach the timing of the total-refunding 
under consideration indicating any tax lav and other 
leial constraints you feel are relevant. 

c) Assuming a variety of market conditions, discuss the vays 
in which the NJTA should apply the existing funds on.hand 
to maximize the efficiency of a proposed total refunding. 

7. Disc~ss your experience in senior managing advance refunding 
transactions which required complex "transferred proceeds" 
calculations. Include in your discussion techniques vhich you· 
have used to mitigate and/or eli:iinate the negative consequences 
of "transferred proceeds" vhich vould be applicable to the 
Series 1984 Bonds (Limit Tvo Pages). 



8. The NJTA intends to explore several options regarding vays to 
expand its mission to better serve the-people of Nev Jer$ey. 
Assume for the purpose of Question Nos. 9 through 11 that some 
or all of the folloving goals may be pursued: 

a) making available surplus funds and bond proceeds for 
projects that are expected to result in d~ficit operations; 

b) permitting the use of bond proceeds for projects that may 
be authorized by future actions of the State Legislature: 

c) permitting the use of modern toll management techniques; 
and 

d) permitting a future expansion or reorganization of the NJTA 
by statute. 

Given the NJTA's potential desire to construct a nev set of 
legal documents in order to provide increased financing 
flexibility, please discuss hov you vould propose to structure 
the proposed refundings in ter~s of priority claim on revenues 
(Limit Tvo Pages). 

9. Discuss your recommended rating agency approach if the NJTA vere 
to undertake a total refunding and adopt a nev resolution. 
Responses should address appropriate debt service reserve 
requirements, the net revenue requirement, additional bonds test 
and coverage requirements. 

10. Discuss your marketing strategy .as it relates to a total 
refunding. In addition, provide your assessment of the 
investment community's reaction to and acceptance of a total 
refunding of the Series 1984 and Series 1985 Bonds (Limit Tvo 
Pages). 

11. Based on your recoll'.mended plan of finance in response to 
Question No. 6, identify your propo~ed Gross Spread by 
component, assuming market conditions as of the close of 
business on Hay 6, 1991. Indicate the management fee you vould 
expect to receiVe as senior book-running manager only. It :ls 
expected that the proposed management fee vill be a firm 
commitment and vill not be subject to increase. Itemize the 
expense component. Expenses should also be expressed as a not 
to exceed amount. 



12. In absence of a· complete defeasance, assuming no nev money 
needs, vhat restructuring and/or refinancing alternatives vould 
be available to the NJTA to achieve debt service savings on the 
Series 1984 and Series 1985 ~onds. Provide all debt service and 
savi~gs schedules and assumptions used to support these -
alternatives in a clearly identified appendix. Hov vould 
vary.ing market conditions impact your recommendation for 
alternatives? · 

13. Indicate your firm's most recently reported total capital, 
equity and capital and excess net capital. Provide your most 
recent Annual Report or audited financial statements, and 
comment on y~ur firms profitability over the last five years. 

14. Provide three client references vhere your firm served as senior 
manager for advance refunding and/or Turnpike revenue bonds or 
other surface transportation issues vith a par amount greater 
than SlOO million since January 1, 1985. 

15. Provide information on the nature and magnitude of any 
litigation or proceeding, during the past three years, vhereby a 
court or any regulatory or administrative agency has ruled 
against the firm in any matter related to the activities of the 
firm. Similar information must be provided disclosing any 
currently pending litigation. 

16. The successful Consultant ~grees that it does not discriminate 
in the hiring or promotion of any minorities, as designated by 
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission of the United States 
of America, or the department of Civil Rights of the state of 
Nev Jersey; and that it does not discriminate against any person 
or persons on the basis.of race, creed, age, color, sex, 
national origifi or handicap. 

In addition the successful Consultant agrees to complete the 
appropriate forms as follovs: 

a) Mandatory Language for rrofessional Service Agreements 

b) ·AA-302 form - _State of Nev Jersey Affirmative Action 
Employe~ Information Report 

Bovever, if a firm maintains a current Letter of Federal 
Approval, or a current Certificate of Employee Information 
Report Approval as issued by the Department of ·the Treasury, 
State of Nev Jersey, it may be submitted in place of b) above. 

17. Identify the limits of liability for the folloving insurance 
coverages - comprehensive general liability, votkers' 
compensation, comprehensive automobile liability, professional 
liability, and valuable papers. 

18. Please complete the Affidavit of ~oral Tntegrity, attached 
hereto. ,_,. )< 
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,David B. Thompson, Vice President, Public Finance 
Janney Montgomery Scott Inc. 
1601 Harket Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2473 
215-665-6000 

.!He. Steve Faber, Vice President 
Butcher & Singer 
2 Logan Square 
18th and Arch Streets 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 

/Hr. Peter Shapiro 
CitiCorp Securities Markets Inc. 
55 Yater Street, 43rd Floor 
Nev York, NY 10041 
212-291-7768 

.1 Hr. Timothy L. Carden 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corporation 
140 Broadway 
Pev York, NY 10005 
212-504-3000 

.: Hr. Derek Davis 
Pryor, HcClendon Counts & Company, Inc. 
3 Penn Center 
1515 Market Street, Suite 819 
Philadelphia, PA 19102 

1 Hr. Theodore P. Swick 
Yilliam E. Simon & Sons Municipal Securities, Inc. 
SS Madison Avenue, Suite 310 
Morristovn, NJ 07960 
201-984-9000 - 800-872-0850 
FAX 201-984-3021 

i Hr. Sam Trove 
First American Municipals 
156 Villiam Street, 8th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10038 

Hr. Francis J. 
v Horgan Stanley 

1251 Avenue of 
39th Floor 
Nev York, NY 
212-703-4348 

Sveeney, Vice President 
& Co., Inc. 
the Americas 

10020 
FAX 212-921-9638 

i Hr. Ken DeRoberts 
Printon. Kane Group 
51 JFK ParkYay 
Short Hills. NJ 07078 

EXHIBIT I 



/.Hr. Thomas H. Cochran, Sr. Vice President 
Lehman Brothers Division 
Shearson Lehman Borthers Inc. 
American Express Tover Vorld Financial Center 
Nev York, NY 10285-2000 
212-298-2710 
FAX 212-619-7165 

JMr. Dennis Santo 
E. A. Hoos & Co. 
350 Springfield Avenue 
Summit, NJ 07901 

.,..·Hr. Michael Schaefer 
Springsted Inc. 
85 East 7th Place 
Suite 100 
St. Paul, HN 55101-2143 

/Hr. Lavrence Bashe, Vice President, Public Finance 
·the First Boston Corporation 

Park Avenue Plaza, 37th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10055 

/Hr. Timothy Sullivan 
Gibraltar Securities Co. 
10 James Street 
Florham Park, NJ 07932 

J·Hr. Michael A. Baumrin, Managing Director 
Merrill Lynch Capital Markets 
Vorld Financial Center 
North Tover 
Nev York, NY 10281-1309 
212-449-0633 FAX - 212-449-7174 

/Hr. Michael Maron 
GE Capital 
44~2 Old Ridgebury 
Danbury, CT 06810 
203-796-2320 

j 'Hr. Hartin Ted Hayden · 
BT,Securities Corporation 
136 Liberty Street, 31st Floor 
Nev York, NY 10006 
212-250-7624 

jMr. Tristan P. Renz, Sr. Vice President 
Kirchner Moore - A Division of George K. Baum & Co. 
7220 Texas Commerce Tover 
600 Travis 
Houston, TX 77002 
713-222-0701 



Hr. Robert Dailey 
Kidder, Peabody & Co. Inc. 
10 Hanover Square 
Nev York, NY 10005 
212-520-3438 FAX 212-558-6759 

.. 
/Ms. Deborah Vetzler 

Bovne 
345 Hudson Street, 10th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10014 

Ms. Carol Belamy, Managing Director 
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. 
245 Park Avenue 
Nev York; NY 10167 
212-272-3199 

j Hr. Harold E. Ooley, Jr., Chair~an 
Ooley Securities, Inc. 
170 Broadvay, Suite 610 
Nev York, NY 10038 
212-385-3641 FAX 212-608-3911 

/Hr. Harry Tyson 
Smith Barney, Harris Upham & Co. 
333 Yest 34th Street 
Nev York, NY 10001 

w·Hs. Roberta Connolly 
Artemis Capital Group Inc. 
635 Hadison Avenue~ 12th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10022 
212-593-2317 

/ Mr. Jack Kelly, Sr. Vice President 
Prudential Securities Inc. 
1 Liberty Plaza, 46th floor 
Nev Yor~, NY 10006 

)Hr. Clarence Otis 
Chemical Securities, Inc. 
277 Park Avenue, 11th floor 
Nev Yo.rk, NY 10172 

J Hr. Timothy C. McDonough, Vice 
A. G. Edvards & Son . 
136-150 Hain Street, Building 
Pt;inceton Forrestal Village 
Princeton, NJ 08450 
609-452-0033 . 800-688-3386 

JHr. Hark Heyer 
Dillon Rea~e & Co., Inc. 
535 Hadison Avenue 
~ev York, ~y 10022 

President 

A . 

FAX 609-452-1142 



Hs. Joan Greene 
Ryan, Beck and Co. 
80 Hain Street 
Vest Orange, NJ 07052 

/ Hr. Steve Vood 
Paine \lebber 
1285 Avenue of the Americas, 10th -floor 
Nev York, NY 10019 
212-713~4590 

• Hs. Beth Boldeschvieler 
Marine Midland -
140 Broadvay, 10th floor 
Nev York, NY 10015 

.tHs. Jan E. Rosenfeld, Vice President, Municipal Finance 
Goldman, Sachs & Co. 
85 Broad Street 
Nev York, NY 10004 
212~902-56541 FAX 212-902-0654 

.1 Hs. 'Amy H. Vinchell, Vice President 
Fiduciary Communications Company, Inc. 
149 Franklin Street 
Nev York, NY 10013 
212-226-3444 FAX 212-925-1896 

/Hr. James V. Ritter, Managing Director 
Lamberson Knight Securities, Inc. 
636 Horris Avenue, Suite lB 
Short Hills, NJ 07078 
201~376-1000 800-233-4427 
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Richard Helmbrecht 
Reinoso &i Co. 
30 Broad Street, 32nd Floor 
Nev York, NY 10004 

-· Hr. John Donovan 
Dean Vitter Reynolds 
Tvo Vorld Trade Center, 59th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10048 
212-392-4023 

~ Grigsby Brandford Powell 
One Vorld Trade Center 
Suite 1535 
Nev York, NY 10048 

/Hr. Steven Hunt, Vice President and Manager -
Bank of Nev York 
One Vall Street, 17th Floor 
Nev York, NY 10286 

/Mr. Lee K. Barba, Managing Director 
Bankers Trust 
130 Liberty, 31st Floor 
Nev York, NY 10006 

J Hr. Bernard B. Beal 
President and CEO 
H. R. Beal &i Co. 
489 Fifth Avenue 
Nev York, NY 10017 

" Hs. Barbara Shat tuck 
Cain Brothers, Shattuck &i Comp~ny 
452 Fifth Avenue, 25th Floor 
New York; NY 10018 

~ Hr. Villiam c. Schutt, President 
Discount Corporation of Nev York_ Municipals 
58 Pine Street 
Nev York, NY 10005 

~·Hr. Craig Douglas James, President 
Douglas James Securities, Inc. 
14 Ea~t Fourth Street~ Suite 607 
Ne'f~·· York, NY 10012 

.]Mr. Alexander s .. ~illiams, Executive Vice President 
First Fidelity Ban~. NA, Nev Jersey 
550 Broad Street 
Nevark, NJ 07192 



~ Hr. A~drev H. Heath, III 
First Interregionial Equity Corporation 
830 Horris Turnpike 
Short Hills, NJ 07078 

/Mr. Michael Jacobson, Vice Chairman 
J. B. Hanauer & Co. 
59 Northfield Road 
Livingston, NJ 07039 

/ Hr. John Tvomey Booth, President 
Jersey Capital Markets Group 
Riverviev Historical Plaza 
45 Nevatk Street 
Hoboken, NJ 07030 

/Hr. Richard Poirier, Senior Vice President 
Lazard Freres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
Nev York, NY 10020 

j Hr. John K. HcColloch, Managing Director 
J. ~. Horgan Securities 
23 Vall Street 
Nev York, NY 10260 

, Hr. Arthur F. Povell, President 
Povell Capital Markets, Inc. 
40 Clinton Street, 2nd Flo~r 
Suite 200 
Nevark, NJ 07102 

~Hr. John c. Glidden, Jr. Manager 
Prudential-Bache Capital Funding 
Public Finance Department 
100 Gold Street 
Nev York, NY 10292 

, Hr. Al Sturdivant 
.. Sturdivant & Co., Inc. 

130 North Broadvay · 
Suite· 1007 
Camden, NJ 01801 

, Hr. Robert F. O'Neill, Public Finance 
Tucker Anthony & R. L. Day, Inc. 
120 Broadvay . 
Nev York, NY 10271 

/Hr. Yardell R. Lazard, Principal 
\1R Lazard 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
Nev York. NY 10020 
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MAY 03 ''31 11 : 19 BOND BUYE.. • .iYC 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
UNDERWRITING SERVICES 
NEW JEASEY TVANPUC! AUTHORITY 

To ~r lntnated PartlH: 

tf you art Interested In receiVlng an RFP. contact the New Jersey 
Turnpike Authority at908-247-<l900, ext. 5100. Yourpropoaal must 
be received by the Authority no later than May 20, 1991 to be con­
sidered for thll po11lbl1 underwrtttng. 

0 
~.ll • '-%0 . 

t<P' ~ ./ 

EXHIBIT J 



NEV JERSEY TURNPIU AtrrBOllITY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR UNDERVRITING SERVICES 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

EXHIBIT K 

May 8, 1991 

This addendum is in addition to the RFP previously sent, dated Hay 2, 1991, to 
your office. 

II. TIME SCBEDULE 

Five copies of your firm's proposal must be submitted to the NJTA's Finance 
Advisor, Lazard Freres & Co., by the Proposal Due Date at the following address: 

Gordon Bryant 
Lazard Freres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza, Suite 2330 
Nev York, NY 10020 

III. IHOUDU!S 

All questions regarding the Request for Proposal must be received in vrhten 
form by 5:00 p.m. Hay 13, 1991 (Fax, 212-632-6057) to the attention of Gordon 
Bryant) not Catherine Schladebeck at the NJTA. No response vill be provided for 
quest-ions judged to be irrelevant or unreasonable. 

(• 

V. RESERVATIONS OP llIGBTS 

Please nn°te the folloving additional reservation of rights: 

In order to assure a fair and equitable evaluation of the merits of each 
applicant undervriting firm, no joint proposals vill be accepted. }he NJTA 
reserves the right to choose combinations of managing undervriters as it 
determines to be appropriate. 

IX. REQUIRED PROPOSAL CONTEHT 

The folloving additional questions are incorporated into the RFP: 

19. Describe any innovative financing techniques developed and utilized by your 
firm vhich have successfully resulted in • financing in the last tvo years. 

20. Describe any changes in the staffing of your municipal finance, 
underwriting, sales and trading departments over the last five years.· 
Include the number of professionals staff separated by category; municipal 
finance, underwriting; sales and trading in 1986 and the number today. 

21. A~tive and meaningful participation in the financing by minority and 
vomen-ovned firms is important to the Authority. Vhat means do you 
re~ommend to ensure attainment of this goal? 

22. The Authority is interested in providing firms that participate in this 
transaction fair access and equitable treatment in bond allocations. 
Provide a description of a fair pricing methodology for the underwriting 
group· and a bond allocation proposal. This should include an itemized 
breakdovn of the vay in vhich charges for a sale vould be broken out and hov 
bond allocations vould be assigned, you serving as senior managing 
undervriter and your co-managers. 



5/17/91 
5/17/91 

5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/.91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 . 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
S/20/91· 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20,'91 
5/20/91 

5/20/91 

EXHIBIT L 

NEW JERSEY TIJRNPIKE AlITHORITY 
RECEIPT OF PROPOSALS AT LAZARD FRERES & CO. 

Muriel Sieben & Co. 
Howard Gary & Co. 

Ravmond James 8:45 
BT Securities 10:00 

• Paine Webber 10:25 
Cayton Brown 10:30 
E.A Moos & Co. 10:30 
JB Hanauer & Co. 10:30 
Kirchner Moore & Co. 10:30 
Butcher & Singer 10:30 
AG Edwards & Sons 10:30 
Reinoso & Co. 10:30 
Aeex Seeurities 10:30 
Gibraltar Securities 10:30 
Alex Brown & Sons 10:30 
Morgan Stanley 10:30 
Chemical Securities 10:30 

+ ~an·Beck & Co. 10:30 
arine Midland 11:00 

PHN Capital Funding I 11:00 
Tucker Anthony 11:00 
Prudential Securities 11:00 
The Chapman Co. 11:00 
First American Municipals 11:00 

• Lehman Brothers 11:30 
• Merrill Lvnch 12:30 

Janney Montgomery 12:40 
• Dillon Read 12:55 
• Donaldson Lufkin. 1:00 

Citicorp 1:00 
• First Boston 1:10 

Pryor McClendon 1:15 
Artemis Capital Group 1:45 

• Goldman Sachs 1:45 
Printon Kane Group · 1:50 

• Dean Witter 1:50 
• Kidder Peabody · 2:15 
• Smith Bamev 2:20 

William E. S1mon & Sons 2:30 
A.H. Williams & Co. 2:45 

· Sturdivant & Co., Inc. 2:45 
Ooley Securities 2:50 

a Bear Steams 2:55 

·+ WR Lazard Laidlaw & Mead 3:20 

• Senior Manaeing Underwriters 
+ Co-Senior Managing Underwriters ,,,, 



5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 
5/20/91 

5/21/91 

Grigsby Brandford Powell 
M.R. Beal & Co. 
Roosevelt and Cross 
First Albany Corporation 

Anemis Capital Group Corrected 
Copy to 
Question 6 
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EXHIBIT M 

New leney Tumpjke Authority 

Book.riJnnlng Senior Mqnarjnf Undemtrer Ouesjtons 

Qlal lnteafm • .Tune 7 & JO, 1991 

lntenlew Committee: David Goldberg 
Donald Walson 
John Jacobsen 

aialrmu, NJTA 
Executive Director, NJTA 

· Richard Poirier 
John Tamapi 

Acting Comptroller, NJTA . • 
F1nanclal Advisor, Luard Frcres &·Co. 
Flnancial Adrisor, Lazard 1i·rercs & C..o. 

1. On an A rated SSOO million Turnpike Authority fixed rate 30 year bond 
issue, who are the buyers? What percent is retail? What percent is 
institutional sales? On a AAA rated basis the same question? Olltline your 
firm's definition of a retail investor versus an institutional investor. What· 
do you consider your firm's greatest marketing strength? 

2. Describe very briefly a marketing approach to maximize the placement of 
bonds to New Jersey purchasers. · . 

3. 

4. 

s. 

6. 

7 

8. 

. 
ltow do yC'u feel retentions should he determined? For example, what 
percentage of a term bond shouid be reserved for retail? Would you set up 
a special term bond for New Jersey retail? 

What is the most effective sales communication method for institutional 
buyers? How would you differentiate your relation.ships with institutions 
from that of other firms. Who arc the four top institutional purchasers for 
NJTA bonds? What investors cm you attract that others can't? How would 
you achieve that success? 

What is the lowest pos~ible takedown if these bonds arc sold on an 
institutional basis in toaay's niarket? . . . 

trypothcticah You arc bringing a thirty year $800 million bond issue, we 
have a threshold interest rate level, you have orders for S700 million of 
bonds, $400 million is going aw-c1y business. you. can't cut price, the market 
sells off S basis points. a futures contract is 3/4 of a point too cheap to the 
cash market, what would you do? 

How would you involve MDE/WBE firms and regional fitm5 in the 
; n1a~ing of a New Jersey bond i~ue? · . · . 

Very brieflv, what direction do vou ioreca.\t short and long term interest 
rates thrqugh 1991? Wh~t does Y'?ur i11rwArti r:•tendar look. like ~ver the 
next 90 to 120 davs'? What marxeun~ concerns do you have in placing over 
S2 biJlion ofTunipike Authority boner~ over the next few months? 



. 
9. Given int~rest rate ~isk to ~he Authority, di~cuss· btt.diin1 !f1Cc.h~nism~. 

What specific structuring deta1ls (CAB s, sup.c;g1Rkec.. etc. Va'.Jll aoa vaauc in 
today'~ market? Whac role do you see for(floating rate de t1 

10. Would you recommend that a portion of the refunding bonds be 
subordinate lien bonds? Why? . 

11 ·1bc NJTA will be actively involved in th(allocation of bonds. \Vould you 
eonsjdcr that a problem? · · 

12. What ~reentagc of the orders on a bond issue will you generate? How do 
you feel a participation level of a co-manager should be reflected in 
allocations? Generally, how would you handle tbe allocations? . 

13.. From a marketing point of view,· what is the most difficult financing you 
have completed that you f clt wds a success, and why was your firm aole to 
excel? . 

14. What do you feel might be· a weakn~ in your firm? 

JS. IIow do you coordinate several issues you have in the market at the same 
time? How many financings do you c6mplete in a week? How do your 
salesman allocate rime properly to pre·marlc:et? · 

16. J>Jeasc dis.cuss what yo~ believe ·to be an ~lPD'!l!'ria.tJ rolt for the N~A 
traffic engmecr and.a consulting engineer in 1J1 .. •1ceung 1urnpikc Authomy_ 
debt. 
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EXHIBIT 0 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

R E S 0 L U T I 0 N 

WHEREAS, the New Jersey State Legislature (the 
"Leqislature") has pursuant to Senate ~ill No. 3549 CL.1991 
c.183) (the "Act") authorized and directed the New Jersey 
Turnpike Authority (the "Authority••> to purchase a portion of 
Interstate Route 95 between the northern terminus of the existing 
New Jersey Turnpike System and the approach to the George 
Washington Bridqe (the "I-95 Segment") for a purchase price of 
S400,000,000; and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the directive of the Leqislature 
to purchase the I-95 Seqment as reflected in the Act and in order 
to permit the Authority to accomplish the purposes of the Act 
while givino due regard to the ri;hts of the holders of the 
existing outstanding bonded indebtedness of the Authority, a Plan 
of Finance has been prepared and submitted to this meeting and is 
attached as ~ppendix A hereto (the ~Plan of Finance"): and 

WHEREAS, the Authority also believes it to be in its best 
interest to implement the Plan of.Finance for the purpose of 
modifyinq its existing debt structure to provide greater 
flexibility to the Authority in order to serve the future 
transportition needs of the State. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Authority as follows: 

l. The Authority hereby approves the Plan of Finance. 

2. That the Executive Director, the staff and the agents 
and advisors of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed 
to take all necessary and desirable action to implement the Plan 
of Finance in substantially the manner described in this 
Resolution with such modifications, additions, supplements and 
deletions as the Executive Pirector and staff of the Authority 
may recommend·. 

3. The Authority hereby appoints the investment banking 
firms listed on Appendix B hereto as senior and co-senior 
managers, co-mana;ers and sellinq qroup members for each 
respective portion of the Plan of Finance as more fully set forth 
on Appendix B hereto, subject, however, to the right of the 
Autt.ority to make such adjustments and revisions to said 
appointments as the Authority deter~ines to be in its best 
interest. 



• 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

4. The Executive Director and staff of the Authority are 
authorized and.directed to take such further and additional 
action as may be necessary to carry out the intent of this 
Resolution including, but not limited to: (i) the distribution of 
one or more preliminary official statements in connection with 
the issuance and sale of bonds issued by the Authority pursuant 
to the Plan of Finance: (ii) select and retain finaneial printers 
for the printinq and distribution of sueh preliminary official 
statements and any final official statements as well as the 
'printinq or engravinq of bonds or the printing of other documents 
which will be necessary or incidental to the for•qoing: (iii) to 
enter into agreements with one or more trustees, paying agents, 
fiscal agents, registrars, verification agents, or securities 
clearinghouse firms in connection with the issuance of any bonds. 

• 

I hereby certify the foregoing 
to be a true and correct copy of 
Resolution adopted at the regular 
meeting of the New Jersey Turnpike 
Authority on July 2, 1991. 

Herbert I. Olarseh 
Secretary 



NE'W JERSEY TURNPIKE Atml0RI1Y 

PLAN OF nNANCE 

Appendix A 
Jury z 1991 

The financing plan for ref"mancing tbe outstand~ debt of the Authority and the purchase 
of the nonhem section of 1·95 consists of the followiq uamaaiom: · 

( 1) Resttucrure Investments 

o Determine the total amount of available bond proceeds that will be available 
to redeem Series 1985 Bonds at par. Restructure the remaining investments 
to maximize the invesw:ent income from invested funds available after the 
refunding program. -

(2) Refund Series 1984 

o Issue tax-exempt debt to refund the non-economic Series 1984 l . !lds. 

o Issue taxable debt to re!u:ld the remaining economic Serles 1984 bonds. 

o The refunding will be structured to take maximum advantage of the 
provisions of die bternal Revenue Code governing sucb transa~tions. . 

(3) Refund Series 1985 

0 

0 

Redeem a _portion of ~he Series 1985 bonds at par with available bond 
proceeds. Using available bond proceeds to redeem 1985 bonds at par 
increases savings and reduces the Sl%e of the refundina issue. . 

Issue tax-exempt bonds to refund the remaining Series 1985 bonds. 

( 4) Concluding Bond Issue 

o Issue bonds to fund the purchase of the northern section of I-95 and to 
replace funds used in tbe refinancing program. · 

Tax law, market considerations and restrictions in the 1984 resolution require that tbe 
refioanciDg program involve multiple issues each separated by at least 31 days. In addition. 

- the muniopit.l oond interest rate market bas been fluctUatin1 •. The Authority will modify 
tbe financmg program outlined above in resP.onse to market conditions. As a result, the 
exact structure of toe financing plan r:.ay be different at the completion of the program. 

·,<i _, 
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Saia D991 A A. B 
Br:fmtdiag of 84 Sqics 

Saaior~ 1k IF'ana Bostoa Corporalioo 

Co.scuior' Mamgcrs Bear. Slc:arm a: C.o. IDc.. 

Co-M·aDaF'S 

S~Group 

Pit.iacWcbba l.DlxJrporatcd 

Alex. BNJWD &. Som. lac. 
Ooley Scc:uril:ics. Joe. 
Grigsby Braadlord PowcU IDc:. 
Jaaaey Momgomay Sa>n IDc:. 
PrudcalW Sc:mritics l11a:np)l'alcd 
r.,or, Mc:Oc:adoa. Coun!S & C.O., loc. 
Tumcr AodaODy lomrpora&cd 
WR Lar.ud. Laidlaw & Mead, Inc. 

Apex Sccuritic.s. lac. 
The Chapman Company 
~OD Bl'OWll a: Auori••cs, lnc. 
Farsi Amaicm. Municipals. lnc.. 
IWdmer Moore 
Muriel Siebert&. Ca., lac. 
PHH Capital funding Inc. 
R~ct:Ooul.a~ 
United Daaick Scalritics 

9Tbcse l'CCOllUDcacbtioas may be &abject lo c.b.uigc·al 
aDJbmC. 

IA7.IJU)~ &. co. 
•BOND UNDERWRITER RECOMMENDATIONS 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AunfORIJ"Y 
R.EFUNDINGS AND COMPLE110N BOND FINANONG 'fROGRA."d 

1991 SERIES A - E 
JULY2, 1991 

Series 1991 C &t D 
Dtc.fundi.gg of 8S Scriq 

Scaior Maagu Mcrrill Lynch &. Co. 

Co-SCDior Mamgcr' Doaaldsoa, Lufkio &. Jmrcttc Sccvilies 
Cmporatioa 

Co-Mamgcrs 

SdliugGroup 

Kidda, Peabody&. Co., be 
Smith Banq, H.anU Upham & Co, be 

M..R... ·eca1 le Company 
BT Scmriaic& Corp. 
Buac:hcr &. Siagcr 
A.G. Edwar~ &: Sons., lDc.. 
Hallral"d Gary&: C.Ompimy 
Mmiac Midland CapiLaJ Mukcts 

C«poratioa 
.E..A..M006& Co.LP. 
Raymoad James k Associalcs, lDc. 
Ryu. Beck & Co. 
Wi1liam E. Simon &. Som Mu.aicipal 

ScCDrirics 
A.H. Willi.mm &: Co, lac. 

Apcs.Sccuribe$, Inc. 
Tbc Chapman Compuy 
Clayton Browa &. Assoc:iala. IDc.. 
rll'SLAmcrir:ao Moaicipals. loc. 
r•dmu Moore 
Mmld Sid>crt &. Co, Inc. 
PHH Capilal ·Puodiag I.De. 
Rooscvcb IL Cross lnoorponlcd 
Uniwf Daaicll Sccwitia 

1~..,, 

Series 1991: E 
Conc:Judim: Bond is.s't IC 

SCDior Mauws GoldJD-. s~ & eo. 

~Wor Muagas Dillon, Read&. Co. Inc. 

Co-M.auioen 

Se.Jliag Group 

Uh.mu Brothen 
Deao Wllllc:r Reynolds Loe. 

Ancmis Upilal Group. loc. 
Chemical Sa:tuiti~ lnc. 
Fll'SI AJbuy CMponlioD 
Cribn.lw Scaaitic:s Co. 
l..B. HUlilloa & Co. 
Morpn SUD.Icy & Co. toe. 
Prinaoa. IU.nc Groop, •loc.. 
llcinos.o ~ Company Loe. 
Sturdiv.t & Co., Inc. 

Apex Scc:urirics, Joe. 
The Chapman Compaay 
~OD Drmm·& As.socia.IC$, lru:.. 
first Amcrica11 M imicipili. lac... 
JGn:hoaM~c 

Mwid S"lcbcrt & Co.., lA.c. 
PHN c.pit.al Ponding lA.c. 
R006CR:b & UOG lDaipontcd 
Uniled Duids Scrurit.ic.1 

i• 
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Standard & Pear's Corporation 
Municipal Finance Department 
25 Broadway 
New Yea k, New York 10004-1064 
Telephone 212/208-1752 

Hyman C. Grossman 
M•NOl"G Director 
MuniciD .. Finance C•Dara'i'tent 

Mr. John S. Tamagni 
Lazard Freres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

September 3, 1991 

Re: $423,205,000 New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Tumpike ReYenu• Bonds, Serifs A 
1991 (Rtfunding Bonds), due: January 1, 2fJ14. daJed: August 1, 1991 

Dear Mr. Tazr~gni: 

, Pursuant to your request for a Standard & Poor's rating on the above debt obligations, we 
'!.lo • have reviewed the information furnished to us and, subject to the terms and conditions of the 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREE..\.fENT on the reverse side hereof, have assigned a rating of 
'A' to the obligations. 

Please note that the information referred to in the third paragraph of the MEMORANDUM 
OF AGREE..\iENT includes annual audits and budgets and. for revenue bond ratings in 
coMection with consttuction financing, progress reporu, not less often than quanetly, 
covering the project being financed. 

In the event that you decide to include this rating in an Official Statement, prospectus or 
other offering literature, we request that you include S&P's definition of the rating together 
with a statement that the rating may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result of 

~ changes in, or unavailability of, information. 
1 
~ 

;; We are pleased to have been of service to you. Our bill will be sent in due course. If you i. have any questions, please contact us. 
I 

' t 
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 

RE: MUNICIPAL DEBT CONTRACT RATINGS 

Slandarc & Poors Corooraucn tSoPl rares tne creo11"'°'th1ness cf sDeOflc bonas or aeor 00119attons tor a fee ucon wrttten reouest from an...._ ilr fror 
an unoerwnter. rananoa1consunanr.1nsr1ru11on or orner ourcnaser. crCMOCM2 mat rne issuer nas knOWtedge or tfte reauest 

The tee rs cased on me time ana erron :o oerermrne rne rating ana accrues uoon como1erion or tetm1n11aon of the rating i:»rocess w iS not c:o1t11agaa...,.. 
11'\e n1e er 11'\e conas or oecr ot111ga11cns The tee rs nor a oavmenr to c1rcu1a1e. esissem.nare or =ublCJze ~ne raring. However. S&P ,,as &fte ngftt lo~· 
,,,e raung ro .rs own customers ana s"'cscncers or rruougn 11s own or otf'\er rneoaa. E.1oenses ancurrea. sucn as &nose tor meetangs oul.SIO• S&P's Gllices c 
tor t1eta tncs. are 1110 oavacue 10 S&P. . . 

The Aoohcan& agrees to orovace or ornerw.se turnasn ro S&P all oertment infOn'i'tlt•on '"a ramety manner te>getf'ler weth 111 subseauent matenal ~ 
in and aaa111ons 10 sucn 1nfcrmar1on onor ro. at rne 11me ot. ana sucseouent to me assignmem of rne raring. Faiture to tumisft '"fomtanon in a llilll­
manner may result '" no ranng or w11nara.ar ot the rating S&P retteS on 11\e oany subfflltt1ng sucn intormauon tor tts accuracy and completeness 1ne 
suostannation mereof. . . 

If as unaerstooa tf'\at the rating rs an evatuaric~ ot r,,e intc"'"atron suom111eo ana aoes nor lftvotve an aua•t Dy SIP S&P has lhe ngnt to raise.~. saenc 
or w1rnaraw '"' raMg at any 11me. 1n •ts s:1e .!1scre11on. ceoenarng on rne info,...,,auon S&P lh.en has. or 1rte taCK tnereof. or olfter circum11ances. lftClllDnc 
but not 11m11eo to. issuance ot new ooncs "' ;::eor oc1rga11ons oy rne issuer. aa .. snout notice. • 

Ne1tner pany may assign rnrs a;rtll!~e.,! •·1~01.:r :!"!• conse"' of :l'\e ot"8r ~y. 

CORPORATE ANO MUNICIPAL DEBT RATING DEFINITIONS 

Lon9·t•"" csettt 
A Sianaata & Poors coroor:u• 01 "'Unicoa• ·~D• '''""J 11 .i wrr.,.. as.ses.,,_,.. OI 

I"- cr.ai1 ~rm.,..ss or '" oc11.;0t .,,,, r•~ :: • ~he =11c;a1ion T"lts usess· 
,.,..,.. "'8V 11•• lftlO CO"SIO•tlll()lt OChCO'I Ii.IC!" n 12uaiar:1e:s. lftlU'9"i. 01 iessees 

The 9Dt r111ng " ner a reecr"'"'~•"aa::c" :o ·~'"rcr.ast s.., 0t !'\QIG a s.cu­
ruy. tr'ilSl'P.ucri 11 11 :so•s "0' co~""e"' as 10 ,,.,,111: or!c• or su11aD111ry tor a 
pania...ar mvesror. 

The r111nf;s ate Daleo Oft curre"I •ftlOtfftlloOr. ·;,ir"'J""' ev ll'le •Stuer 01 CDll•neG Dy 

5'\P trom Otl'\er saurces •J co,.s•atrs r11i10•• SI ;::i :oas "Or oer1er"' '" '"°" "' 
CClft~ wlfft any ra11119 ana "''Y· o" occas"'"· rcttv on ul'll\IG•leG tlft1nca1 "''°""'" 
llOft. The r1~1"91 l'ftay De Cl"la"c;ea. SMSCef'aea. :r Wttf'lat..,. 11 a resu11 or cnat19es lft 
or~""' Of. IUCft 1nforf9\AUOft. Ot '°' O&IVif CtFC\lft\SllftCH. 

Tht rallftlJI .,. DUICI."' varyi"9 019'"'· O" ,,,. fOllOwlN; COftStGer11ion1· 

t LlllltClftOOO of d•fau11--cacac1ry 1"0 wllhAf;fllH of ,,,. oOlic;Gf as 10 IPI• lltnely 
oaV"fteft• Of interest ana reoavmetti or :r1r:c·ca1 ,,, 1cc:~C11f'lce ws•" :fie !erms of 
N QC1191110ft: 

2. Narute Of.,,., DtOYtSIOnS or"'' OCltgl!IO": 

3. Protection '"°"*' Dy. ana r•11we oos11ion or. ""- ODhe;llllOft "' rrie &'Veftl Of 
~anllf'UOIC't. 't0r91"'Z8110ft. or Oll'llf ltl'lf191'"1"1 Yf\Otr !fie 18'rl Of Da""'UOICV 
ana otf'ler raws arreang cr1GJ1ors rignaa. 

AAA C•Dt rarea ·AAA· nu Ille "'91'1ell raring IUll)ntG Dy Sranaara & Poor s. 
CaoK11y 10 o~y "'reres1 ana rteav orit1CJpa1 11 , • .,.,,..,, 11rong 

AA Oeo1 r111G':AA· PIU 1119ry 11ro"9cacac:irv10 Ol'I '"'•r•s1 ana reoav orrnooaJ 
ano C11tle~ trom 1ne l'\i9P1es1 r11eo •HUH on.iv'" srnau C119rte 

A 0.Dt rlllG 'A' Plu a suong ~acnv 10 oav "''"'"t ana reciv DtlftCIDal 
lll"OUCJ" ,, ,, SOtfte'lllf'l.11 mot~ SuSCfOllOll 10 ,,,. 10Y9fl8 etlecrs Of Cl'llft91tS 

"'CMc:umszances ana ~ conaiaions irian CMDI"' ~ rarea Cllfl90NS. 

BBB C.01 r11eo ·sea· is tec)arcea u l'llV•"9 an aa11Gua1e caoaci•v 10 D•v emeres.1 
ana recav onncioai. Wl'l•reas 11 nc""•"" .. r.011 aaeaYal• DFDltCllOn oaram· 
11ers. aavers• economic ccna111ons or Cl'll"9•"9 csrc:\lms1arces are more 
l1ll1t1v 10 ieaa 10 1 weilaenea c:acac:rv 10 :>Iv'"''''" ana reoav Df•"C~ ror 
aeDI an mis c.a1~ y 1nan "' "'9,,'' ra1eo caaepes. 

Speculative grade rating definitions 
0.Dt ra1ea ·ea: ·a: 'CCC: ·cc: al'IG C" •S ret;arCltG II l'lavtf'l9 oreaomtna"llV 

soecu111"'9 cnarac:ens11es wnn resote1 to caoac:i•v ro DIY "''''''·' ana r1oav ormcoar. 
199· 1na1ca1es '"' 1ea11 oegree of soecu1111on 11'\0 ·c· tl'll PllCJPlell WPltte sucn aeot Wiit 
ltllety ,,,.._. some cuatitv ana Dt0t1C1ive criar 1cr1ri11ic1. U'lese ar• ourweeg"ea Dy 1arge 
""°""''"''es 01 m11or 1sooaur11 to 1~ c:anG$0ftl. · 

BB DeDt r11ea ·es· "as •ess near-11rm WlfteraDtlttyto a1rau111\an ocner soecv­
&at..,,. 11sut1. ~. 11 races maior OtWJ01ft9 uncetlllftbet or uDOSUr• 10 
aovietM Du11Nu. 11nancaa1. or ec:cnomc conobOnl wftCft COUta ieaa to 
tnaaeQUlll CUACllY ID mMI Dfftety lfttetest aMOMCOI' ~ 

8 Debt rlll'Ct '8" Plaa a 9rea11r vu1neraD1lity re atfautr Dul cummty has ane 
caoacrty 10 ·"'"' inrernt oavm.,,11 ana orrncioar reo1Yf"9MS. AChl9fle DuSt­
"-"· t1na"C1&1. °' econom1e coftOttioftl .,... ... ..,, smoaar caoaoay or "'*"9· 
n.ss ro cay mreres11na r•oav ormcioat. 

The ·a· ra11ng careq01y as arso usea tor aeDt suDDralftl1.ec1 to senior aeDt 
Nt 11 auigneo .,, 1cru11 or imoi..a as· or es-· uu1ng. 

eec O•Clt , .. .., ·ccc,;· l"llS a c:Urreftl'Y oae,,11tiaet1~ID•hly10 ae .. utt. ana ti 
=•oe"C:.,,I ""°" 'l"°'IClt CYS•ness. ''"'"Crll. 11'\0 KO"Dffl•C cona11ions 10 
,.,.., t1m11v cavtne"' Of '"'•'Ht ana recav"'•"' or :r•"CJCI• 1n·1P1e ,.,.,.. or 
aav•rse Oullftes.s. tinanc111.,or econof'l'llc cono11~s 1111not11ae1v to.,.._. 
tt'lt c:ac1c1rv 10 cav 1.n1eres1 l"D recav cr•,,c1011 
~8 C::c· t111"9 c1119erv •S 1150 YS80 tor Oltef SuDOrc1n11ea 10 lll'llOt 

CtDt lf'lal IS HStC;neG I" ICTU4'1or1mo1..a 8' or 8- ra11n9 

ee Th• flll"Q CC" •S r100car1v aOOheG to CtOt SUOOtO•"••eo 10 ""'°' aeo1 WfttCn 
ll &SSlgt'leG I" K!wal 01 ~0"4!0 C::::- 'llt01 Plltfl9 

C The 'lllftJ C' •I rvccally 1-.0 lO dlDI suDorOif\alM IO..,.. ... __,.. 
.....,.. M IClu.11 or lft'Ol80 CCC- OIDI ••""'9· 

ca n-.,..., er,,. .. ..., fDr~ DDrWan....,. ,. ....... ...,. .... 
D Otol rai.a o· ,, .ft cavmena aer-..&. T"• ·o· rat"'9 ca•99°'Y 11 -.. ....,. 

""9'811 ~ Ot C'f!f'IC10)ai C~IS are "Cl fft&OI °"" IAe Gile ........ 
""'- aODW".ac1e ;race oera nu nor eaosrM. unieu S&P ~ .. ...,. 
~ wa11 H "'aae ~""9 sud\ pace 08"0CI. TM -o· ,. .. - ... 
o. usea uoon 1~1 frtlftCJ ot a DaNll\IDley oe11110ft ff CleDI HMCa _...... 

If• teONrGIZN • 
PIUI f • t or Minus f- t: The rahfW)S ffOfR ·u· 10 "CCC' "'Sf lie ~ 9r "8 
aaci11on of a ocus or.._,, tO lftOwr retattve StaNllng wsll\ln N INIOf ratng ~ 

Pte¥i&i0ftal Aa•iftl•: TN .... ., ·p- iftOCltH atat lfte ,...,. ii ........... 
A ~OlttSllCllW Flll!'IC) llSU"'91 t"8 SUC:Cetltuf catno .. Mft ot 1fle ora.&I .... 
tana"CIG Dy '"' CeDI De"'9 r11ea lnG lftCICll8~ NI Oayffteftl Of ---­
teQ\otll'°"lfQ ti 11r9ety or entttefV de~ uoon 11\e suc:ceuf\i arl!ll_, ""'°' .. '°"Of lfte :ro1ec1. Tl'lts r111ng. f'IOw8wer. wftlle 800rl'Slift9_.,. 
srv ...,=......,.. :o corriDtetlon 01 N oroiect. ,,,...,., no CD11VNA1 • Siii 
ltillld'IOOCI ot or 111e ...- of aetaul uoon taaue Of. w cor••eiua 'ftt 
•nvetlOl ll'IOulO ISltCIH tuG;ment Wltft resoeci IO IUCft liklilflDoel M!ll&i!IL 

L The ..... \,' lf'GQIH NI IN rabng pertalftS IO IN Dfl"CIDll 9llll!!!i!!lll" 
tftOse DOnaS ID IPle ea rem 1~1 N uncsenying aeOOM CCM&arera1 ii ..... ., 
IPle Feoeral SIV'f'9S & Loan Insurance Coro. or lftt Federat Oeoalll-.. 
1nce Coro. ana inrerts1 11 aoeaui1ety conarera11111a. In tft8 caH • _... 
cares of ClfOOSsl "'• ienet ·L· lftOCares 1P11r ""- e•CIOSll. comOINd--­
oeoos11s °"'9 "" "' "'• same "9"' ana caoao1y w111 Cle -.. • 
orinc:ioat ana acet\l.O ore-oetaun 1t111rest uo to me teaerat ftl....a .._ 
wrtPWI 30 eavs autt et0sing Of tl'le tftSUrea '"''"""°"or."' "'8..,,.... .... 
CleOOS•I tS BUUll'lta Dy I SUC:.CfllOf insured lftSlllMllOft. UDOft fftlllUlll\l 
• ConflftUalf'ICe Of ,,,. '""'9 is con11119em uoon S&P'l ~ Of an.....,... 
CCIDY ot "'8 escrow agreement or csosing CIOCl.lft'8n&all0ft CDftMftlAg...., 
meftll.,.., casn now. _ , 
I SV"'DOl 11 YsH ••ctuSNetv on Stare of Mct"9•" ScNXIO Bonds. The.._ I 
are a"""''" Kf\OOI conas ana are r11ea on oar ••"' N saaae1 ...,., 
OOlraglbClft ra11n9. ' _J 

Municipal Notes 
A Stanaard & Poort ftDll r111t19 reflectl lftl liQuidity concerns ancr ~ 

ris-s Y"ICIUe to noees. Notes aue "' 3 years or iesa ri 1i&ety r8'C&N9 a ,.,. -...e 
Noles m1""11'19 De¥OllCt 3 years Wiii most ltkety receive. a &ong·tenn CleCll ,..._ "'"J 
fO&!Owlftg Odetta Wiii De ustG "'ma•ung 11'\al llMUINf'I: . 
-AlftorttlallOft SCf'leaulO cme iar~ me Mal ma1unay reia•• IO D"* ,.....,,_ · 

mat• tdaef¥ II wll De tlHreG 1141 notet. j 
-Source elf oaymetll ("'8 fftOrl OeoetlGeN tfte IU&'9IIon11'19 mani.I tar a 
· lftlJ, NfiWtWletyllwllCletrtal80 uaftDtat. 
Nole PBllftl 'Y"''*' are II foHows: 

SP-1 Very strong fll '''°"' ca~oty 10 oay Df"'CIOll and lftternL Thole · 
Gttemufteel 10 OOSSHI Ollerwftetn\lng utety Cl'latiCWtSICI Ml I» pllllt 
D'UI ( • ) GlfllrJftlbOft. 

SP·2 SallSfactory CIOICllY 10 DIV princcat lnG lftternt. 

SP·3 SOICUlllN8 caoaoty 10 DIY Dnr1C1Da1 ana ftet811. 

Dual Ratings 
Stanaara & Poor s usrc;ns "Oull" rll"'91 l0 air aeDt lllUll ana1 ~ u-' II 

srt\1Ctur11 our oorion °' aernana tearure. 
The ''"' raiinq acaresses '"• 1tlle11"0Ca of reoayrneru of DN"CIOll Ind .....­

:"'e. ano Ille stcol\CI ra""g aaaresses on1y rhe aemana IHtutt. Th• 1Dft9"..,. 
rah"9 symD0111r• UllG •or oonos 10 ae"Dll tPI• IOng·te"" marun1y ano N 
:;ai oaoer r111"'9 sylftDCIS ror '"• cu• 001ion ctor eaamo••. 'AA/IJA·' • l. "'"' 
:erm aema"G aeci1. ,,,. no•• rat"'9 ''""°°' t11.11.a we•" t"8 COfTVNl'oal Dl!OI' 
(!or ••8"'1C11e. ·5p.f • A·t ~ ), 



Moodys Investors Service 

Mr. Donald Wat~on 
Executive Director 
N.J. Turnpike Auth. 
Administration Bldq. 
New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903 

Iiear Mr. W3tson: 

99 Church Street. New York. N.Y. 10007 

Auqust 16, 1991 

We wish to inform you that our Ratinq committee has assigned 
the rating of A to the $423,000,000 New Jersey Turnpike 
Authority, Turnpike Revenue (1991 Resolution) (Non-Priority 
Bon~s) to be sold through negotiation August 20, 1991. 

We have also reviewed and conf irned the ratinc; of A to the 
outs~anding Turnpike Revenue Series 1985 Bi-Modal Multi~Term 
For~at Mode A and to t~e outstanding Turnpike Revenue Subord)n~te 
Lien Bonds. 

!n order t~at we ~ay ~aintain this rating over the period of 
the loan, we will require current financial and other updatinq 
infc~a-cion. We will appreciate your continued cooperation in 
t!'le future. 

We would ·apprecia~e receiving a copy of the final Official 
Statement •hen available. 

Under separate cover you will be rece1v1nq a copy of our 
credit report on the above referenced bend sale. 

' Should you have any questions regarding the above, please do 
not hesitate to contac~ Michael Johnston at (212) 553-7810. 

MJ': C!'l 

cc: Mr. Richard ~oirier 
Lazard Freres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 

Sincerely yours, 

,, · • ' ~ ~: r. <.. < ,_,-d- · 
\.t l(l . . '-·t '1 . ·\,.~;..c-· . 
1.' '"'"'-'- . ·.-

Daniel N. Heimowitz. -
Executive Vice.President 
Director 
Public Finance Depart:nent 

8?K 

RECEIVED 

AUG 1 9 1991 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 



tnvestors Service. Inc. 
te Srr~e: PIM~ 

.rk. NY.10004 
08·0500 

Auqust 14, 1991 

Mr. Donald L. Watson 
Execu~ive Direc~or 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 

· New Brunswick, NJ 08903 

FITCl·I 
ISTAILISHIO rt.fl 

Re: $423 million Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 A, (Refunding 
Bonds) 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

Fi tc:. Investors Service, Inc. has assiqned a rating of "A" to the 
above referenced bonds. The "A" ratinq is defined as " •.• Bonds 
cons:~e~ed to be invest~ent grade and of high credit quality. The 
obliger's ability to pay interest and repay principal is considered 
to be strong, but may be more vulnerable to adverse changes in 
economic conditions and ci=cumstances than bonds with higher 
ratings." 

For Conditions Relating to the Ratinq, please refer to page 2 of 
this letter. 

In order to keep our ratings current, we will expect to receive all 
material information on a continuinq basis, including final closing 
r,...,..,.-.o.-•e f:c- t~A r••--e9'\• +---. .,.r, ,.. .... -"'.,. 
... ., ... _ ... ., •• __ .... c.. ...... --~- ..... ~- ... ··~- ... ---...,··· 

W~ are pleased to have had the ·opportuni~y to be of service to you. 
If we can be of further assistance~ please feel free to contact us 
at any time. A copy of the credit analysis published by Fitch 
Investors· Service in connection with the above issue will be 
forwarded. 

Sincerely; 

~·f (,L_j 
~ Claire G. Cohen 

Executive Managing Director 
Governmental Finance 

,.. ..... ~'- --



FITC/-1 

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE RATING 

Ratings assigned by Fitch Investors Service, Inc. are based en the 
documents and information provided to us by the issuer and its 
experts and agents and are subject to receipt of the final closing 
documents. Fitch does not verify the truth or accuracy of such ' 
information. 

R~tings are not a recomrneodation to buy, sell or hold any security. 
Ra"': ings do not comment on tt1e adequacy of market price, the 
suita~ility of any security for a particular investor, or the tax­
exernpt nature of taxability of payments made in respect of any 
security. 

It is important that Fitch be provided with all information that 
:nay be ~aterial to the rating so that our ratings continue to 
accurately reflec~ the current condition of the issuer. Ratings 
may be changed, withdrawn, suspended or placed on Fitch•Alert in 
the event we do not receive adequate or timely information. 

RECEIVED 
AUG 1 9 t991 



.·· 

M· odys Investors Service 

Mr. Donald Watson 
Executive Director 
N.J. Turnpike Authcrity 
Administration Duildinq 
New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

- EXHir.IT ~ 
99 Churcn Street. New Yoric. N.Y. 10007 

September 24, 1991 

We wish to infcr:n you that our Rating Committee has assiqned 
the rating' cf A to the $80,665,000 New Jersey Turnpike Authority, 
Turnpike Revenue Subordinate Lien Bends to be sold thro~gh 
negotiation Septe~~er 24, 1991. 

We have also reviewed and ccnf ir:'!\ed the ratinq of A to the 
outstanding Turnpike Revenue Series 1985 Bi-Modal Multi-Tenn 
For=at Mode A Eonds. 

In order that we ~ay maintain this rating over the period of 
the loan, we will =e~ire current financial and other updating 
infc:-::ation. We •ill apprecia'te your con~inued cooperation in 
4:he future. 

we would appreciate receiving a copy of the final Official 
Sta'ternent when available. 

Under separate cover you will be receivinq a copy of our 
credit repor~ on the above referenced bond ·sale. 

Should you have a~y questions reqardinq the above, please do 
not hesitate to contac~ Marie Pisecki at (212) 553-7120. 

MS?: en 

co: Mr. Jack Tam~gni 
Municipal Fi~ance Dep~. 
~azard F~eres. & Co. 

Sincerely yours, 

f\ ··':'(} .rrl~. r 1 t...'-'~ tl·('-J....L U 't-\ ~ _, · 
Daniel N. Heimowitz · · .. 
Executive Vice President 
Director 
Public Finance Department 

RECEIVED 
SEP 2 6 1991 



... '"' . • u. 

Standard & Peer's Corporation 
Mu cical Finance Department 
25 Broadway 
New York, New York 10004-1064 

, Telephone 212/205-1767 

t 
~ Richard P. Larkin ; 
" Managing 0111ctor 
• Munac1pai Finance Oecanment 

Mr. John S. Tamagni 
Lazard Freres & Co. 

' One Rocke! ell er Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

September 30, 1991 

Re: S7S.960,G·OO iVew Jersey Turnpike AutJ:oril)•, Turnpik1 RtYtnue Bonl::, Series 
1991-B (Rtfunding Bonds), due:- January 1, 2001, daled: August l, 1991 

Dez Mr. Tamagni: 

Pursuant to your request for a Standard &. Peer's rating on the above debt obligations, we 
have reviewed the information furnished. to us and, subject to the terms and conditions of the 
MEMOR.A1'1)UM OF AGREEMENT on the reverse side hereof, have assigned a rating of 
·A· to the obligations. 

Ple.:se note that t::e informatio:l referred to in the third paragraph of the MEMORAJ\TDUM 
OF AGREE:-.1E!'·n includes a.inual audits and budge~ and. for revenue bond ratings iri 
connection with construction financing, progress repons. not less often than quarterly, 
covering the project being fi»anced. 

In ti":e event that you decide to include this rating in an Official Statement, prospectus or 
oth:: offering lite:ature. we request that you include S&P's definition of the rating together 
with a state:nent that the rating may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result of 
changes in, or unavailability of, information. 

\Ve ar: p!e:::;ce to halve been cf scr\'ic: to you. Our bill will be sent in due cot:rse. If you 
have any questions, please contact us. 

ed 

RECEIVED 
OCT 0 7 1,91 

J:'JC~eurrve .DIRECTOR 



.esters Service. Inc. 
~ ~:·c..t~'! ~ .,.·'!.-..... 
. ~ ~·, i ;·~ : . .: 
.... : ...... 
;• • .J••W 

Septer.~er 23, 1991 

i 
i 

1,l Mr. Oor.ald L. Watson 
l i Execu~i ve Direc-:.o::-
j ·. New .Jersey Tu=np H:e Au't.hor i ty 
~ P.O. Box 1121 

FITCl·I 
ESTAILISHIO tfJJ 

; Ne~ 9runs~ick, N~ 06903 
i ! Re: SS0,600,000 7~=npike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 B (Refunding 

Ecn:~) 

De a:- ?·:=. ·..:a ts en: 

: i. ":=~ Inves-:.crs Se!"··: ice, !nc. has assigned a rating cf "A" to the 
abo·Je referenced :::ncs. T!"'.e "A" rati.~g is defined as " ••• Bonds 
c:~si~ere~ to be i~ves~~ent grade and c! high credit quality. The 
cbl:.;:r•s ability ~o pay ih~eres't and repay principal is considered 
~= ~e s't.=~ng, bu~ =ay be ~ore vulnerable to adverse thanges in 
ec:nc:::ic c::n:i t:.::~s and ci.rcu'!':\stances than bonds with higher 
ra"::.ngs." 

For ccndi~ions Relating to the Rating, please refer to page 2 cf 
this letter. 

!n ===~= ~; k~ep ~ur ratlngs current, we •ill expect to receive all 
material inforwa~ion on a continuing basis, including fina~ closinc; 
doeu~ents for the current tra~saction. 

We are pleased to have had the opportunity to be of service to youo 
.If we can 'be cf further assistance, please feel free to c6ntact us 

. at any ti::ie. A copy cf the credit analysis .published by Fitch 
!:westors s:erv ice in connection wi t!"l the above issue will be 
for~arded. 

Si~cerely, 

~ 7tLY/ 
Clai~e G. Cohen · 
Executive Managing Di=ect== 
Gc~e=~=en~al Fina~ce 

RECEIVED 

SE? ? 5 1991 
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FITCl·I 
ESTABLISHED '''J 

CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE RATING 

~atinqs assigned by Fitc!'l Investors Service, Inc. are based on the 
documents and infon:iation provided to us by the issuer and its 
experts and agents and are subject to receipt of the final closing 
documents. Fitch does not verify the truth or accuracy of such 
information. 

Re~ings are no~ a reco~~endation to buy, sell or hold any security. 
?.a 4: in;z :.:.: ~=-= c=:.-.:::.:-::: c~ · -:!;c: ;i:i~~wacy c'! ~arl~e't prict:, t.ne 
sui~ability of any security for a particular inves~or, or the tax­
exe:np't natu:-e of taxa}:)ili ty of payments made in respect of any 
security. · 

It is i~po=~ant that Fi~ch be provided with all information that 
may be riaterial to the rating so that our ratinqs .continue to 
acc~:-ately reflect t!'le cur:ent condition of the issuer. Ratings 
~ay be changed, withd=awn, suspended or placed on Fitch Alert in 
t~e even~ we do not receive ade~~ate or ti~ely inforr.tation. 

"'\ 
-~ 

f9J 



Moodys Investors Service 

. •I , , 
I 

Mr. Donald Watson 
Executive Director 
New Jaraay Turnpike Authority 
Administration Buildln; 

_____________ ....... ______ _ 
EXHIBIT R 

99 Church Street. New Vorx. N.Y. 10007 

. f. 
November'20, 1991 

.... 

Naw Brunawi~k, Ne~ Jersey 06903 
.. ·#· 
:·::.:y~ .. 

Dear Mr. Watson: -~ 

We wish to infor:l you that our Rating Committee haa 
aaaic;ned the ratinq ot ~to the $1,636,200,000~N•w Jersey 
Turnpike Authority, Turnpike Revenue Bonds which"., aold 
t.hreuqh naqotiation November 19, 1991. 

In order that we may maintain the ratinq, we will 
require current updatinq infer.nation. We w111·· appreciate 
your continued cooperation in the future. 

Should you have any questions rsqardin9 the above, 
please de not hesitate to contac~ Marie s. Pisecki at 
(212) 553-7120. 

DNH:vlw 

sincerely, 41\ 

~ ,;.Q_~.·..f./.. ~ 
Danial N. Heimowitz 
Executive Vice President 
Director 
Public Finance Department 

... 

RECEIVED 
t:OY 2 2 199t 



Moodys Investors Service 99 Church Street. New York. N.Y. 10007 

: 

Decubar 6, 1991 

Municipal Bond Investors Aesurance. corporation 
113 J(ing Street 
Armonk, New York 10504 

Dear MBIA COrpo: 

Moody's Investors Service has assiqned the rating ot Al.I. (MBIA ccrp. 
Inaured•Policy No. 10576) to the $50, 000, o·oo New Jersey Turnpike 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 C (Insured Maturity Due January 1, 2013), 
dated Novem>=er 15, 1991, which sold ~hreuqh neqotiaticn on Novaabar 
22, 1991. The ra~inCJ ia baaed upon a pelicy provided by Municip-.l 
Bond Inveaecra Aaauranea Corporation. 

Should you have any questions raqard1nq the above, .pleaaa do not 
hesitate te contact tha asai;ned analyst, Michelle Beinhacke.r at 
(212} 553 .... 7779. 

DH:cr 

Sincerely youre, 

t~.~:tz 
Executive Vice President 
Director 
Public 1'"1nanee Department' 

·- ..... • 



Moody~ Investors Servtce . 

AMBAC Indemnity Corporation 
ona State ltr••~ Plaza 
Nev York, New York · 10004 

caar AMIACr 

;; cnurc~ Strttt. New Voric. N. Y. YOOC7 

. , 

Deceeer t, 1991 

Moody 1 1 Invester1 Service ha1 asaiqned th• raeinq ot All (A.MB.AC 
Insured-Peliey No. d440BE) to tha S16i,72S,OOO New Jer1ey Turnpike 
Authc~ity, New J•r1ay, Sar1a1 1991C Turnpike Revenue lends, dated 
Noveln..ber 1~, 1991, conai•~inq cf $73,640,000 in a;qre9ate principal 
amount of Serial Benda ·maturinq on J'anuary 1, 2007 and. $96, oas, ooo in 
19qre9ate principal ameun~ ct Serial Bonda maturing en January l, 
2010, which sold throuqh neqotiation en Nove,mb•r 21, 1991. Th• ratin; 
ia baaed upon an in1\U'anee l'Clicy provided by AMBAC ?nd•mnity 
c:orpora'tien. 

Should you hlv• any qu••tion1 reqarding the above, pleaaa do not 
' heaitat• te cantaot the assigned analyst, Cynthia Shapiro at (212) 

!!3Q41f9. 

CH:cz-

Sincer•ly yo\U'1, 

{)~~-~ 
Dani•l N. Beimowitz 
Exaoutive Vic• Pr•aidant 
Diraotor 
Public Financ·• Capartment · 



Moodys Investors Service 

Mr. Donald Watson 
Executive Director 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Administration Building 

99Chureh Street. New York. N.Y. 10007 

December ·11, 1991 
~·. 

.· 

New Brunswick, New Jersey 08903 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

We wish to inform you that our Rating Committee has 
assiqned the ratinq of Aaa/VMIG l to the New Jersey 
Turnpike Authority Turnpike Revenue Bonds Series 1991 D. 

The lonq-term rating is based upon an insurance policy 
provided by the Financial Guaranty Insurance Company. The 
short-term rating is based upon the letter of credit 
provided by Societe Generale, and will be changed whenever 
the bank's rating is changed. Additionally, the short term 
ratinq expires December 4, 1992, upon conversion, or earlier. 
termination of letter of credit. 

In assigning our rating we relied on documents provided 
to us. tn order to maintain the rating. we-must be provided 
with a complete set of executed docu~ents blacklined aqain~t 
drafts we used to rate the issue as soon as possible. 

Under separate cover you will be receiving a copy of 
our credit report on the above referenced bond sale. Should 
you have any questions regarding the above, please do not 
hesitate to contact the analyst assigned to the transaction, 
Thomas c. Letteri, at (212) 553~4554. 

":CL: cqj 

Sincerely, 

Daniel N. Heimowitz 
Executive Vice President 
Director 
Public Finance Department 
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itandard & Poor'a Corporation 
}Ond Insurance Atministf.fltion 
: S Broadway ~ 

Jew York, New Y(>rk 10004-1064 · 
·elephone 212/2~- i 06 f:. 
AX 212/208·82tp ~ 

! 
I 

' I . 
I 

tunicipal Bond Lvcs!QfS Assurance Corporation 
-13 King Street r ~ . 

nnonk. New Ytrk 10~ 

.L 
I 

-December 6, 1991 

~= S.SD,000.0H Nel'i Jersey Tllmpik1 A.uthorily TumptU R1v1nue Bonds, Sims 199JC 
dazed Novfmber ,.S, 1991 dut JanU1Jry 1; 2013 (Poliey No. 10511) · 

I 
ldies and Gentldmcn: . 

:rsuant to your Jeqµcst,for a Standard&. Poor's. rating on the $Ubject obligations, we ha\"e. 
;iewed the infofmation submiue.d and have assigned a rating of 'AAA'. 

I 

i . .. 
:is reflects our ~se.ument of the likelihood of repayment of principal and interest buel:f on 
: bond insurance policy your company is providing. 

t ' 
ting adjustment$ may ~suit from changes in the financial position of your company or 
im alterations iri documents governing the is.sue. With respect to the Iauer, please notify 
of any changes I or am&ndments over the term of the issue. · 

1C11 using this Jan~&. Poor's rating, include S&P's defmilion of the tating together 
th a statement ~at this may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result of changes 1n, 
unavailability of, infot.mation .. This rating is not a .. market rating", because it is not a 
~mmendation t; buy, ~old or sell the obligations. · . 

: ., 
:asc remember that complete documentation relating to this issue musr be submitted no 
:r than 90 days pfter the date of this letter. If you have any questions, please contact us. 

1 

" 
Vcrj truly yours, & 

,.. /, . I 

; I I ~ . I .' 
I I I . 

I <- . / A ·. ,/ .' 

. ·.l.tCL •• / ( • · ~rv 
.. / ; 

;" / 

(./ 
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Standard St Poor'1 Corporation 
80ttd l"1ur1net Adm"11ttration 
29 Broldw1y 
Ntw York, N1w Vork 10004· 108' 
Ttl•OhOfll 2121208-1oe1 
FAX 212/208·1292 

· Ms. Zeyba Rahman 
Vice Praident 
AMBAC Indemnity Corporation 
One State Sueet Plm • 17th floor 
New York, New York 10004 · 

L 
Dca:fnber 9, 1991 

Re: $169,725,000 of $1,247,8J0,000 Ntw Jene, Turrq!ilu Authori'1, Tl&mptke RcYenue 
Bon4J, Sirles l991C, dattd: Novcmbtr 15, 1991, $73,640,000 <S1rial) 4u1: JanUIJr1 
1, 2001; S96,08S,000 (S1rlol) dut: January 1, 2010 (POUCY #6440BEIACN 6llZ) 

Dear Ms. Rahma.a: 

Pumwlt to your request for a Swid.ard &. Poor' s rating on the subject obli&ations, we have 
:Mewed the information submitted and have assigned a rating of •AAA'. 

This reflects our as~sment of the likelihood of repayment of principal and in~ based on 
~e bond insura.na: policy yOYt company is providing. 

Rating adjust:menu may r=uli from changes in the financial position of your company or 
f:om alterations in documents &oveming the is.me. With ~ to the latter, please notify 
~ of any changes or amendments aver the term of the issue. 

~Nhen usina this Standard & Poor's rating, include S&:P's definition of the nting togethe: 
7iith a statement that this may be chtn&ed, su!pended or withdrawn u a re.suit of changes in, 
Jr un&vailability of, information. This ratm& is not a "market rating•, because it is not a 
:ecommendatlon to buy, hold or sell the obligations. 

?loase remember that complete documentation relarin1 to this issue must be submitted no 
Ater than 90 days after the date of this letter. If you have any questioru, pleax contact us. 

cf 



.• 

Standard & Poor's Corporation 
Municipal Finance· Department 
15 Broadway 
New York. New Yerk 10004· 1064 
Teleohone 2121208·1767 

Richard P. Larkin 
MtNfi"I Oireetor 
Mvftioipll ~Renct 0.P•""'•"t 

Mr. John Tamagni 
law'd :Freres, & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

Decemper .11, 1991 ... 
-. 

Re: $1,247,8SO,OO.O New Jersey Turnpike Authority, Tumpikt Rei·enut Bonds, Strits 
1991-C, due: January ·21, 2016, dtzled: No~·ember 15, 1991 

Dear Mr. Tamagni: 

Pursuant to your request !or a Sta.idard &. Poor's nting on the above deb;..obligations, we 
have reviewed the information furnished to us and, s~bject to the terms and conditions of the 

. MEMO~"DUM OF AGREEMENT on the reverse side hereof, have assigned a rating of 
'A• to the obligations. 

Please not~ that the information refe:red to in the third paragraph of the MEMORANDUM 
OF AGREE.\1E~"T includes annual audits and budgets and, for reve.iue bond ratings in 
connection with construction financin:, progress reports, not less ofte:1 than qua.-teriy, 
coverin& the project being financed. 

In the event that you decide to include this rating in an Official Statement, prospectuS or 
other offering literature, we request that you include S&P's definition of the rating together 

. with a statement that the rating may be eha.~ged, suspended or· withdrawn as a result of · 
changes in, or unavailability of, information. 

We are pleased to have been of service to you. Our bill will be sent in due course. If you 
have any questions, please contact us. 

ed 
ce: Mr. Donald Watson 

Executive Director 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.o·. Box 1121 
New Brunswick. New Jersey 

... 



• 
~---·-

Standard & Poor's CorS)oration 
Bond Insurance Administration 
25 Broadway 
New York. New York 10004·1064 
T1l1ohon1 212/208· 1 081 
FAX 2121208·8262 

Ms. Marilyn T. Mullaney 
Manager of Operations 
Financfal Guaranty Insurance Company 
175 Water Street, 15th t:loor 
New York, New York 10038 

.· 

December 11, 1991 

Re: $311,000,000 New Jersey Tumpilu AUlhorir;, Tumpilu Re,.·e1We Bow Scms 
1991D, dated: Dectm.b1r·12, 1991, due: Januar; 1, 2018, 
(POLICY #91010513/DSRF 91010514) 

Dear Ms. Mullaney: 

Pursuant to your request for a rating on the subject obligations, we have reviewed the 
information submitted and have assigned ratings of 'AAA/ A~ l + '. 

Tbe first ratina addresses the likelihood of repayment of principal and interest as due based 
on the bond insurance policy your company is providing. The second rating reflects the 
likelihood of repayment based on the Letter of Credit mued by Soc:iete Gene.We during the 
•put" period. 

hting adjustments may result from changes in the financial positions of your company or of 
the entity providing the liquidity facility. or from alterations in the documents governing the 
issue. With respect to the latte:, please be cenain to notify us of any chanaes or amend­
ments over the tetm of the issue. 

When using this Smnda.rd &. Poor's rating, include S&P's definition of the rating together 
with a statement that this may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a .result of changes in, 
or unavailability of, inf onnation. This rating is not a 11 market ratin1", because it is not a · 
recommendation to buy, hold or sell the obligations. 

Please remember that complete documentation relating to this issue must be submitted no 
later than 90 days after the date of this letter. If you have any q\lestions, please contact us. 

/o/X V ezy truly yours~ {'. 
,. I 
;_~ ,; 

a 



on St'fv•cc. tnc. 
!"'I •'I.•-'·• 
I : 1!0; 

comber 11, 199 l 

. Donald ~. W~tson 
lcuti ve Director 
' Joraoy TUrnpike Authority 
~ Brunswick, NJ 08903 

FITC/·I 
ISTAILISHl.O flf1 

~· . · .. 
.. 

$1.3 Billion Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991C 
$300 Million Turnpike Rovenue Bonds, Sories 19910 (Refunding 
Donds) (FGIC Insured) 

lr Mt·. Watson: 

:ch !nvostors Service, Inc. has assigned a ratinq of "A" to the . 
• J Dillion Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series l991C referenced above. 
'AM/1'"-l·t- 11 raeing has boon assiqncd to tho $300 Million Turnpike 
1onuo Bonds, Sories 19910 (Refunding Bonds). The· "A" rating is 
finod as •• ••. Bonds considered to be investmont 9rado and of hiqh 
ldit quality. Tho obliqor's ability to pay interest and repay 
incipal is considered to be stronq, but may be more vulnerable 
adverse changes in economic conditions and circumstances thnn 

ids with higher ratings." The "F-1+" rating is defined as, 
.• t;xcoptionally strong crodit quality. Issues assiqnod this 
:in9 are roqar~ed as having the stronqost·degroa of as~uranco tor 
'.':\ely payment." 

l "AAA" clait:\S payinq ability rating is defined as: "'l'ho tlbility 
pay claims is ·extremely strong !or insurance companios with this 
~host rating. Fcresocnble tmsipess and economic risk factors 
~uld not have any rnatcrial adverse impa~t on an insurer's ability 
pay claims on this policy. Profitability, overall balance sheot 

rtlngth, capitalization, and liquidity are all at very socure · 
~ols and are urilikely to bQ affected by adverso undorwritinq, 
vostment, or cyclical events." 

r Conditions Relating t~ ~he Ratinq, please refer to page 3 of 
is lctt.ar. 

order to keep our ratings current, we will expect ~o receive all 
terial informa~ion on a continuini basis, including final closing 
cur.1e1~ts ·!or ~~e curren1: :ransact~~;,}f 



Mr. Donald L. Watson 
Docombor 11, 1991 
Pa90 2 

~-

; 

we arc pleased to have had the opportunity to bo of servico to you. 
If wo can ba cf further assistance, ploa&e feel froo to contact us 
at any time. A copy of tho credit analysis published by Fitch 
Invostors Sorvico in connection with the above issue will ba 
forwarded. 

Sincoroly, 

Jt~ f.CL_ 
Claire G. Cohan 

· Exocutivo Managing Diroctor 
Governmental Finance 
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CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE RA~IJ:1~ 

.· 
tings assiqncd by Fitch investors Service, Inc. aro based on the 
cumonts and fnformation provided to us by the issuer and its 
perts and agents and aro subject to receipt of tho f in~l closinq 
cuments. Fitch does not verify tho truth or accuracy of such 
formation. 

tings ftre not a recommendation to buy, soll or hold any security. 
tin91 .. ~Q ... not. cornme11t on the adequacy of market price, the 
itability of any security for a particular investor, or the tax­
ornpt nature of taxability of paymerits mado in respect ot any 
curity. 

is important. that Fitch be providod with all information that 
y bo matorial to the ratinq so that our ratings continue to 
ourately rofloct the cur~~~t condition of the issuer. Ratings 
y bo changed~ withdrawn, s~~pended or placed on Fitch Alort in 
e ovont we do not receive adequate or timely information. 

3 



EXHIBIT •S 

Moodys Investors Service 99 Church Street. New York. N.Y. 1'0007 

Mr. ccnald Watson 
Executive Director 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Administration Buildinq 

J'anuary 3, 1992 .. 

~-

. f. 
. 
f 

New Brunswick; New Jersey 08903 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

We wish to inform you that our Ratinq Committee has 
assiqned the rating ot A to the ~77s,ooo,ooo New Jersey 
Turnpike Authority Turnpike Revenue Bonds to be sold 
throu;h· neqotiation January 9, 1992. 

In order that we m3y maintain this rating over the 
period. ef the loan, we will require current financial and 
other updatinq information. We will appreciate your· 
continued cooperation in the future. 

-
We would appreciate receiving a copy of the .final 

Official statement when available. 

Under separate eover you will be receivinq a eopy of 
our credit report on the above referenced bond sale. 

Should you have any questions reqardinq the above, 
plaaaa do net hesitate to contac~ Michael Johnston at (212) 
553•7810. 

MJ:cqj 

cc: Mr. John s. Tamaqni 
Lazard Frares & Company 
Ona Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

Sincerely, 

,0~-fl··~ 
Daniel N. Heimowitz 
Executive Vice President 
Directer 
Public Finance Department 



Standard & Poor' s Corporation 
Municipal Finance Department 
25 Sroadwav 
New York. New York 10004· 1064 
Telephone 212/208·1767 

Aichard P. Larkin 
MafWtlno o;,.ctov 
Murticipel FtMACt D•P•RrM"t 

Mr. John S. Ta.magni 
Lazard Preres & Co. 
One Rockefeller Plaza 
New York, New York 10020 

REVISED COPY 

Jan_uap. 14, 1992 

Re: $141,110,000 New Jeney Tumpikt Aulhoril1 Revenue Bonds, Seritf 1992A, tlal.1d: 
Janua11 l, 1992 

Dear Mt. Tamagni: 
. . 

Pursuant to your request for a Standard & Poor's @ting on the above debt obligations, we 
have reviewed the information furnished to us and •. subject to the terms and conditions of the 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT on the reverse side hereof, have assigned a rating of 
·A• to the obligations. 

Please note that the information referred to in the third paragraph of the MEMORANDUM 
OP AGREEMENT includes annual audits and budgets and, for revenue bond ratings in 
connection with construction financing, progress repons, not less often than quarterly, 
covering the project being financed. 

In the event that you decide to include this rating in an Official Statement, prospectus or 
other offerin1 literature, we request that you include S&P's definition of the rating together 
with a statement that the rating may be -changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result of 
changes in, or unavailability of, information. 

We arc pleased to have been of service to you. Our bill will be sent in due course. If you 
have any questions, please contact us. 

cjc 
cc: Mr. Donald Watson 

Executive Director 
Ne\\' Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.O. Box 1121 -
New Brunswick, New Jersey 

~.:~ .. :-. ------------- .. - - -- -· . .__. __ 

I 

--
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,vcstors Service, Inc. 
·ti! Scrc•t'( Pi.v.i 
o:t. ~JY I (100~ 

"A·O~OO 

January _6, 1991 

Mr. Donald L. Watson 
Executive Cirector · 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.O. Box 1121 
New Brunswick, NJ 08903 

FITC/·I 
£STAILISHEO ftfJ 

.· 

Re: $775,000,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds, series l99iA 

Dear Mr. Watson: 

Fitch Investors Service: Inc. has as:::igned a r~ting ot "A" to the 
above referenced bonds. The "A" rating is defi:ied a£ " ... aonds 

·considered to be investment grade and o! high credit quality~ The 
o~liqor•s ability to pay interest and repay principal is considered 
to be strong, but may be rnore vulnerable to adverse changes in 
economic conditions and circumstances than bonds with higher 
rctin9so" 

For conditions Relating to the Rating, please refer to paqe 2 o! 
this letter. 

In order to keep our ratings curren~, we will expect to receive all 
n1aterial information on a continuing basis, incl udin9 final closing 
documents for the current transaction. 

w~ are pleased to have had the opportunity to be of servl~~ to you. 
If we can be of further assistance, please feel free to contact us 
at any ti:ne. A copy of the credit analysis published by Fitch 
Investors Service in connection with the above issue will be 
forwarded. 

sincerely, • 

~/CLJ 
,..., L G C h . 1..J.'3-re • c en 
!xecu~ive Vic~ President 
Government~l Finance 

CGC/bgc I0'1X 

RECEIVEO 

,IAN U 9 1992 

E.XECUTJVE DIRECTOR 

·I 



CONDITIONS RELATING TO THE AAT'ING 

Ratings assigned by Fitch Inve$tors Service, Inc. are based err the 
·documents and infortnlltion. provided to us by the i$suer and its. 
experts and agents and are subject to receipt of the final closing 
documents. Fitch does not verify th~ trut~ or ~ccuracy of such 
information. · .. · 

( . 
Ratinqs are n.ot a recommendation to buy, sell or hold nny security. 
1'a tinqs d:, nt:tt. cvauJhar.~ Oil the adequacy ot mar}:et p,· h.:e, · the 
suitability of any security for a particular invc$tor, or the tax­
exempt nature of taxability of paymen~s made in respect of any 
cccurity. 

It is important that. Fitch be provided with all information thut 
may be material to tha rotinq SO·, that our rat:ings continue to 
accurately reflect the current condition of the i~~uer. Ratinqs 
may be chanqed, withdrawn, suspended or placed on Fitch Alert in 
the e~cnt we do not receive adequ~te or timely information. 

) 

" 

,.,~ 

I 
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XHCY''. %2lVHYn krYSM ~.. &H1fi'\ed t:!• raUnt oc AM (a.D&C 
:~~'·'•11oy wo. fl4t1X) '° '9'8 J~o.ois,t'I l&V l.:••Y ~ik• 
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Standard & Poor's Corporation 
Bond Insurance Adm1n1stration 

. 25 Broadway 
New York. New York 10004-1064 
Terec"one 2121208- t 061 
FAX 2121208-8252 

Ms. Susan Cansdale 
Vice Presideni of Operations 
AMBAC Indemnity Corporation 
One St.ate Street Plaza • l 7lh FJoor 
New.York, New York 10004 

April 6, 1992 , . . • ... 

: 

Re: $30,016,972 New linty T'umpike Authority, Tumpi/ce Rev1nu1 Bonds, StritJ 
1992B, (Garden Start Savings Bonds)~ dlJled: April 15, 1992, du1: January l, 2000°. 
2012 (POl .. ICY 168498£/ACN 6595) 

Dear Ms. Cansda?e: 

Pursuant to your request for a Standard & Poor' s rating on the subject obligations, we ha\'e 
reviewed the information submitted and have assigned a ratin1 of 'AAA'. 

, This reflects our assessment of the likelihood of repayment of prineipaJ and interest based on 
the bond insurance policy your Q>mpany is providing. 

Rating adjustment~ may result from chan1es in the financial position of your company or 
from alterations in dOcuments govemin& the issue. With reipect to the latter, please notify 
us of any changes or amendments over the term of the issue. 

\\i'hen "1Sing L~is SW1dard &. Poor's rating, include S&P•s definition of the rating together 
with a statement that this may be changed, suspended or withdrawn as a result of changes in, 
.or unavailability of, information. This ratin& is ~ot a .. market rating". because it is not a 
recommendation to buy, hold or sell the obligations. 

Please remember that complete documenta!ion relatin& to this is.;ue must be submitted no 
later than 90 days after the date of this letter. If you have any questions, please conrac:t us. 

Very truly yours, 
.Jct 

V <f)C tt_i J. O?Yj tJ /c 4. 

11t>K 
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NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 
P 0. BOX 1121 

DAVIOJ. GOLDBERG. Chairman 
FRANK E. RODGERS. Viee Chairman 
THOMAS M. DOWNS. Comm111i0ner 
LEONARD COHEN, Commissioner 
CLAY CONSTANTINOU. Comm1111oner 
RAYMOND M. POCINO, Commissioner 

NEW BRUNSWICK. N.J. 08903 

October 8, 1993 

The Honorable Rodney Frelinghuysen 
Chairman, Assembly Appropriations Committee 
Park Square Bldg., 10 Park Pl., Rm. 312 
Morristown, New Jersey 07960 

Dear Chairman Frelinghuysen: 

(908) 247-0900 

FAX: (908) 247-3472 

DONALD L. WATSON 
Executive Director 

Your staff verbally requested supplemental information 
to the documents that the Authority delivered to you on October 
7, 1993. . 

Specifically, your staff requested information as to 
when the Commissioners authorized that an appropriate fee be 
negotiated with the Financial Advisor in the event of a major 
financial restructuring. Those documents are enclosed. 

Enclosures 

,,, x 

Si:z;;;y.~ 

Donald :Pw'~son 
Executive Director 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. ·wa ts on 
Executive Director 

May 15, 1991 

RE: Confirmation Of Agreement With Lazard Freres & Co. 
For Professional Financial Advisory Services 

At the Co=mission Meeting of April 30. 1991, the Executive 
~irector received authorization to select a new Professional 
Financial Advisor to be confirmed at the May 30. 1991 Commission 
Meeting. This action was necessary due to the sudden dissolution 
of the Authority's previous Financial Advisor. Chase Securities, 
Inc. 

The Authority had initially solicited proposals from several 
firms from which Chase Securities, Inc. was selected at the March 
28, 1991 Commission Meeting. In order to expedite the replacement 
of Chase Securities, Inc., the Authority received proposals from 
three of the firms orginally invited plus three additional firms, 
and selected Lazard Freres & Co. 'l'his firm offers comprehensive 
Financial Advisory services with a well experienced professional 
financial staff. 

The terms will reJr.ain for one year at a SS0,000.00 annual cap 
for the ·services to be performed except the cap will not apply in 
the event of a major financial restructuring or any other 
extraordinary financial transactions. 'l'he hourly rate schedule 
for Lazard Freres, & Co. is as follows: Partners - $250.00: 
Senior Vice Presidents - S200.00: Vice Presidents - $150.00: and 
Associates - Sl2S.OO. 

Therefore. it is requested that authorization be granted to 
enter into an Agreement with Lazard Freres. & Co. for Professional 
Financial Advisory Services in an amount not to exeeed SS0,000.00 
annually with the excep~ion of a major_ financial restructuringo 

The Comptrollez>·concurs in this recommendation. Please 
charge this to Account Mo. 10-890-4608. 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director KK 

·.~ 

Herbert I. Olarsch 
Director of Law 

112.K 



0000000 

Executive Director Watson request~d confirmation of the 

selection of the firm of Lazard Freres & Co. as Financial Advisor. 

At the Commission Meeting of April 30, 1991, the Executive Director 

received authorization to select a new Financial Adviso~ due to the sudden 

dissolution of the Authority's previous Financial Advisor, Chase 

Securities Inc. 

The Authority had initially solicited proposal• from eeveral 

firms among which Chaae Securities was selected at the March 28, 1991 

Commission Heating. In order to expedite the replacement of Chase 

Secur1t111, the Authority received propoaal1 and interviewed three o! the 

firms originaliy invited plus three additional interested firms. 

Out of that interview process, the firm of.Lazard Freres & Co. 

was selected which offers comprehensive Financial Advisory services with a 

well experienced professional financial staff. The term for the services 

to be performed will remain for ·one year at a SS0,000 annual cap: the cap 

will not apply in the event of a major financial restructuring or any 

other extraordinary financial transactions. The hourly rates are: 

Partners - $250: Senior Vice Presidents - $200: Vice Presidents - SlSO: 

and Associates - $125. 

Acting Comptroller Jacobsen certified that funds are available. 

Executive Director Watson certified the recommendation for confirmation. 

On motion by Commissioner constantinou, seconded by Commissioner 

Cohen, and carried, the Authority unanimously confirmed the 

recommendation: authorized entering into an Agreement with Lazard Freres & 

Co. for Professional Financial Advisory Services, in an amount not to 

exceed $50,000 annually, with the exception of a major financial 

restructuring which is not covered by the Scope of Services and which will 

be negotiated separately. 

0000000 

I hereby certify·this to be a true and 
correct copy Of the excerpt of the Minutes 
of the New Jersey Turnpike Authority's May 30, 
1991 Commission Meeting. 

lf<>•h<>•'" T tl;\ -- "J ~ 



NEW J E R'S E Y TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 
PO. BOX 1121 

DAVID J. GOLDBERG. Chairman 
. FRANK E. RODGERS. Vice Chairman 
THOMAS M. DOWNS. COmmlslt0ner 
LEONARD COHEN. Commissioner 
CLAY CONSTANTINOU. Commiu10ner 
AA YMOND M. POCINO. COmmissioner 

NEW BRUNSWICK. N.J. 08903 

October 7, 1993 

The Honorable Rodney Frelinghuysen 
Chairman, Assembly Appropriations Committee 
Park Square Bldg., 10 Park Pl., Rm. 312 
Morristown, New Jersey 07960 

Dear Chairman Frelinghuysen: 

(908) 247-0900 

FAX: (908) 247-3472 

DONALD L. WATSON 
E•ecuttve Director 

Your letter dated September 30, 1993 confirmed your 
request for information relative to the Authority's 1991-92 bond 
issue and advised that Chairman David J. Goldberg and I need not 
appear at a committee hearing previously scheduled for October 
7th. 

The requested information is attached. Previously, I 
sent to each member of the Committee a copy of my detailed 
"Report to Governor Jim Florio and Treasurer Samuel F. Crane on 
the 1991-92 Bond Refinancing," dated May 24, 1993 

It is my understanding that you will contact us 
regarding any future hearing where our attendance is required. 

Enclosures 

Siv;;;;i 
Donald L. Watson 

Executive Director 



NEW JERSEY GENERAL ASSEMBLY 

RODNEY P. FRELINGHUYSEN 
AsSEMBLYMAN 25TH DISTRICT 

MORRIS COUNTY 

10 PARK PLACE 

PARK SQUARE BUJLDING 
MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960. 

201-993-1300 

FAX 201-993-9566 

September 30, 1993 

David J. Goldberg, Chairman 
Donald Watson, Executive Director 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P .o. Box 1121 
New Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Dear Mr. Goldberg and Mr. Watson: 

CHAIRMAN 

APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 

AsSEMBLY BUDGET OFFICER 

I am writing to confirm requests for information by staff to 
the Appropriations Committee and also to advise you in writing 
that your attendance at the committee hearing previously 
scheduled for October 7th will not be necessary. We will be in 
contact with you regarding any future hearing requiring your 
attendance. 

ln the meantime, the committee requests the following 
information be provided no later than Oc.tober 7th: 

An identification of the financing costs, by individual bond 
i~sue, shown on chart 1, page 10 of your May 24, 1993 report. 

An identification as to who invested the proceeds of each 
bond issue and what process was used in making the 
investments. 

A copy of each billing and all supporting documentation 
submitted by Lazard Freres for its financial advisory 
services for each of the bond issues. 

An identification of each member of the selling. group for 
each of the bond issues. 

11$'( 
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Mr. Donald Watson 
Page. 2 
September 30, 1993 

In addition, the comnittee requests that any and all 
transmittals, documents, and personal schedule or diary entries 
that reference meetings or dbcus.sions between Chairman Goldberg 
and Joseph Salema, Governor Florio' s former chief of staff, or 
Chairman Goldberg, Mr. Salema, and Clive Cumnis, of Sills Cumnis 
Zuckerman Radin Tischman Epstein Ir Gross, General Counsel to the 
Authority, be provided by October 7th as well. The time-frame of 
interest for these documents is between May 1, 1991, and.the date 
of the first bond issuance on September 5, 1991. 

·Thank you for your cooperation in providing the requested 
information. 

RPF: 

Rodney Frelinghuysen, Chairman 
Assembly Appropriations Comnittee 

,,, r_ 

RECEIVED Ml•"""' Tt.lmpllle Aultlrltr 

OCT 0 l 1993 

CHAIRMAN'S OFFICE 



New Jer:>ey Turnpike Authority 

Compori:>on of Financing Cost:> 

1984 - 1987 Offering:> 

1984 1985 1987 

S •rvic• Off•ring Off•ring Offering T otol 

Underwriting/Rem ark etin g Fees $14,758,673 24.012,500 18,243,323 $57 ,01 4,496 

Management/Financial Advisor Fees 2,500,000 1,621,286 4, 121.286 

Advertising 247,572 118,788 366,360 

Ac counting 45,000 92,000 18;314 155,314 

Verification Agent 35,000 35,000 

Bond Counsel 384;236 531,674 159,427 .1 ,075,337 

Other Counsel 58,854 105,650 268,426 432.930 

Special Tax Counsel 

Call Notice 

Gen er al Consultant 7,979 7,979 

Traffic Consultant 29,806 161 .s9o 191,396 

Marketing 

Printing 616,739 1,247,151 704,058 2.567 .948 

A a tin g S e rv i c es 69,950 95,000 85,000 249,950 

Trustee, Registrar, Paying Agent 594,475 25,000 25,000 644,475 

Misc ellan eo us 34,985 34.985 

$16.683.269 28 .770 .565 21 .243 622 $66 .897 .456 

NEW J«sey T U'f'l)i<e ~ft/ 
Comparison of Financing Costs 

1991 - 1992 Otf erings 

1991 A 1991 B 1991 C.'D 1992A 199'2 B 
Service Otfenns Offenns Offerins Otf.tns Off«in; To1al 

LhderMiting'Remarketing Fees $2,376,331 610,442 10,959.615 5,499,036 638,76'1 $20,084,185 
""1anagement.Fanancial Advisor Fees 425,000 125,000 1 ,'i!XJ ,000 525,000 2.275,000 
Advrising 213,166 213,166 
Accol.6\ting 25,000 11,000 11,000 11,(X)Q e,ooo 66.000 
Vrication Agent 5,000 5,000 4,500 14,SOO 
BondCol.l'lsel 380,875 22.336 264,320 63,039 112,761 843,331 
01her Ccunsel 214,211 23,865 139258 54,458 13,754 445,546 
Special Tax Co\.l\sel 91,140 17,541 155,004 11 ,093 2,806 'ZT7,586 
Call Notice 2,384 2.384 437,165 441,933 
General Consultant 24,250 1,147 25~7 
Traffic Consuhant 8,824 4,330 13,154 
Marketing Zl,056 . Zl,056 
Printing 112,047 60,323 154,617 96,266 155,379 578,632 
Rating~ces 122,000 63,000 155,000 120,000 12,600 472,600 
Trustee, Regsnr, Pa~ng Agent 32,601 15,813 240,883 14,911 13,991 318,199 
Miscellaneous 4764 4764 

$3,8191603 9571851 13?251692 613941803 11'2!131040 $2611011049 

• 
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NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Open Market Purchases of Investments 
of Bond Proceeds 

Investment Process: 

The investment of the proceeds of each bond issue vas managed by our 
fin~cial advisor, Lazard Freres. Requests for quotations and bids vere 
sent to various companies and the investments vere awarded based on the 
offers received and, in the 1991C & D bond issue, specially tailored 
securities for escrov requirements vere certified as to fair-market 
value by the provider and attested to by the financial advisor in 
accordance vith applicable Federal Income Tax rules and regulations. 
The folloving is a listing of the avardee for each bond issue. 

1991A 

1991B 

l991C&D 

1992A 

1992B 

In! of Security 

Treasury Securities 

Treasury Securities 

Treasury Investors -
Grovth Receipt (TIGRs) 

Treasury Securities 
Treasury Securities 
Treasury Securities 
Repurchase Agreement 

backed by Treasury 
Securities 

Treasury Securities 

111'(. 

Avardee 

First Boston 

First Boston 

Merrill Lynch 

Painellebber 
Goldman Sachs 
First Boston 
Horgan Stanley 

Goldman Sachs 



~Merrill Lynch . 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunswick, NJ 08816 

Mudge Rose Guthrie Alexander & Ferdon 
180 Maiden Lane 
New York, NY 10038 

Morgan, Lewis & Bockius 
2000 One Logan Square 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

December 11, 1991 

Global Swaps 

Debt Markets Group 

World Financial Center 
North Tower 
New York, New York 10281-1307 
212 449 6177 
FAX 212 449 8920 
Telex 671 6341 MLB SCTR 

In connection with the sale by the New Jersey Turnpike Authority (the ''Authority") of its 
·Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 C (the "1991 C Bonds") and its Turnpike Revenue 

Bonds, Series 1991 D (the ''1991 D Bonds"), we have entered into a contract to sell the 
Securities set forth in the confirmation issued with respect to the 1991 C Sands and the 
1991 D Bonds. 

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc. ("MLPF&S") certifies that: (i) the prices for the 
securities sold the Authority were determined in arm's - length transactions; (ii) the prices 
were determined without any intention to reduce the yield on the securities; (iii) the prices 
of the securities sold to the Authority were no higher than the prices we could have 
obtained for any other customer under similar circumstances; (iv) there is an established 
market for the securities; (v) the prices of the securities sold to the Authority were market 
prices. 

Sincerely, 

·/?'--;/ ~~ Yarry-Finkelstein 
Vice President 
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 

11,K 



LAZARD Fn.t:RES & Co. 
ON~ Rocx EFELLEB Pu.u 

N.Ew Yon.1t. N. Y. 1oo;i0 

Tinzt-noNJ: 1:?1:?1 e:i:?. eooo 

F.ACSUULE l:?l:?l 6:3:?·60t50 

EXHIBIT I 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 

December 12, 1991 

East Srunswick, New Jersey 08816 

Mudge Rose Guthrie Alexsnder & Ferdon 
180 Maiden Lane 
New York, New York 10038 

Morgan, Lewis .& Beckius 
2000 One Logan Square 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. 19103 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

In connection with the sale by the New Jersey Turnpike 
Authority of its Revenue Bonds 1991 Series C and D,. we 
acted as financial advisor to the Turnpike Authority. 
In our capacity as financial advisor, we assisted the 
Turnpike Authority in purchasing the securities set 
forth in Schedule Ii'I and III~. of the Verification 
Report. 

At the time of purchase by the Turnpike Authority of the 
securities mentioned above, we advised our client that, 
in our opinion, they were puchasing the securities at 
prices which were on the market. 

LAZARD FRERES & CO • . sg c-.- ' 
By: .) • ,4..,_.,_~ 
~ohn s. Tamagni 



LAz.&lU) Faz••• Sc Co. 
OH~aPLAY 

Np Yo•. N. Y. &0090 

Tl~ :SUll ••• 1000 ................. 

Dad J. Ooldberg. Olimwl 
New J~AllWlll'llY 
Rouw 1& 9 
Pon 0!1ee Ba 112 
Nsw Bnmrwick. New JflftC'/ 08903 

Re: P'msa' Advisory Compcmadon 

Dear Oainzwl CJoldb&q: 

szwYou 

We are wr1tml to ~lain the buil for ow P"!POltd fee1 of 12.0 millin m 
co1u11eticua Wida the New JerHy Tur:piu Authority'• Series A.BA C 
nf!,,•=na of \!le ~morur• ou.mtlDdia& actn. 

M you mow. iu Auillar!ty Incurred fees of S47 mflllcm m =mecdcm. wim die 
orilUW iuiwlce of UI• Seri• 1984 Wi Seri• 19&S boDd Yiu&. M 6mHi1I 
adYisor ta U. AmtlOr1~ for these f!nandnp WI w01 help realm I sub1Wlt1al 
reduaion f4 die Oftr&U cm11 for dle fin•uensg for iU beMii& of the Sl.IM Andi• 
~ ... IWD ~mu pmaram "'111 be muds ~ U!ln Ille 1984 amS 1., 
iaa&a combi:ed. We 11rimaw Uw WC Will be Ible 10 bGid mm IO l• ·thg OU 
bait the 1lftJ of me earl.tar derinp. 

M yw allo bavl, 1.ulrd Freres ha bread ~ m the ..mm of public 
11enc1e1 of Ill ktnd1, We arc capccially proud of wr record ill nblic 
~aa f111Mq Ia many mu. our fies aw bee m aw of Sl.00 
per t;OJld. W• UDdentlDd .. me AUmcniy Wilba m pay u bucd gpcm m. coat 
iSt &ftA&J1 ot lbe bcmd iuua. o\U' ~ ud lb aftemioa we avw to ma 
mum. Wt wlcmu lb• oppommtiy io serve th• Aulbcnty DD tbfl bam. 

IJ ccmuact. we uve been anud&l acMlor a> me ~ 11nce May, 1991. 
am mm&! fie mmr me ~ wiim ii blNCi IOlaly cm ma ma. wa Uuam 
to Autaoft&>' manen. cmmoi exceed SS0.000. Dd on a pro-raied bu& may be 
1111in~71ar, ud om 1arviee1 iDYolvt prcmdhia 1•a1ral acmca to ell• 
Aatbmity cm haw it cu faeilltate lts til1andnl need.I l.lld make mem eosi 
eflectitl. 

11..IH 



L 

3. 

'· 

~ dw """e'' ftuibmcy d NfwMtiZll me S.ma 198' 
IDd Senei 1'1S tuues &ad me pmcbale of 1°9'; 

Toaetller wtth bond cou111el ud tbe Aumor1iy's 11111ral 
coum•l. prtJarinl th• 11aerll bad r11olution and o&A1r 
reWed leill 40a1mems: 

Deftlapiq a Clpiml ud debt mgqemem plll: 

Structurin1 separate capital fiu.neina alterudYe1 ud 
... lopiq a bineill pla wim four acparaic ICfiea plam; 

11.a.x 



!. 

6. 

1. 

t>eli_piAJ u.d ff'.&Ugi.As i're1utadom ta bond immers u.d 
mdii mima 11mcie1 co nuinnin iAc Al&ihoriiy's mp raM1f 

SupervlsiDI the dcbc h1uaa;c proc:cu and Hlcciing 
undetwriiata. pr.inen, cn&tNa. venficaU02l qem ad o&Ur 
wm are u m:elf'll pan at uw PfUCCllt 

Ace u Projea m•n•pr ot the debt 1bwM::e rem wb1ds II one ot 
tU w1111 F•P• of fiBanc• ~of••ioula .,,., UMmblM. 
There are over 'o und:rwrtdDI &ms l10DI on um traDllCDoll 
aoi ~ cnber profeuicmafl; 

8. _ Dewlopiq and 1tNetYrin1 fimAciaL cqineoriq &Dd lcpl 
repcns ic mm mm ccmpaule wim ma muaza ol ~a; 

9. SmMnUr1d fiuaeio1 io liquidaie over SSOO milli= in FNMA 
paruiccd ~=cm coauaaa; 

!O. Dlftlapld intcresi rate i\¥lp ftmndng propam.. 

11. P:epazma me ofteMI pros;eam; 

l2. Dev1loptna 1 ma:u~ plan with meetf.Dp with numerous 
ll:s• i.MuMMw.l pur~ u ....u u reWl w.. &ma; 

ll. Aliening the bowls oa u eqmsable bail to all p&ftieipaag 
Widerwnicn:and 

1•. emmi me bond mua w~diq the Seriu 1991 A & B moa 
Ylhidi bTC gcady clmcd. 

ID addidou ta all of th• 111ual fimncial ldrilor fwleliom listed abcM, 1!"' 
e~ us ID lefYI two major.roles: prepatjq a ~ehemive aul)U al the 
ru:ae ot Olmom tor rauu~ me Aumomys S2J wmon detn. ':/!~ 
~ of Iii MMe• ~Y Wulanaia by a 1aior ~ ·11:. 
The compreheu1w auJysts of tile AtnboritY'I renruemrma opuom wu 
~ 10 clmrmma wbltber debt r~ wu m me beat mierea11 of 
the Autliortty and me Sme. Tbe senior mana1er iemces fnsmed that me series 
of finu•p .. fullJ coordinated and oomplated in a timely fumoc. Four 
1emn1 ~ a semar '1ce ~nt. 11vem '1ce prlltdem amt a number of 
oibr l:illDlda&. oanmmer Ind adarwri~ prof•ion•I• at Luard FNNI haw 
undarSlwl ma. addltional respoftlibil1tiu spwliq llWUtDUI pman bauH 
d~V*Pftlli& 

We belieft dlat Llllfd Frera ii w only ftrm wiich cu ncceufWly lad 
efficiezuly ~11&1 all of dwe tub pven bodl its apm&se of uuanq 111'11 
pubU.e aa=aa-wtm ~la ~ml problems. whim is unparalleled in tic 
puhlit: fiiuciq UI&. ill bawied&I of Usl Audlority ud iU ffnanoel rala m Iba 
program whim ii common to eaeh of the aforememiamd uamacriom. h is 
amponaat to maiiliaifl comia"DC\f aM m.tapr.i= 1m.m11 ~ uG IO 
cwo UGUciiam baw a common dnlngi apcn. 1.aud ad rapouillty far 
that coorcliiwive e!on. 

ILJX 



Of c:omse, Lazard Fre.~1 hi.I exicnsiYe experience U a tm&n~ &dYtSor to 
H&tca. mumciP14iuc1, ~blic 11Wscnue1 and ooliticll 1ubdiviliou of all JdMI. 
For ~11, wt hlYI ~ and sucm•sfury co~J.eied. ~c ftn•ndnD tar 
ibe S:aie of Tcus. for die citiaa of Qicap and Willmlion. D.C. ua for 
Pimb\lflb Intarutum&l ~n 10 um a fe•. For each of these covemmemal 
clieAa. a:d far ~ cnh1n, l.allnl Fniru oaken aave Uliltecl &A ma Jep1 
dev.lopmeni. mmauq, lmJCNriftl ud ~ 1uaiagv tor ttse debt muuce. 
raima qecey ~am Gel m. rcte:1iion lid ••!Wion of pt'.'Oimiom.11 m 
eamplle1 .iM wsdlrwriaq and b&ve p:O\'idtd lddldw.l adW:a after tbe imlll 
were sales. IA eac!I cue. me tea m our clilnu wee men mu S!.00 per bcmA. 

A& aJreldJ nat1d. we wW not diarp a tee bued UDOD lh1 number of boDdl. ad 
we an 1am&ed ta bill yn bued upon t.he ~we brm~cma mamr.act 
me annnon •• devote ta it. Tbe u million tM ts mmplet m Une Widl mae 
criwia Yd ii. m fies. comparable to. or lower~ what.. ~r..lid for 
flnana•I advilor eqqemem on ftn•ucina ml bebllt of omer puDl1c " 

In fl.Ai me 12.0 million tam pmjeei mamaemem tee we propose on me Sida 
A, B &mi C borsds ii 1~iel1 on .. half of tbl fl• m&i th• iArea clifferac 
senior m•nqm reeeirl far eaca Of tm trUIKdoDI. In ccmrmo we hlvt done me bulk of ~c work :ecmary m make this banq program a 1uccaa. We 
uu&1 believe our fH i1 fair ud reuocable lld well UmM. ~ !M cmt of 
~ l&\11:111 m lbc AV.dlmi~ of an a1imatcd 540 miDicm au OTtrall deltt s•m• am:ip ud tiffllW •dmawd II mare WA SlOO miJHnn 

We &rt 00D&f1m WI will flptlt in mt t&~miq mu .. die IUCCIW ft haft. Ud 
m refiiwldnl the S423 mll!lon Series A ucl S19 milUan Series B iuueL 
Rccopizin1 iha1 the Au&boriiy will l9alu11 Ill• qna9~ of our work, bm iD 
eouaerauoa at me fict tllll our tees must come ouc ot YldUll boaa iuua u 
they In compiciad. - 111 prcpoliq lb• follawiDB fM ldwd&&ll: 

Payment for the basic YmuciA.l Advisor s1f\'ic:11: 150.000, 
;=-rued flam May, 1991. 

~.for Supplement~ Financial Evaluauoll S1mee1: . 

•~em for tramamaa suu~ lad mlMP:U:U .m­
faf die 1991 S.ria A ° C bomll, aifn.wad to DI S2.0 billiois: 
Sl.730.000 plaa oui-of·poeu1 .,.... 

ne sena D u. of between 11ao and saoo muuon wm bl IOld m 1tn. ~ 
men. we will haw cl1momuat1d to you our 111utl1mam of a fM for work m 
emmeerioD Wills '91 illul. ffowlYer. WI Would Wei yW aM the mm!Jen of W 
Al&dsoriiy to oblft"I the ncceu of m1 um• i11ut b1for1 fWD1 om flail 
eompm11ann ma me Smu D ilmA 



. 5. 

F"mally, with respect re me m-...mg at the ommp, we pra~ r.mee pa~ m 
1991. We ~·ft already billed 5'2!.000 ane :ave recaved CA~L For the 
S.~r boDd iuua. we billad S125.000 iA Oaober. Par the Series C 1'cmd 
tuu. • at 12P?Olimaiely S 1.6 billio~ we propa11 to bill the Authority &n 
addidoal TI,•S0.000 at &Ct November 2111 boud --~ We would also 
request at me November 21St board meedq lhu all bil!A rccciYcd by u be 
appttMd b1 me board at m1 ma.. . 
Jt b om lsop1 you .fbd dUa flllible approach ICCllpllhl1. w, look fonr.vd to 
mee=a wtm )'Ou ta~ ;i. . 

.• 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

HEHORANDUH TO: Donald L. Yatson 
Executive Director 

September 20, 1993 

SUBJECT: Fees Paid to Lazard Yreres & Co. 

Folloving is the ·information you requested: 

Series 1991 A 
Series 1991 B 
Series 1991 C & D 
Series 1992 A 

·s 42s,ooo 
125,000 

1,200,000 
525,000 

s2.21s.ooo 

crt?~~-· -
Catherine A. Schladebeck 

Comptroller 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Date: SEPTEMBER 26, 1991 

CHECK REQUISITION 

Check is requisitioned in favor of: 

NAME: Lazard Freres & Co. 

ADDRESS: One Rockefeller Plaza, New York, NY 10020 

In the amount of: Gross 
Disc. 
Net 

DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE: 

$425,000 
0 

$425,000 

Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 A 
Fee for Financial Advisory Services as per 

agreement 

CHARGE TO 20-000-2790-0000 

Requisitioned by: Approved by: 

0 . i Y.11/-1--
.~ w'f'l.L ~w 1.'i\\61.{,\'\ 

Catherine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

Donald L. Vatson • 
Executive Director 

Register No. 1091066 
Department 

Serv. Comp. or Mdse. Rec'd. 

Approved for Payment 

Ext. & Add. ·k, I Budg. or_Auth0 

Account No. ~ O - eJ o o - ~ 7 9 0 

v.c./ /A.C./ fk /G.L./ /AUD.: 21 
Check No. _Cl<_ 'l'; d--'f 

c6~~5-90 WIDENiNG 
TRUCTION ~l IMn 

~l ./" 



LAZARD FRERES & co. 
ONE RocmRxxu PuzA.. 
NEW You., N. Y. 10020 

August 27, 1991 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Re: $423,205,000 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Turnoike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 A 
(Ref~ncing Bonds) 

As per Agree~ent -

Fee for Financial Advisory Services 

voa• au. 

. .. 

RECEIVED 

SEP 0 ~ 1991 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

! . 
I . 
I 

i 

$425,000 

Yours truly, 

per pro.LAZARD FRERE.S & CO. 

~;~µu:J~. 
,? 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AU_THORITY 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Vatson 
Executive Director 

September 17, 1991 

SUBJECT: Authorization to Pay Invoice of the Firm of 
Lazard Freres & Co. for Major Financial Restructuring 

At tfte Commission Meetirtg of Hay 30, 1991, ir v~sponre 
to the Authority's request for proposals, the firm of Lazard Fr-:?res & 
Co. was retained to provide the Authority with Financial Adviso~y 
Services. An annual compensation of $50, 000 was approved alc,1,5 with 
appropriate hourly rates for various professionals. Provisfot• vas 
provided, that in the event of a major financial restructuring or any 
other extraordinary financial transactions, the cap of $50,000 a year 
would not apply. In the event of such a transaction, an appropriate fee 
would be negotiated by the Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority and Lazard 
Freres & Co. Since the original approval, the Authority has undertaken 
a major fin~ncing program and hence has negotiated a fee of $425,000 for 
financial advisory services for the issuance of Turnpike Revenue Bond, 
Series 1991 A, in the amount of $423,205,000. · 

An extraordinary amount of time was required to 
structure this complicated financing program vhile managing a large 
undervriting group, therefore, authorization is requested to pay Lazard 
Freres & Co. the amount of $425,000. 

~'¥c--
Catherine A. Schladebeck 

Comptroller 
/bdg 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

Donw.ts~tive Director AU1HOR\ZEO 
MEETING OF 

f};df1 . ..6,? 

1£fX 



I 

\./ 

NEW JERSeY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Date: November 21, 1991 

' i CHECK REQUISITION 
I 

Check is requisitioned in favor 

NAME: ,Lazard Freres & Co. 

ADDRESS: One Rockefeller 

In the amount of: Gross 
Disc. 
Net 

DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE: 

Plaza, 

of: 

New York, NY 

$125,000.00 
0 

$125,000.00 

10020 

As per Agreement - Fee for Financial Advisory 
Services .J:~~~ .... 13 

ChJ.RGE TO 

~eGuisitlo~ed by: 

r_,,·;1 

---~~ 
C~t~erine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

Register No. 

Department 

Approved by: 

~~. 
Donald L. \latson 
Executive Director 

Serv. Comp. or Mdse. Rec'd. 

AUllfORIZED 
MEETJNG9F 

,11 /:i1 I 'J/ 

Approved for Payment 

Ext. &/lldd. /L--- I Budg. or Auth. 

Acco~·,:t 0 ·- lJou -:; 771 

L . .r>i / v.c./ /A.C./ Jt- /G.L./ /AUD./\Y' 

Check No. C, ll. L/ ;l... f' lf. 

"1.~.~~.-~0 WIDENING 
• ..., • •' j ·f "•• : ' ·; • ·•' .• ~~ =-: 1 °! ... f = f I' • .-

.. ~ .. · .. ~. ~ . . · .... 



.. 
' LAZARD FRERES & CO. 

ONE ROCKEFELLER PLAZA. 
NEW YORK, N. Y. 10020 

September 27, 1991 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike Interchange 9 
East Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Re: $79,340,000 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 B 
(Refunding Bonds) 

$125,000 
As per Agreement -

Fee for Financial Advisory Services 

Yours truly, 

RECEIVED 

Ul.' 0 2 1991 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

per pro. LAZARD FRERES & CO. 

! 
' I 

i 

,,,~ 

-A~~~~~G. 

\ 

' 

• 



......... l \...}·' •·I. ... 

/ 
NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

HEHORANDUH TO: Donald L. Vatson 
Executive Director 

November 7, 1991 

SUBJECT: Authorization to Pay Invoice of the Firm of 
Lazard Freres & Co. for Major Financial Restructuring 

At the Commission Meeting of Hay 30, 1991, in response 
to the Authority's request for proposals., the firm of Lazard Freres & 
Co. vas retained to provide the Authority vith Financial Advisory 
Services. An annual compensation of $50,000 was approved along vith 
appropriate hourly rates for various professionals. Provision vas 
provided, that in the event of a major financial restructuring or any 
other extraordinary financial transactions, the cap of $50,000 a year 
vould not apply. In the event of such a transaction, an appropriate fee 
vould be ~egotiated by the Nev Jersey Turnpike Authority and Lazard 
Freres & Co. Since the original approval• the Authority has undertaken 
e major financing program and hence has negotiated a fee of $125,000 for 
financial advi~ory services for the issuance of Turnpike Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1991 B, in the amount of $79,340,000. 

An extraordinary amount of time vas required to 
structure this complicated financing program vhile managing a large 
undervriti~g group, therefore, authoiization is requested to .pay Lazard 
Freres & Co. the amount of $125,000. 

/bdg 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

/W_A, ~J--
Cath~1~chladebeck 

Comptroller 

Donald L. Vatson, Executive Director 

JJ 



CHECK REQUISITION 

Check is requisitioned in favor of: 

NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

Lazard Freres & Co. 

One Rockefeller Plaza 
Ne~ York, NY .10020 

In the amount of: Gross $1,200,000 
Disc. 
Net $1,200,000 

DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE: 

Date: December 11, 1991 

Financial Advisory services for 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 C and D 

Requis1t~oned by: Approved by: 

Catherine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

Donald L. Yatson 
Executive Director 

.... -\' 

1 7 ¥'1 ... el'' ~v1JtNlNG 

CONSTRUCTION .FUND 
• I 

Register No. 1120546 
Department 

Serv. Comp. or Mdse. Rec'd. 

Approved for Payment 

Ext. & Add. <2. I Budg. or Auth. 

cg{ccount No. ;;/o- ooo-;J.7'j I 
'/ h~ . v.c./ /A.c.1.-,--....._ /G.L./ /AUD./ ~ 

Check No. 

AUTHORIZED 
MEE'tlNGOF 

11/~1/7 I 
I 

IJlk 



' LAZARD J?Jl.EH.ES & CO. 
ONE RocKE.11tELLEll l'LAZA 

NEW You.K, N. Y. 10020 

November 10, 1991 

~ 
t 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Route 18 
Turnpike lnterch~nge 9 · 
East Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Re: $1,636,200,000 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds 
Series 1991 c 

As per Agreement -

Fee for Financial Advisory Services 

RECEIVED 
HOV \ 9 ·1991 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

ro1111.a •:U 

$1,200,000 

Yours truly, 

per pro. LAZARD HlEllES & CO. 

~~ e·tv/ r;.u-<L>/ Y-~ • 

~ 

I t 



-'---) ......... 
NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY"' 

·MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Vatson 
Executive Director 

November 21, 1991 

SUBJECT: Authorization to Pay Invoice of the Firm of 

-,. -- . 

Lazard Freres & Co. for Major Financial Restructuring 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 C and Series 1991 D 

At the Commission Meeting of May 30, 1991, in response 
to the Authority's request for proposals, the firm of Lazard Freres & 
Co. was retained to provide the Authority vith Financial Advisory 
Services. An annual compensation of $50,000 vas approved along vith 
appropriate hourly rates for various professionals. Provision was 
provided, that in the event of a ~ajor financi~l restructuring or any 
other extraordinary financial transactions, the cap of SS0,000 a year 
v~u1d not apply. In the event of such a transaction, an appropriate fee 
vc~!j be negotiated by the Ne~ Jersey Turnpike Authority and Lazard 
Fi.tre.:i & C11. Since the original approval, the Authority has undertaken 
a ruajor financing program and hence has negotiated a fee of Sl,200,000 
for f~nanc:~! 3dvisory and management services for the issuanc~ of 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1991 C and Series D, in the amount of 
SJ , G3·>, 200, 000. 

An extraordinary amount of time ~as required to 
stru~~ure ~1,:~ complicated financing program, manage a large 
unc1Pr·o1ri ting group and to perform additional services beyond advising 
the Authority. 

Authorization is requested to pay Lazard Freres & Co. 
the amount of Sl,200~000 at the closing of the Series C and Series D 
Bonds. 

/bdg 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

f)J£!t!~ 

I ~ 
cfW-,J'-1u.ciA-

ca therine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

AUTJiO~;z~o 
MEEiiNG OF 

Donald L. Vatson, Executive Director !t/011-2 

J J-2 
(ADDENDUM) 

- A . ,,,..)( 



CHECK REQUISITION 

Check is requisitioned in favor of: 

NAME: 

ADDRESS: 

Lazard Freres & Co. 

One Rockefeller Plaza 
Nev York, NY 10020 

In the amount of: Gross $525,000 
Disc. 
Net $525,000 

DESCRIPTION OF CHARGE: 

Date: January 16, 1992 

Financial Advisory services for 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1992A 

Requisitioned by: Approved by: 

... -:.. 

~ IJ 
Catherine A. Schladebeck 
Comptroller 

Donald L. Yatson 
Executive Director 

.. . 
. '·. 

Register No . 20106!} i 
. Department 

Serv. Comp. or Mdse. Rec'd. 

Approved for Payment 

Ext. & Add. J,( ·1 Budg. or Auth. 

Account No. 9~ - O f)tJ - ~ 7 '13 
v.c.DeA.C./ 1< /G.L./ /AUD.l(l., 

ChecJo. · C. F ;).. f 3 ~ 

WIDENING 
·:~. ; .CONSTRUCTION FUM!: 

.... -· -· . . . ·-



'.· .• 

LAZARD FRERES & co. 
ONE ROCKEFELLER PLAZA 

NEW' YORK, N. Y. 10020 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 

Re: $742,000,000 

January 9, 1992 

New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1992A 

As per Agreement 

Fee for Financial Advisory Services $525,000 

,- -.- . 
' ._. . 
• r. I.) 

Yours truly, 

per pro. LAZARD FRERES & CO. 

~{~__,,( 

~-·. . 

: .. 

IJTX 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE A\JTHORJTY 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Yatson 
Executive Director 

January 8, 1992 

SUBJECT: Authorization to Pay Invoice of the Firm of 
Lazard Freres & Co. for Major Financial Restructuring 
Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 A 

At the Commission Meeting of May 30, 1991, in response 
to the Authority's request for proposals, the firm of Lazar~ Freres & 
Co. vas retained to provide the Authority vith Financial Advisory 
Services. An annual compensation of $50,000 vas approved along vith 
appropriate hourly rates for various professionals. Provision ~as 
provided, that in the event of a major financial restructuring or any 
other extraordinary financial transactions, the cap of $50,000 a year 
~ould not apply. In the event of such a transaction, an approp=iate fee 
vould be negotiated by the Ne~ Jersey Turnpike Authority and Lazard 
Freres & Co. Since the original approval, the Authority has u~cie=taken 
a major financing program and hence has negotiated a fee of 5525,000 for 
financial advisory and management services for the issuance of Tu=npike 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1992 A, in the amount of $742,000,000. 

An extraordinary amount of time vas required to 
structure this complicated financing program, manage a large 
under~riting group and to perform additional services beyond a~~ising 
the Authority. 

Authorization is requested to pay Lazard Freres & Co. 
the amount of $525,000 at the closing of the Series 1992 A Bonds. 

/bdg 

CERTIFIED FOR CONSIDERATION: 

1l111 1 4 ·O L ~jJk~ 
Catherine A. Schladebeck 

Comptroller 

'1 ,.. •. ,.-,..D 
\ T " ·'l '; .. : l\ .J I • l -. • ' · -· .. 
'.,1,, .. !:~ 

}.-r:-,. \ ·' (\r 

Don~ld L. Vatson, Executive Director t· ....... t' ,.~ .~-, \i1· .. 
l\L.L h av \; 



Selling Group 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Series 1991A 

Apex Securities,· Inc. 
The Chapman Company 
Clayton Brow & Associates, Inc. 
Dean Vitter Reynolds Inc. 
Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corp. 
E. A. Hoos & Co. Inc. 
First American Municipals, Inc. 
Gilbraltar Securities Co. 
Goldman Sachs & Co. 
Halpert and Company, Inc. 
J. B. Hanauer & Company 
Kidder, Peabody & Co., Inc. 
Kirchner Hoore/George K. Bawn & Co. 
Lehman Brothers 
Kerrill Lynch & Co. 
Hid-State Securities Corp. 
Huriel Siebert & Co., Inc. 
Printon, Kane Group, Inc. 
Roosevelt & Cross, Inc. 
Ryan, Beck & Co. 
Smith Barney, Harris Upham & Co., Inc. 
United Daniels Securities Inc. 
Villiam E. Simon & Sons Municipal Securities Inc. 



Selling Group 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

. Series 1991B 

Apex Securities, Inc. 
The Chapman Company 
Clayton Brovn & Associates, Inc. 
Dean Vitter Reynolds Inc. 
Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corp. 
E. A. Hoos & Co. Inc. 
FIA Capital Group, Inc. 
First American Municipals, Inc. 
The GHS Group Inc. 
Gilbraltar Securities Co. 
Goldman Sachs & Co. 
Halpert and Company, Inc. 
J. B. Hanauer & Company 
Kidder, Peabody & Co., Inc. 
Kirchner Moore/George K. Baum & Co. 
Lehman Brothers 
Merrill Lynch & Co. 
Hid-State Securities Corp. 
Huriel Siebert & Co., Inc. 
PHN Capital Funding Inc. 
Printon, Kane Group, Inc. 
R. Seelaus & Company, Inc. 
Roosevelt & Cross, Inc. 
Ryan, Beck & Co. 
Smith Barney, Harris Upham & Co., Inc. 
United Daniels Securities Inc. 
Vantage Securities Inc. 
Villiam E. Simon & Sons Municipal Securities Inc. 



Selling Group 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Series 1991 C & D 

Apex Securities, Inc./Samuel A. Ramirez & Company 
Bear, Stearns & Co., Inc. 
The Chapman Company 
Clayton Brovn & Associates, Inc. 
Dean Vitter Reynolds Inc. 
Dillon, Read & Co. Inc. 
Ferris, Baker, Vatts, Inc. 
FIA Capital Group, Inc. 
First American Municipals, Inc. 
The First Boston Corporation 
The GKS Group 
Gibraltar Securities Co. 
Golden Harris Capital Group 
Goldman Sachs & Co. 
Halpert and Company, Inc. 
J. B. Hanauer & Company 
Kirchner Hoore/George K. Baum & Co. 
Lehman Brothers 
Kid-State Securities Corp. 
Kuriel Siebert & Co., Inc. 
PaineVebber Inc. 
Printon, Kane Group, Inc. 
Roosevelt & Cross Inc. 
R. Seelaus & Company, Inc. 
United Daniels Securities, Inc. 
Vantage Securities Inc. 
Y. H. Hell Associates, Inc. 

l~IJ( 



Selling Group 

Selling Group 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

Series 1992A 

A. G. Edvards & Sons, Inc. 
A. H. Villiams & Co. Inc. 
Apex Securities, Inc. 
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. 
Carmona and Company 
The Chapman Company 
Clayton Brovn & Associates, Inc. 
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Securities Corp. 
_FIA Capital Group, Inc. 
First American Municipals, Inc. 
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October 1, 1993 

Mr. David J. Goldberg, Chairman 
Mr. Donald Watson, Executive Director 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.O. Box 1121 
New Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Gentlemen: 

L JEFJ"REY LEWIS 
NOEL D HUM""4.REYS 
P&~ICIA M KERINS 
PETER B FAuoN 
MARK J BLUNDA 
MAATlN J MILITA. JR 
ALAN J. COHEN 
JASON I B•TSKYll 
WAYNE B HEICKL£ND 
CHERIE LEE MAXWELL 
FRANK N D'AMBRA 
GLENN E DAVIS 
HARRY B NoRETSKY 
~EN B J&CKWANO 
STUART ROSEND 
NATHAN E. ARNEU.D 
JOANNE JORDAN OOWD 
~N R ROWLAND 
JOSHUA T RABINOWITZ 
LORI G SINGER 
ERICD MANN 
STEPHEN B MCNALLY 
STUART M BROWN 
MARK E DUCKSTEIN 
BETHS ROSE 
SCOTT N RUBIN 
FREDERIC M. TUDOR 
K.ENNETH L. MOSKOWITZ 
M -CAN CONNOLLY 
BENNET SUSsER 
~I~ BRCOSl<Y 
ROBERT W BURKE 

SCOTT T GRUBER 
ANn<INY J MONACO 
ROYB OSE~ 
JA'fA SOLED 
BRUCE SCHOENBERG 
S'TnEN S. KATZ 
PHILIP A BRAMSON 
UNDABKATZ 
.RICHARDS SCHKOLNICK 
8RIAN K VALENTINE 
TED ZANGARI 
N LYNNE HUGHES 
LESTER CHANIN 
PAUL P. JOSEPHSON 
AASEN ZAATARIA.N 
DOUGLAS R WEIDER 
PATRICIA BROWN FUGEE 
LORENZO L. LORENZQTTl 0 

PAUL.F.DOOA 
LORAL.FONG 
JOSHUA D. GOODMAN 
HEL£N KLEINER 
PATRICIA A. SOIATZ 
RH()NDA SOBRAL 
£USA T. SORRELL 
BRYAN S. GREENBERG 
JONATHAN A. ADELSBERG 
ADAM J KAISER 
Al.ISSA PYRICH 
PAULL ROBINSON 
qoavrr E ROSENBERG 
DAVID TREIBMAN 

PLEASE REP\.Y TO NEWARK 

I am in receipt of a letter dated September 30, 1993 from 
Rodney Frelinghuysen, Ch~irman of the Assembly Appropriations 
Committee. In the last paragraph of that letter he asks for "any 
and all transmittals, documents, and personal schedule or diary 
entries that reference meetings or discussions between Chairman 
Goldberg and Joseph Salema, ·Governor Florio's former chief of 
staff, or Chairman Goldberg, Mr. Salema, and Clive cummis." 

This is to advise you that I know of no transmittal 
document, personal schedule or diary entry that would reference a 
meeting or a discussion between myself and Joseph Salema 
concerning the Turnpike's bond issue for the period between May 
1, 1991 and September 5, 1991, for the reason that I had no 
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written or oral communication with Mr. ~alema during that time 
frame on that subject matter. r ~ t 

Ve~~.' \t~· l~ your. s, 
. \j~\ . ".\''~ 

. I . .(\ \J , \J I j 
Clive s- eummiaJ 

\ 

RECEIVED 
OCT 0 It 1993 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

DAVID J. GOLDBERG 
. CHAIRMAN 

VIA FAX 

P.O. Box 1121 

Executive Director, Dor.aid L. Watson 
New Jersey Turnpike Authority 
P.O. Box 1121 
New Brunswick, NJ 08903 

Dear Don: 

New Brunswick, N.J. 08903 (201) 247-0900 

October 4, 1993 

This is a follow-up to our conversation concerning the letter dated September 30, 1993 
from Rodney P. Frelinghuysen, Chairman of the Assembly Appropriations Committee. 
Chairman Frelinghuysen has requested "any and all transmittals, documents, and personal 
schedule or diary entries that reference meetings or discussions between Chairman Goldberg and 
Joseph Salema, Governor Florio's former chief of staff, or Chairman Goldberg, Mr. Salema and 
Clive Cummis of Sills, Cummis, Zuckerman, Radin, Tischman, Epstein & Gross, General 
Counsel to the Authority". The letter states that the time-frame of interest for these documents 
is between May 1, 1991 and September S, 1991. 

In specific response to this letter request, I have reviewed my personal diary and time 
sheets at my law firm. There are no entries during this time period which reference a meeting 
between me and Mr. Salema or a meeting with Mr. Salema and Mr. Cum mis. I also do not 
have any documents that reference such a meeting. 

You have undertaken to review the documents maintained by the Authority at the 
Chairman's office. To the best of my knowledge there are no such document5. Should you 
located any, please send them to Chairman Frelinghuysen with a copy for my files. 

DJG/bg 

lt/-n 

Si~ 
l'L~ 

David J. Goldberg 

RECEIVED 

OCT 0 5 1993 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

October 5, 1993 

MEMORANDUM TO: Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

RE: Assembly Appropriations committee 
1991-1992 Bonding 

I have exa~ined all Department files and all files in the 
Secretary's office of the Authority concerning any and all 
transmittals, documents, and per•onal schedule or diary entries 
that reference meetings or discussions between Chairman Goldberg 
and Joseph Salema, Governor Florie's former chief of staff, or 
Chairman Goldberg, Mr. Salema and Clive Cummis of Sills, Cummis, 
Zuckerman, Radin, Tischman, Epstein & Gross, General Counsel to 
the Authority. These documents cover the time-frame between May 
1,' 1991 and September 5, 1991. 

In addition, I have exa~ined all documents, personal diaries, 
memoranda and notes on file with the Turnpike Authority. I wish 
to advise that there are absolutely no documents, entries or 
references concerning any meetings between Chairman Goldberg, 
Joseph Salema and Clive Cummis or between any two of these 
gentlemen. 

HIO/cjh 

Herbert ~rsch 
Director of Law/Secretary 

RECEIVED 

OCT 0 6 1993 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 



TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

David J. Goldberg 
Chairman 

Donald L. Watson 
Executive Director 

December 6, 1993 

Response to Testimony of William Cobbs·of 
Public Resource Advisory Group 

At your request, I am responding to the testimony 
given by Mr. William Cobbs to the Assembly Appropriations 
Committee at their hearing on September 14, 1993. 

Mr. Cobbs testified that his firm was only given 24 
hours to respond to the Request For Proposal (RFP) for Financial 
Advisory services. In reality, Mr. Cobbs' firm, Public 
Resources Advisory Group (PRAG) received the RFP on March 7, 
1991 and responded in writing on March 15, 1991, that they would 
not be submitting a proposal. Ultimately, the Authority 
selected Chase Securities Inc. to serve as Financial Advisor at 
the Commission Meeting on March 28, 1991. Several weeks later, 
when Chase indicated they would be withdrawing due to a 
corporate reorganization, we contacted each of the firms who 
received the original RFP and gave them another ~pportunity to 
submit proposals. This was appropriate since there were no 
changes to the RFP released on March 7, 1991. Mr. Cobbs' firm 
submitted a proposal on May 2, 1991 almost two months after 
receiving the RFP. 

I might also point out a contradiction in Mr. Cobbs' 
testimony as to his firm's professional involvement in New 
Jersey. During PRAG's presentation to the Turnpike Authority 
interview panel, they made it clear they had worked in New 
Jersey previously. Yet, Mr. Cobbs testified to the Assembly 
Appropriations Committee, "We have never worked in New Jersey 
despite oor rankings." Obviously, Mr.· Cobbs had forgotten this 
fact. 

Several times during the Assembly Appropriations 
Committee hear~ng, Mr. Cobbs and some Committee members pointed 
out that PRAG was ranked as the largest financial advisory firm 
by Securities Data for the previous 2-1/2 years. However, it 



NEW JERSEY TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 

David J. Goldberg 
Dec. 6, 1993 
Page 2 

( 

should be noted that when Turnpike Authority representatives 
were selecting a Financial Advi_sor in the Spring of 1991, PRAG 
w~s not ranked very high in the specialized area of 
transportation. In 1989, they were rank~d No. 8 in the nation 
overall; but did not even make the top 10 for transportation 
advisors. In contrast, in 1989 Lazard Freres & Co. was ranked 
No. 4 in the nation overall and was ranked No. 5 in the field of 
transportation finance advisors. In 1990, which would have been 
the most recent information available to the selection 
committee, PRAG again did not make the top ten list for 
transportation financial advisors whereas Lazard Freres & Co. 
was ~anked No. 3 in this category. 

Another area that needs clarification is that of the 
actual scope of Financial Advisory services and the fees for 
such service. It is important to draw the distinction between 
the type of work involved for the Financial Advisor versus that 
required to manage the major financial restructuring decided 
upon by the Authority approximately six weeks after Lazard 
Freres & Co. had been selected as Financial Advisor. Mr. Cobbs 
seemed unable or unwilling to accomplish this distinction in his 
testimony. 

The scope of services to be performed by the 
Autho~ity's Financial Advisor included computer cash flow models 
to project the effects of financial strategies, reviewing the 
Authority's financial structure and recommending cost-saving 
measures, and advising on the implications of a broad-based 
refinancing program. 

This scope of work had an annual cap on fees of 
$50,000. This work as Financial Advisor is what PRAG was 
interviewed for on May 3, 1991, along with Lazard Freres & Co. 
and Lamont Financial Services. In fact, Lazard Freres & Co. was 
ultimately paid $30,000 as the Authority's Financial Advisor in 
1991 for such services. The $50,000 was prorated because they 
were not approved by the Commission until May 30, 1991. 

It was made very clear to all proposers for the 
financial advisory services that $50,000 was the annual cap. 
However, each proposer was advised that in the event of a major 
financial restructuring or other extraordinary financial 
transaction, the $50,000 annual cap would not apply. 

Lazard Freres & Co. did generate $2.275 million in 
fees by early 1992, but not for serving simply as a financial 
advisor, as Cobbs suggests. Those fees were received because 
Lazard Freres & Co. managed the refinancing of $2.9 billion, one 
of the largest, most complex public finance transactions ever 
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undertaken~ wherein they oversaw the work of 49 underwriters, 
maintained the Authority's "A" bond rating, saved $260 million 
over the life of the bonds and held the financing cost to $26 
million, less than half the cost of the financing for the 1984-8 
bonds. Those fees were negotiated by the Commission, as 
approved by Authority's action on May 30, 1991. 

Mr. Cobbs also claimed during his testimony that his 
firm told Turnpike officials that PRAG would provide the 
services needed for $200,000 to $300,000. According to Mr. 
Cobbs, the offer was relayed to the Authority by telephone. 
There are several problems with these statements. The 
Authority's telephone records show that no such proposal was 
ever received. If the call had been made, the proposal would 
have been meaningless since the Authority only accepts proposals 
in writing. Further, Mr. Cobbs did not indicate what services 
PRAG would provide for that fee. If it was for the financial 
advisory service, with the $50,000 annual cap, for which PRAG 
proposed, then that fee was too high. Finally, if the fee was 
floated in May .1991 for managing a refinancing plan that did not 
exist and that was not approved by the Commission until July 
1991, it was meaningless. No one can consider such statements 
made two years after the fact credible. 




